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BOARD’S REPORT

To,
The Members,
VEEDA CLINICAL RESEARCH LIMITED

Your Directors are pleased to present the 19" Annual Report on the business and operations of Veeda
Clinical Research Limited (“the Company”) together with the audited annual financial statements
showing financial position of the Company along with the summary of the standalone & consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under section 133 of The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with
rule 7 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (“the Accounts Rules”). The standalone and
consolidated financial performance of the Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023 is
summarized below:

(INR in millions)
PARTICULARS STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED
2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22

Revenue of Operations 2,961.53 2239.31 4,095.78 2880.26
Other Income 91.47 42.27 106.32 50.83
Profit before Interest, Depreciation, 635.62 453.07 1140.54 665.09
Amortization & Tax

Interest and Financial charges (53.32) (45.75) (138.82) (96.29)
Depreciation (211.32) (155.30) (380.25) (254.06)
Share of profit / (loss) from joint venture - - (26.67) 3.44
and associate (net of tax)

Exceptional Items - - - 341.17
Profit/(Loss) before taxes 370.98 252.02 594.80 659.35
Current Tax (126.14) (74.40) (192.79) (94.24)
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years (0.12) - 2.93 -
Deferred Tax 14.80 5.69 19.29 (60.53)
Profit / (Loss) for the Year 259.52 183.31 424.23 504.58

DIVIDEND

With a view to conserve resources for the future growth of the Company, the directors do not

recommend dividend on equity shares for the year ended on 31% March, 2023.

RESERVES

The Company has reserve of INR 5,106.02 million (on standalone basis) as at the end of Financial Year.

The directors do not recommend any amount to be transferred to any reserve.



MAJOR EVENT OCCURRED DURING THE YEAR INCLUDING CHANGES IN SHARE
CAPITAL

>

Acquisition of Equity Shares of Subsidiary Company i.e. M/s. Bioneeds India Private

Limited

Pursuant to the Investment Agreement dated July 7, 2021 along with its amendments entered
into between the Company, Promoter of the Subsidiary Company and the Subsidiary Company,
the Company had acquired Equity shares of the Subsidiary Company. The details of the same

are provided as below:

Sr. Particulars Board / Share Total % of
No. Shareholder’s | Acquired Shares Shares
approval after Acquired
Acquisition
At the beginning of the year 53,64,304 75.10%
1 Investment through subscription Board 2,38,096 56,02,400 75.90%
of 2,38,096 fully paid up new approval:
Equity Shares of Face Value of | 24/05/2022
Rs. 10/- each for consideration
of Rs. 10,00,00,320 of M/s. | Shareholder’
Bioneeds India Private Limited. approval:
26/05/2022
2 | Investment through acquisition Board 5,95,240 61,97,640 83.97%
of 5,95,240 fully paid up Equity approval:
Shares of Face Value of Rs. 10/- |  24/05/2022
each for consideration of
Rs.25,00,00,800/- from Dr. S.N. | Shareholder’
Vinaya Babu, Promoter of M/s. approval:
Bioneeds India Private Limited. 26/05/2022
3 | Investment through acquisition Board 2,23,666 64,21,306 87%
of 2,23,666 fully paid up Equity approval:
Shares of Face Value of Rs. 10/- 18/11/2022
each for consideration of Rs.
10,00,01,069/- from Dr. S.N.
Vinaya Babu, Promoter of M/s.
Bioneeds India Private Limited.
» During the financial year under review, the Company had resolved to raise INR 1943.94 million

from the identified investors by way of preferential allotment on a private placement basis.

Date of Board Resolution

18/03/2023

Date of Shareholder Resolution

20/03/2023

Number of Equity Shares Offered

52,93,666 equity shares

Face value of shares

Fully Paid up Equity Shares of INR 2/- each

Number of shareholders to whom the shares were
issued

11 Investors

Total amount of offer

INR 1,94,39,40,028.52/-

Number of Equity shares issued and allotted

35,86,998 equity shares*

Number of shareholders to whom the shares were
issued

9 Investors

Total amount raised through Private Placement

INR 1,31,72,17,405.56/-

*Pursuant to the Offer and Partial Subscription of the offered Equity Shares, the Company issued

and allotted fresh equity shares on 12 May, 2023.




» The Board at their meeting held on 18/03/2023 approved the alteration of the Articles of
Association of the Company as per the terms and conditions of the agreements executed with
the identified investor. Further, the same was subsequently approved by the shareholders of the
Company at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 20/03/2023.

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIR

The Company being unlisted Company, Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year
under review in compliance with the provision of regulation 34(2)(e) of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable.

Your Directors has presented the Company’s State of Affairs and the future growth trajectories in form
of Annexure-A to this report.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year under review.
DISCLOSURE ON DOWNSTREAM INVESTMENT

Our Subsidiary Company, M/s. Bioneeds is a Leading Preclinical Contract Research Organization
(CRO) providing Preclinical services in form of Integrated Discovery, Development & Regulatory
Services to Pharmaceutical, Biopharmaceutical, Agrochemical, Industrial Chemical, Herbal,
Nutraceutical & Medical Device Companies.

At the beginning of the year, the total equity shareholding of the Company in said Subsidiary Company
was 75.10%. During the year under review, the Company has acquired additional stake of 11.90% in
different tranches thereby aggregating the total equity shareholding of 87% stake of the Company in
Subsidiary Company. The details of said investment are mentioned as below:

1st Tranche:

Pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors in the meeting dated 24™ May, 2022 and shareholder’s
approval in Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EOGM) dated 26™ May, 2022, the Company acquired
additional stake of 8.87% in Subsidiary Company as below:

a) Subscription of 2,38,096 new equity shares of Bioneeds India Private Limited by infusing INR
10,00,00,320/- and;

b) Acquisition of 5,95,240 equity shares of Bioneeds India Private Limited from Dr. S. N. Vinaya
Babu(Promoter of Subsidiary Company) by making of an Investment of INR 25,00,00,800/-.

2nd Tranche:

Pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors in the meeting dated 18" November, 2022, the
Company acquired additional stake of 3.03% in Subsidiary Company as below:

a) Acquisition of 2,23,666 equity shares of Bioneeds India Private Limited from Dr. S. N. Vinaya
Babu(Promoter of Subsidiary Company) by making of an Investment of INR 10,00,01,069/-.



With reference to above downstream investments, the Company had also obtained a Certificates for
Downstream Investment from Chartered Accountant certifying that;

A) The Company has obtained necessary approvals of Board as well as Shareholders for such
downstream investment;

B) Downstream investments made within foreign equity levels permitted;

C) All the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant FEMA regulations have been
complied with;

D) Investments made by the Company within the caps as specified in the FDI policy;

E) The investment is in compliance with Foreign Exchange Management (Mode of Payment and
Reporting of Non-Debt Instruments) Regulations, 2019 and Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer
or issue of security by a person resident outside India) Regulations, 2017;

F) The Investment Agreement/ Shareholder Agreement between the investor and the investee Company
is in compliance with the provisions of Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or issue of security
by a person resident outside India) Regulations, 2017, as amended from time to time.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN MARCH 31, 2023 AND THE
DATE OF THE REPORT

There has been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year and the date of report, except as stated below;

e The Board at their meeting held on 12" May, 2023, issued and allotted 35,86,998 Equity Shares to
the identified investors on preferential basis pursuant to the subscription of the Private Placement
Offer which was approved by the Board at their meeting held on 18" March, 2023 and shareholders
at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 20™ March, 2023.

e The Board at their meeting held on 12" May, 2023, resolved to offer additional 28,86,552 Equity
Shares to the identified investors on preferential basis through the Private Placement offer. The same
was subsequently approved by the shareholders at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 5%
June, 2023.

e The Board at their meeting held on 12" May, 2023, resolved to acquire the remaining 50% shares
from M/s. Somru Bioscience Inc. thereby making Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited as wholly
owned subsidiary.

e The Board at their meeting held on 18™ July, 2023;

% Resolved to approve purchase of Bio-Pharma division of the Subsidiary Company i.e. Bioneeds
India Private Limited.

% Resolved to approve purchase of business from the Joint Venture Company i.e. Ingenuity
Biosciences Private Limited.

% Resolved to approve alteration of the Articles of Association of the Company pursuant to the
Agreement entered into with identified investor. Further, the same was subsequently approved



by the shareholders of the Company at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 10th
August, 2023.

% Resolved to approve the issue and allotment of 15,24,970 Equity Shares to the identified
investors on preferential basis through private placement pursuant to the subscription of the
Private Placement Offer which was approved by the Board at their meeting held on 12th May,
2023 and shareholders at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 5th June, 2023.

¢ Resolved to approve acquisition of additional 2,95,385 (4% stake) Equity Shares of Face Value
of Rs.10/- each in Subsidiary Company i.e. M/s. Bioneeds India Private Limited by way of
acquisition of said equity shares from Dr. S.N. Vinay Babu (Promoter of Subsidiary Company).
Consequent to the said acquisition, the total holding of the Company in its Subsidiary Company
has increased to 91% equity shareholding.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

No significant and material orders have been passed by any Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which
have influence to the going concern status and Company’s operation in future.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate internal control systems in place and has reasonable assurance on
authorizing, recording and reporting transactions of its operations in all material respects and in
providing protection and safeguard against misuse or loss of assets of the Company. The Company has
in place, well documented procedures covering critical financial and operational functions
commensurate with the size and complexities of the organization. Some of the salient features of the
internal control system in place are: -

1. Adherence to applicable Accounting Standards and Policies.

2. Preparation of annual budget for operation and service functions and monitoring the same with actual
performance at regular intervals.

3. Ensuring that assets are properly recorded and procedures have been put in place to safeguard against
any loss or unauthorized use or disposal.

In addition, the Company uses the services of an external audit firm (acting as Internal Auditor) to
periodically review various aspects of the internal control system to ensure that such controls are
operating in the way expected and whether any modification is required.

The Company’s internal financial controls are deployed through an internally evolved framework that
addresses material risks in the Company’s operations and financial reporting objectives, through a
combination of Entity Level Controls (including Enterprise Risk Management, Legal Compliance
Framework and Anti-fraud Mechanisms such as an Ethics Framework, Code of Conduct, Whistle
Blower Policy, Anti Money Laundering Policy, Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy, etc.), Process
Controls, Information Technology based controls, period end financial reporting and closing controls
and Internal Audit.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

During the year, there were no amount required to transfer into Investors Education Protection Fund.



PROCEEDINGS PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE

There are no such proceedings or appeals pending under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during
the year and at the end of the financial year even up to the date of this report.

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT
THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING
LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

The Company has not taken any loan from banks or financial institutions during the year under review
and hence, the difference in valuation is not applicable.

STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY,
EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING
THE YEAR

The Board is of the opinion that all the independent directors appointed, are having good integrity and
possess the requisite expertise and experience (including the proficiency). The independent directors
have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstances or situation which exist or may be
reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. Based on the
declarations received from the independent directors, the Board has confirmed that they meet the criteria
of independence and that they are independent of the management.

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF EACH OF THE SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES INCLUDED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Company has Subsidiary Company i.e. M/s. Bioneeds India Private Limited in which Company
holds 87.00% shareholding as on 31*' March 2023. The Company also has step down Subsidiary
Company i.e Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited which is wholly owned by M/s. Bioneeds India
Private Limited as on 31% March 2023.

The Company has entered into a Joint Venture agreement with M/s. Somru Bioscience Inc. based at
Canada and incorporated a joint venture entity named M/s. Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited (IBS)
with the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat. As on 31° March, 2023, the Company holds 50%
shareholding in said Joint Venture Company. Further, the Board at their meeting held on 12 May,
2023, resolved and approved to acquire the remaining 50% shares from M/s. Somru Bioscience Inc.

The Statement containing the salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiary and Joint Venture
Company is annexed to this report as Annexure-B in prescribed Form AOC-1.

EMPLOYEES

Veeda continues to maintain its focus on attracting, hiring, training and inducting top Industry talent.
On the hiring front, the Company recruited exceptional talent from pharmacy colleges and trained the
fresh talent.

The focus is on optimized training duration, exhaustive coverage of all foundational skills, greater
emphasis and stress on knowledge application, continuous monitoring of trainee performance and
exposure to project environment through real-life Training Lab.

Like every year, Veeda celebrated diversity within the Company and strengthened it further by hosting
an array of activities to propagate fun, bonding and celebration at work.



Veeda, as a Company, constantly enables and encourages the employees to be empowered, happy and
enthusiastic about work. The Company’s total rewards program is based on principles of equality and
is designed to support its culture of high performance and innovation.

DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any Deposits from public which falls
under the purview of Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. S R B C & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad (Firm Registration No.
324982E/E300003) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company in 18™ Annual General
Meeting of the Company dated 17" June 2022 for the period of 5 (five) years i.e. till the conclusion of
23" Annual General Meeting of the Company.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Auditors’ Report for the financial year under review does not contain any qualification, reservation or
adverse remark or disclaimer except with respect to the qualification or adverse remarks provided in
Annexure 1 i.e. Companies (Auditor's Report) order (CARO) Reports to Independent Auditor’s Report on
Standalone and Consolidated financial statement of the Company, for which your directors provides an
explanation which is annexed to this report as Annexure-C.

FRAUD REPORTING BY AUDITOR

During the year under review, no fraud has been reported by Auditors to the Audit Committee or to the
Board.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to and in compliance with the provisions of section 92(3) read with section 134(3)(a) of the
Act, Annual Return for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023, in prescribed Form No. MGT-7
is available on the website of the Company at https://www.veedacr.com/financial-reporting.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A. Conservation of Energy

The Company is engaged in testing of various drug / medicines and Human Clinical Trials. The different
types of tests are carried out depending on the nature of material and quality of standards such as IP,
USP, BP, etc. Testing is done using different testing equipment. Most of the test equipment are
microprocessor based and draw only requisite power. Power is drawn by different equipment from a
common source in the laboratories.

Improvement in energy efficiency is a continuous process and is given a high priority. Efforts have also
been made to identify potential energy saving opportunities in all our operations, endeavors to optimize



the process parameters and to modernize and upgrade the technology and equipment with the objective
of increasing Energy Productivity.

The Company has implemented a process to minimize the power utilization at optimum level. As a
result, the energy consumption is reduced to the lowest minimum requirement.

B. Technology Absorption

The tests / studies are carried out as per the prescribed national / international standards and regulations.
The Company undertakes clinical research under international guidelines such as DCGI, USFDA, ICH
ANVISA, MHRA etc.

In the same way, the technology involved in testing is only testing of products as per the prescribed
standard procedure / manuals. Testing technology is absorbed to the extent permitted by the appropriate

guidelines.

C. Foreign Exchange Earning and Qutgo

(INR in millions)

Foreign Exchange earned 2,020.55

Foreign Exchange used : 210.94

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

As required under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has in place a Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee constituted as per the act. The primary function of the
Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in formulating a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Policy and review its implementation and progress from time to time.

During the year under review, the Company has spent an amount of INR7.73 million towards the CSR
liability. The Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility activities is annexed herewith as
Annexure-D.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A) CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, No Directors and Key Managerial Personnel were appointed/resigned.
B) RETIREMENT BY ROTATION

Pursuant to and in compliance with the provisions of section 152(6) of the Act and in terms of the Articles
of Association of the Company, Mr. Manu Sahni (DIN: 03578144), non-Executive Nominee Director
and Dr. Kiran Marthak (DIN: 00298288), non-Executive Director, will retire by rotation at the ensuing
AGM and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. The Board recommends their re-appointment.



C) DECLARATION BY AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S)

The Company has received a declaration of independence under sub-section (7) of section 149 of the
Companies act, 2013, from all Independent Directors. All Independent Directors have given
declarations and confirm the eligibility criteria mentioned in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,
2013.

D) KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The following persons are the Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) as on March 31, 2023:

1. Mr. Ajay Tandon, Managing Director
2. Mr. Nirmal Bhatia, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

E) FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION

Pursuant to provisions of the Act and Rules made thereunder and as provided in Schedule IV of the Act,
the formal annual evaluation is not applicable to the Company.

F) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board has, on the recommendation of the NRC, framed a policy on selection and appointment of
Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration.

G) PECUNIARY RELATIONSHIP

During the year under review, except those disclosed in the Audited Financial Statements, the non-executive
directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES

Eight (8) Board meetings were held during the financial year ended 31% March, 2023.

Sr. Date Directors Present
No.
1 02-05-2022 | All Directors were present except Mr. Apurva Shah and Ms. Aparajita Jethy
Ahuja

2 24-05-2022 | All Directors were present except Mr. Nitin Deshmukh, Dr. Kavita Singh and
Mr. Ajay Tandon

10-06-2022 | All Directors were present except Dr. Kavita Singh and Ms. Jeanne Hecht
04-08-2022 | All Directors were present except Dr. S. N. Vinaya Babu

5 18-10-2022 | All Directors were present except Dr. Kavita Singh and Mr. Jagannath
Samavedam

6 18-11-2022 | All Directors were present

06-03-2023 | All Directors were present except Dr. S. N. Vinaya Babu

8 18-03-2023 | All Directors were present except Mr. Rakesh Bhartia, Ms. Jeanne Hecht, Dr.
Kiran Marthak, Mr. Apurva Shah and Ms. Aparajita Jethy Ahuja

The Board approved 5 (Five) resolutions by circulation, vide circular dated 28™ December 2022.
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Details of Committee Meetings held during the financial year ended 31 March, 2023 is as below;

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Sr. Date Member Present
No.

1 02-05-2022 | All Committee Members were present
2 10-06-2022 | All Committee Members were present
3 14-07-2022 | All Committee Members were present
4 04-08-2022 | All Committee Members were present
5
6
7

18-10-2022 | All Committee Members were present
19-12-2022 | All Committee Members were present
23-01-2023 | All Committee Members were present

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Sr. Date Member Present
No.
1 04-08-2022 | All Committee Members were present
2 23-01-2023 | All Committee Members were present

IPO COMMITTEE
Sr. Date Member Present
No.
1 13-06-2022 | All Committee Members were present
2 01-11-2022 | All Committee Members were present except Dr. S.
N. Vinaya Babu

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Sr. Date Member Present
No.
1 22-07-2022 All Commlttee Members were present except Dr.
Kavita Singh
2 20-02-2023 | All Committee Members were present

DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM FOR DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES

The Code of Business Conduct of Company requires directors, officers and employees to observe high
standards of business and personal ethics in the conduct of their duties and responsibilities. As
employees and representatives of the Company, they must practice honesty and integrity in fulfilling
their responsibilities and comply with all applicable laws and regulations. The Company has a Whistle
Blower Policy to enable persons who observe unethical practices (whether or not a violation of law), to
approach the Whistle Blower Custodian without revealing their identity, if they choose to do so. This
Policy governs reporting and investigation of allegations that are in breach of the Code of Business
Conduct.

The Company has established a program named “MD Connect Program” which facilitates newly
recruited employees to get connected with the Managing Director of the Company. The main aim of
such a program is to make the newly recruited employees aware of the principles and value system of



the Company. Moreover, the employee is made aware of the whistle blowing policy and its importance
in the organization. The Audit Committee duly constituted is responsible to oversee the functioning of
Policy of Vigil Mechanism. The constitution of which is as below:

Sr. No. Name of Director Designation in Committee
1 Mr. Rakesh Bhartia Chairman
2 Mr. Nitin Deshmukh Member
3 Mr. Manu Sahni Member
4 Mr. Nirmal Bhatia Secretary

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into by the Company during the Financial Year ended on
March 31, 2023 with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis
and had no conflict with the interest of the Company. The particulars of every contract or arrangements
entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto are
disclosed in Form No. AOC -2 as Annexure-E.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

The Company’s Code of Business Conduct (COBC) provides broad directions as well as specific
guidelines for all business transactions. The emphasis is on human rights, prevention of fraudulent and
corrupt practices, avoidance of conflict of interest, prevention of Sexual Harassment and unyielding
integrity at all times.

Veeda is committed to the provision of a workplace, free of Sexual Harassment (“SH”) and to provide
a redressal mechanism for all complaints of SH without fear or threat of reprisals in any form or manner
whatsoever. The work place in context of SH is not restricted to the office but includes extended work
areas such as Client’s place, work related travel, cafeterias and Company sponsored events, to name a
few.

It is confirmed that the Company has duly complied with applicable provisions and has a policy in
relation to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013 including the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the
said Act.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:

i) Details of Loans

During the financial year under review, the Company has provided the loan as below:

Sr. | Details of Loan | Name of Borrower Purpose for which | Principal | Amount
No. the proceeds from | Amount | outstanding
Loan is proposed to | (INR) in | as on 31%
be utilized by the | millions March

recipient 2023
1 |Loan to Joint | Ingenuity Biosciences To meet business 12.00 -k
Venture Private Limited requirements

Company




*(During the year, an amount of INR 12.00 million was given as loan to the Ingenuity Biosciences
Private Limited. However, pursuant to its non-recoverability, the outstanding amount of loan of INR
34.00 million was written off by the Company at the end of the year)

ii) Details of Investments

During the financial year under review, the Company made the investments as below:

Sr. | Details of | Name of Investee Purpose for which the | Principal

No. | Investment proceeds from | Amount (INR)
investment is proposed | in millions

to be utilized by the

recipient
1 | Investment in | Bioneeds India Private | For Capital Expenditure 100.00
Equity Shares of | Limited
subsidiary
Company
2 | Investment in | Bioneeds India Private | Not  Applicable as 350.00
Equity Shares of | Limited Investment was made
subsidiary through acquisition of
Company equity shares through

purchase  from the
Promoter of  MJ/s.
Bioneeds India Private
Limited

iii) Details of Guarantee

During the financial year under review, the Company has provided the guarantee as below:

Sr. | Details of | Name of Party for | Purpose of | Principal | Amount of
No. | Guarantee whom Guarantee | Guarantee Amount Guarantee
provided (INR) in | outstanding
millions as on 31%
March
2023
N.A.

DISCLOSURE RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES:

Pursuant to Sub Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, below are the details of top 10 employees of the Company, receiving remuneration more
than 1,02,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore Two Lakhs only) per annum and / or Rs. 8,50,000/- (Rupees
Eight Lakhs Fifty Thousand only) per month.
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Chief CA, CS, 01/07/ Suzlon
1 | Nirmal Bhatia | Financial 1,28,00,004 | Permanent | LLB, 57 | Structures | 0.19% No 32
Officer & PGDBA 2007 Pvt. Ltd
CS
*Suresh 20/11/ ir'dd ,
. . eddy's
2 | Krishnarao President 1,20,00,000 | Permanent | PhD 57 Y - No 33
. Laborator
Kankanwadi 2021 .
ies
**Sailendra 01/03/ Enem
3 | Kumar President 1,10,00,004 | Permanent | PhD 54 | Nostrum | - No 27
Goswami 2023 Remedies

*Mr. Suresh Krishnarao Kankanwadi resigned w.e.f.7th March, 2023.
** Mr. Sailendra Kumar Goswami was appointed w.e.f 1st March, 2023.

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND RELATED

DISCLOSURES

A) Details of median ratio of the remuneration of each director pursuant to Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to your

Company.
B) Details of every employee of the Company as required pursuant to 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, will be provided upon request.
C) No director of the Company who is a Managing Director or whole time director is in receipt of any

commission from the Company.
D) The requirement of the “Corporate Governance” is not applicable to the Company. However, the

Company is complying with most of the requirements.




EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME

The Company has provided share-based incentive scheme to its employees. The relevant details of the
scheme and the grant of shares are as below.

On 20™ May, 2019, the shareholders approved the ESOP Scheme 2019 (ESOP 2019) for issue of stock
options to the key employees and directors of the Company. According to the ESOP Scheme 2019, the
employee selected by the committee from time to time will be entitled to Stock Option based on their
annual performance, subject to satisfaction of the prescribed vesting conditions described in the scheme.
The contractual life (comprising the vesting period and the exercise period) of options granted is 4 years.
The other relevant terms of the grant are as below:

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 14,91,840
Options granted during the year NIL
Options vested till year end 3,32,160
Options exercised during the year NIL
Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of option

) NIL
during the year
Options lapsed due to resignation of the employees during the 2.01.870
year UL,
Exercise price per share NIL
Variation of terms of options NIL
Money realized by exercise of options NIL
Total number of options in force 12,889,970

Employee wise details of options granted to :

Mr. Ajay Tandon: 5,25,840 options
Key managerial personnel Mr. Nirmal Bhatia: 2,44,320 options
Mr. Kiran Marthak : 23,520 options

Any other employee who receives a grant of options in any
one year of option amounting to five percent or more of NIL
options granted during that year

Identified employees who were granted option, during any
one year, equal to or exceeding one percent of the issued NIL
capital of the Company at the time of grant

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Company is not required to obtain Secretarial Audit Report pursuant to the non-applicability of the
provisions of Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

COST RECORDS

The Company is not required to maintain Cost Records as specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE

The requirement of Corporate Governance Certificate is not applicable to the Company since it is not a
listed Company.

Nevertheless, Governance at Veeda Clinical Research Ltd. (Veeda) encompasses structures, practices
and processes adopted in every sphere of the Company’s operations to provide long-term value to its
stakeholders through ethical and transparent business standards. The Company has a definite Value
System established which includes Humility, Honesty and integrity, Openness, Excellence, Innovation,
and Nurturing individual growth. These values are the core elements of governance at Veeda. The
Company, as a responsible corporate citizen, believes that the spirit of Corporate Governance stretches
beyond statutory acquiescence to meet the ethical, legal, economic and social responsibilities and is
centric to stakeholder trust and confidence. While the letter of the law is paramount in all its activities,
the spirit in which it is followed, keeps in view the interests of the stakeholders, viz, shareholders,
clients, employees, suppliers, society and regulatory bodies.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has a Risk Management Policy to identify and evaluate business risks and opportunities.
This framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on the business objectives and
enhance the Company’s competitive advantage. The constitution of Risk Management Committee is as
below:

Sr. No. Name of Director Designation in Committee
1 Dr. Kiran Marthak Chairman
2 Dr. Kavita Singh Member
3 Mr. Ajay Tandon Member
4 Dr. S. N. Vinaya Babu Member
5 Mr. Apurva Shah Member
6 Ms. Aparajita Jethy Ahuja | Member

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board has framed a Policy on selection and appointment of Director(s), Senior Management and
their remuneration. The constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as below:

Sr. No. Name of Director Designation in Committee
1 Mr. Rakesh Bhartia* Chairman
2 Mr. Nitin Deshmukh* Member
3 Mr. Vivek Chhachhi Member

* Mr. Nitin Deshmukh held the Chair of the Committee till 31% July 2023. The Board in its meeting
dated 31% July 2023 changed the designation of Mr. Rakesh Bhartia as Chairman of the Committee and
Mr. Nitin Deshmukh as Member of the Committee in compliances with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013.

CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER
The Corporate Identity Number (CIN), allotted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of
India, is U73100GJ2004PLC044023 and the Company’s Registration Number is 044023.

The Company’s Master Data and details of the compliance filings by the Company with the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, may be viewed by the members and other stakeholders at
www.mca.gov.in (MCA21eServices) using the above mentioned CIN.



DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to Directors’
Responsibility Statement, your directors confirm that —

a)

b)

c)

d)

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2023, the applicable
accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule IIT to the Act have been
followed and there are no material departures from the same;

they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2023 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.
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The Directors wish to thank and deeply acknowledge the co-operation, assistance and support extended
by customers, suppliers, financial institutions, banks, Government authorities to the Company. The
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received from the employees without whom the growth of the Company is unattainable. Your directors
look forward to the long term future with confidence.

An acknowledgement to all with whose help, co-operation and hard work the Company is able to
achieve the results.

For ﬁnd on behalf of Board of Directors
Veeda Clinical Research Limited

O

Nitin Deshmukh
Chairman

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 05/09/2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Annual Report 2022-23)
Veeda Clinical Research Limited

Introduction

Since its inception in 2004, Veeda Clinical Research has come a long way by transitioning itself
from a clinical research organization to a broad based and integrated contract research
organization. The comprehensive strengths in the business areas, namely — preclinical, clinical
and exclusive service offerings for biosimilars and biologics — allows us to broaden our scope of
reaching out to a much larger client base, whose specific needs are catered by our entities. With
our comprehensive portfolio of drug development services and our continuing investment in
infrastructure, people and process to build new capabilities relevant to our clients, we believe
that we are very well positioned to be preferred partners for global small and emerging biotech
companies for their novel drug development programs.

With acquisition of Bioneeds, we have gained comprehensive pre-clinical research capabilities,
across two facilities in Bangalore, which include GLP accredited animal vivariums, chemistry,
biopharma, and analytical laboratories, to support preclinical drug development solutions.

India’s promising Contract Research Services Market

The ever-growing Contract Research Services market in India has come a long way in establishing
the credentials of being a globally accepted service-oriented industry that delivers promise of
quality, compliance and timeliness in its research deliverables.

The research-focused services, offered by Contract Research Organizations (CROs), encompass
all phases of the drug development lifecycle, from compound selection, discovery, preclinical (in-
vitro and in-vivo) research, clinical testing, as well as post-approval functions such as
commercialization, safety assessment, monitoring, and consulting, among other services.

Exhibit: Drug Development Life Cycle: Timeline for New Drug Approvals, as per US FDA

m !
compouids 5 compounds | 1 FDA approved drug
D SN ST
mmq Preclinical Clinical Trials FDAReview | Manufacturing
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b PhaseV
i Post Approval
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Average Total Cost: USD 1 Billion Total Duration: 10-15 years

Source: US FDA
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Indian CRO market captures about 3% of the global
market share by value, is expected to grow with a
CAGR of about 12% till 2026. The recent favourable
changes in the Indian regulatory landscape for the
CRO industry, higher acceptability of India as an
outsourcing destination by the global pharmaceutical

India CRO Market

® Clinical Trials

Product
Development
Process

Development

companies and favorable demographics in terms of W Z.f.’,’f..ﬁ.‘:’,.“:if"“"
cost, technical skills and diversity of volunteers ® Quality Monitoring

required for trials are driving the Indian CRO market. s
The cost of carrying out clinical trials in India is nearly

40-70% less when compared to other counterparts in Europe or the U.S. This along with skill sets
and ease of doing business is fueling the market growth of Indian CROs.

In addition to this, the Indian CROs offer:

1. Extensive scientific competence to service a global clientele ensuring high customer
centricity and satisfaction

2. Successful track record of stringent compliance culture

3. Technology driven CRO solutions that enhance operating efficiencies and compliance
management

4. Skilled personnel and experienced professional management with focus on continuous
professional development

Pharmaceutical R&D spend on the rise: The Indian CRO market witnessed growth owing to
increasing number of clinical trials amidst an increasing demand for effective and novel vaccines
to curb the SARS-CoV2 virus. Many biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies are noted to
have made long-term agreements, collaborations, and partnerships with Indian CROs.

As per a recent market research report, the global pharmaceutical R&D spend is estimated to
grow at a CAGR of 3.6% by 2026. The market research analysis also reflects that the R&D spend
by top 20 and other large players form the largest segment of the pie (7%) by 2026; however,
small and mid-sized pharmaceutical companies will drive the spending at a CAGR of 6.1%. This
gives many opportunities to Indian CROs to grab a major pie of global R&D outsourced work from
big-sized companies as well as small and mid-sized pharmaceutical companies.

For research outsourced to Indian CROs, the higher rate is observed in clinical trials and
toxicology drug value chain. Due to the different technical difficulties at each stage (i.e.,
preclinical and clinical trials), the outsourcing rate varies at all stages with a low rate of
outsourcing observed during early stages of research and development and a higher rate during
the clinical trial phase due to more work on process standardization.
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Trends in the CRO Services Market: Higher investment in CROs combined with rising adoption of
key companies relying on the specialized CROs for clinical trials are amongst some of the trends
observed in the Indian CRO market. Innovator and novel generic pharmaceutical companies have
been consistently investing in developing new drugs thereby supporting large-scale drug
discovery activities. A large number of novel new drug applications are filed by niche innovator
companies who outsource drug discovery and pre-clinical studies to CROs.

1. The Preclinical segment is expected to witness lucrative growth on account of a rise in
the demand for pharmacokinetic services to support toxicology tests for IND-enabling
studies. The relevance of toxicology testing, bioanalysis and DMPK testing are crucial and
important stages of the drug development process and the demand is driven by increased
outsourcing of preclinical research by small-to-mid segment pharmaceutical companies.

2. The global generic drug industry is witnessing rising number of losses of patent and
exclusivity of innovator drugs, which in-turn is propelling the Bioavailability and
Bioequivalence (BA/BE) studies for Indian CROs. India is a preferred destination for BA/
BE studies due to its current CRO infrastructure, emergence and growth of the biosimilars
industry, increased demand for complex generics, availability of healthy volunteers to
participate in the BA/ BE studies, cost-efficiency, changing regulatory landscape and
evolving clinical trials ecosystem in the country.

BE Study Centres in India (State wise) Approved Bioanalytical Centre in India

" Gujarat
® Maharashtra
®Goa
 Karnataka
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Figure 2: CDSCO approved Bio-analytical facilities in India.

The generic drug market value is projected to reach USD 517 billion in the next five years,
expanding at a CAGR of 4.9%. There is a significant growth opportunity for standalone
bioanalytical services, which can be capitalized by Indian CROs through expansion and
growth of bio-analytical capabilities.

3. Increasing focus on Biosimilars Industry: Indian CROs have made rapid strides in offering
niche services to ever-growing biosimilar industry, which has advantage of patent losses
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of key biologics. As per market research estimates, while the global market for biosimilars
is estimated to grow at a CAGR of 17.3% with, a market size of ~ USD 79.2 billion in 2026,
the biosimilars market in India is estimated to grow at a CAGR of 34%, increasing to ~ USD
2.54 billion in 2026.

India continues to have the attributes that should progressively enhance the scale of clinical trials
in the country to support the global development of novel medicines and therapies. The aspects
that have changed significantly over the recent years, and is reflecting in the growth in global
clinical trials that include India, are:

- The New Drugs and Clinical Trial Rules of 2019 have provided clarity on key concern areas
such as a) regulatory approval processes and timelines; b) ethics committee operations
and oversight responsibilities; and c) sponsor compensation liabilities in case of Serious
Adverse Events observed in the trial participants. Moreover, there is continuing focus by
the regulator to streamline systems and procedures to facilitate clinical trials with data
integrity and quality aligned with global standards.

- The network and quality of investigator sites have evolved quite significantly with well-
trained and equipped trial professionals and infrastructure conducting trials in
compliance with ICH GCP standards and successfully qualifying under global regulatory
inspections. The network has been developed by an increasing base of high quality Indian
CROs in collaboration with the major pharmaceutical companies operating in India.

- Theincreased agility, maturity and quality of the entire Indian clinical trial ecosystem has
been very well demonstrated through the successful and rapid conduct of large scale
COVID related clinical trials that were globally accepted.

The ecosystem is continuing to expand and develop further, which should underline continuing
relevance and participation of India in global clinical trials.

Veeda is poised to benefit from multiple factors such as the growing need of pharmaceutical and
biopharmaceutical companies to minimize their time and cost and to also augment their
efficiency and expertise in launching new formulations in the market. By building on core
strengths around preclinical services, augmenting bioanalytical research capabilities, and
focusing on niche services for biosimilar industry, Indian CROs including Veeda has a very bright
future prospect of aligning itself to the research needs of global companies.

Business Proposition: Adding Value to Pharmaceutical Research

With the broad overview and analysis, outlined above, it is imperative to highlight Veeda’s
approach and efforts towards achieving business objectives. As a leading player in the Indian
research services sector, Veeda believes in

1. Client Centricity:
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The Vision and Mission statements embodies our focus on being increasingly relevant
to our clients and being their preferred partners.

Our management and business development teams are actively engaging with the
industry as well as our clients to understand the direction of research and the service
gaps with our clients, which channelize our capability development.

Veeda has very broad set of accreditations to be relevant for most requirements,
strong quality credentials that we work diligently to maintain including regular quality
reviews, human resource training and investment in technology to deploy controls,
oversight and operating efficiencies.

Veeda’s unwavering focus on client and project prioritization to meet required
execution timelines as per client program requirements. Our growing adoption of
technology will play a crucial role in achieving operational efficiencies and reducing
delivery timelines with the desired quality standards.

We progressively review our various client experience touch points, on a prioritized
basis, to enhance client experience with us and track performance based on client
feedback with these touch points. Based on a semi-annual Client Satisfaction survey
undertaken by us, we are encouraged by the strong improvement in these scores,
which reflect continuing progress in our client experience initiatives.

2. Improving Operational Efficiency:
(a) Veeda Clinical Research is a scientific research focused, service organization, which is

significantly reliant on high quality human resources. The ability to drive higher
productivity and value add per resource through scientific and operational excellence
is key to long term sustainability.

(b) Veeda operates in a highly competitive environment and notwithstanding the current

(c)

value proposition; we need to continuously drive operating efficiency for better
delivery timelines, quality standards and operating costs so that we keep enhancing
our value proposition to our clients and our financial performance for supporting our
long-term growth objectives.

We have baselined our productivity metrics for our key operating departments and
are tracking improvements as we drive operational initiatives. We are rapidly
deploying technology platforms to digitize and automate processes, which will drive
operating efficiencies and quality controls with better human resource productivity.
As we digitize, we are reviewing our operating procedures to simplify them to serve
the same objectives of ease of operations, efficiency and quality outcomes.

Veeda is transitioning from being a clinical research organization into a broad based and
integrated contract research organization. We see significant growth for preclinical and
clinical research services over the medium to long term. With our comprehensive
portfolio of drug development services and our continuing investment in infrastructure,
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people and process to build new capabilities relevant to our clients, we believe that we
are very well positioned to be preferred partners for innovative pharmaceutical and
biopharmaceutical clients globally for their critical drug development programs.

Veeda: Growth trajectory and the way forward

Veeda Clinical Research has taken strides and is making consistent efforts towards offering
services to a broader set of clients by consolidating its business and adopting to new technology.
Over the past several years, Veeda has differentiated itself by delivering innovative, flexible, high-
quality, customer-driven solutions to become the leading CRO in India and has a track record for
conducting specialized, complex, clinical trial projects. There are several factors, which we feel,
are growth drivers for us in the near future.

1.

Increase presence across regulated markets in the US and the EU

We are expanding our reach to small and medium-sized generic pharmaceutical
companies in US and the EU based on our capabilities in complex studies, successful
record of accomplishment in regulatory inspections and the cost advantage of conducting
clinical trials in India, which is nearly half the cost of conducting a clinical trial in a
developed country. We are also exploring strategic alliances in these key markets to
extend our service capabilities to meet our client requirements.

Increased focus on pre-clinical services to facilitate innovator drug development and
discovery

Innovator and novel generic pharmaceutical companies have been consistently investing
in developing new drugs thereby supporting large-scale drug discovery activities.
Bioneeds provides research, analytical, and development solutions to drug sponsors from
the discovery through development stages. With Bioneeds, we intend to offer a wide
range of pre-clinical services complemented by our early phase clinical services to
innovator pharmaceutical companies in order to provide them with comprehensive drug
development support. We see significant opportunity to service the innovation
ecosystem in India. We intend to leverage the market opportunities in India, build our
credibility in the domestic CRO market, and further extend these services to global clients
in our key markets. We believe that the synergies arising from integrating the products
and services offered by our different business units, coupled with our infrastructure,
technology products and services, extensive expertise and experience will differentiate
us from our competitors.

Expand and consolidate market presence in Biosimilars

The Biosimilar industry is expected to grow significantly due to large patent cliff that is
expected in the next five years.
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With specific focus on offering niche research services to biosimilars and biologics
companies, we intend to service the market opportunities in India and Asia and further
extend these services to other regulated markets of the EU and the USA. We are
consolidating our capabilities in biosimilars to offer end-to-end and modular technical
services, encompassing both pre-clinical and clinical domains. The scientific team is
comprised of scientists with in-depth knowledge of bioassay method development and
sample analysis, clinical trial management, and global regulatory requirements and with
an experience on working on biosimilar molecules for India and global registration.

4. Strengthening our bioanalytical services

We are focused on strengthening our bioanalytical capabilities in biosimilars, complex
generics and patient-based clinical trials. We have bioanalytical capabilities to service
small molecule drug development, both for new molecules as well as generic products.
We offer these services as a part of our complete clinical trial services as well as in the
form of a standalone central bioanalytical laboratory services offering to global
pharmaceutical companies and other clinical research organizations.

5. Building on our core strength of BA & BE studies

BA & BE studies remain Veeda’s core strength as we continue to expand our service
capabilities and clientele globally, particularly in the areas of complex studies involving
complex molecules or complex designs in areas such as phase 1 clinical pharmacology
studies, inhalation studies, glucose clamps and dermatology. Further, we are also making
investments in technology to enhance the quality, processing efficiency and cost
competitiveness across our operations.

6. Enhancing capabilities in clinical trials

While the Indian clinical trials market is 2.4% of the global clinical trials market in 2021, it
is expected to grow faster than the global market to become about 3.1% of the market
share by 2026. To address market growth, we have significantly strengthened our
capabilities in clinical trials with experienced medical affairs and project management
teams, comprehensive technology platform and have augmented our capabilities in data
management, biostatistics and modelling services.

The public perception about clinical trials in India has witnessed a drastic change. With
the emergence of high quality CROs that operate in compliance with global safety, ethical
and regulatory norms, the stronger regulatory oversight on the industry and active
industry forums that bring together diverse stakeholders to enhance the operating
ecosystem for the industry, the industry has significantly matured and the public
perception thereof has definitely changed over the last several years, which is also
reflecting in the increasing volunteer participation in clinical research.
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India is well poised for strengthening its role in global pharmaceutical research and Veeda, as a
leading Indian CRO with strong ambitions and capabilities, is well positioned to leverage the
significant opportunities that the future presents.
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Form AOC- 1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule § of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) :

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate
companies or Joint ventures

PART-A: SUBSIDIARY

(INR in millions)
Name of Subsidiary Bioneeds India Private | Amthera Life Sciences
Limited (Subsidiary) | Private Limited (Step-
down subsidiary)
The date since when subsidiary was acquired 25-05-2021 25-05-2021
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, N.A, N.A.
if different from the holding company's
reporting period
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on N.A. N.A.
the last date of the relevant Financial year in
the case of foreign subsidiaries
Share Capital 73.81 0.10
Reserves and surplus 285.90 0.79
Total Assets 1,880.97 1.18
Total Equity and Liabilities 1880.97 1.18
Investments - -
Turnover 1,134.52 -
Other Income 14.71 9.34
Profit Before Taxation 249.40 9.01
Provision for Taxation 67.50 0.30
Profit after Taxation 181.90 8.71
Proposed Dividend N.A. N.A,
Extent of Shareholding in % 87.00 87.00% (100%
shareholding held by
Bioneeds India Private
Limited- Subsidiary Co.)

Notes:

1. Names of suibsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: NIL
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: NIL

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Veeda Clinical Research Limited

g0, @c&
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Nitin Deshmukh Ajay Tandon Nirmal Bhatia
Chairman Managing Director Company Secretary & CFO
DIN: 00060743 DIN: 02210072 ICSI Membership No. 12551 -

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 05/09/2023

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 05/09/2023

Place: Toronto, Canada
Date: 05/09/2023



PART-B: JOINT VENTURES
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companics and Joint Ventures

(INR in millions)

Name of Associates or Joint Ventures

Ingenuity Biosciences Private
Limited

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

31-03-2023

Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated
or acquired

16-02-2021

Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by the company
on the year end

3,50,000 Equity Shares

Amount of Investment in Associates or Joint Venture 3.50

Extent of Holding (in percentage) 50%

Description of how there is significant influence Incorporation of Company by
entering into Joint Venture
Agreement with M/s. Somru
Bioscience Inc. (Canada)

Reason why the associate/Joint venture is not consolidated. N.A.

Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited 1127

Balance Sheet

Profit or Loss for the year 25.94

1) Considered in Consolidation 12.97

2) Not Considered in Consolidation 12.97

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: NIL
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the Year: NIL

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Veeda Clinical Research Limited

B q@{o&

Nitin Deshmukh Ajay Tandon
Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 00060743 DIN: 02210072

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 05/09/2023

Place: Toronto, Canada
Date: 05/09/2023

NA B~

Nirmal Bhatia
Company Secretary & CFO
ICSI Membership No. 12551
Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 05/09/2023




Annexure C

Explanation to the observations of the Auditor mentioned in ‘Annexure 1’ of the Independent
Auditor’s report

Explanation to the observations of the Auditor mentioned in the ‘Annexure 1’ of the Independent
Auditor’s report:

In Statutory Audit Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of Veeda Clinical
Research Limited

Clause (iii)(c)

The Company has granted loan during the year to company where schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated. However, Company has not received the interest on loan given to
aforesaid joint venture and the principal amount thereof has been written off.

Explanation: Pursuant to non-recoverability of the loan granted to Ingenuity Biosciences Private
Limited - Joint Venture Company, the board of the Company has decided to write off the said loan
along with Interest in its meeting dated 18™ July 2023.

In Statutory audit Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of Bioneeds India
Private Limited

Clause (i)(a)(A):

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of property, plant and equipment except asset identification number and quantitative details for
certain assets of earlier years.

Explanation: The Subsidiary Company of the Company is in the process of compiling the pending
Tagging details for the property, plant and equipment which were acquired before April 01, 2018.
The quantum of the same is approximately 3% of total carrying amount as on March 31,
2023. Moreover, w.e.f. April 01, 2018, all the items of property, plant and equipment are
appropriately tagged and will be tagged in future as well in compliance with the policies of the
Subsidiary Company of the Company.

Clause (iii)(b):

The terms and condition of loans granted by the Company to the aforesaid subsidiary company are
prejudicial to the Company’s interest on account of the fact that the loans provided are interest free. Also,
loan given to aforesaid subsidiary company of Rs 8.34 million has been written off in the financial statement
of the Company.

Explanation: The Subsidiary Company of the Company has granted loan in compliance with Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 by taking requisite Board Approval dated 19" September 2019 and
Shareholders Approval dated 22" September 2021 of the Subsidiary Company of the Company. The
qualification stated by the auditor is with reference to the Loan being interest free in nature which is
considered as prejudicial to the Subsidiary Company of the Company. In explanation to the said
remarks, your directors hereby state that as on 31°* March 2023, Amthera Lifesciences Private



Limited is wholly owned (100%) subsidiary company of Bioneeds India Private Limited. Hence, in
opinion of the directors it is not considered as prejudicial to the interest of the company. Further,
pursuant to non-recoverability of the loan granted to Amthera Lifesciences Private Limited -
Subsidiary Company of the Company, the management of the Subsidiary Company of the Company
has decided to write off the said loan along with interest.

Clause (iii)(c):

The Company has granted loan to aforesaid subsidiary company, where the schedule of repayment of
principal has been stipulated. However, these loans are interest free and hence recovery of the same is not
applicable. Moreover, the principal amount on the aforesaid loan has been written off during the year.

Explanation: The Subsidiary Company of the Company has written off the loan amount receivable
from its subsidiary company because there is no certainty in revenue generation and recoverability
of the loan.

Clause (iv):
There are no loans, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has given loan to one company which is not in compliance to the provisions of section 186
of the Companies Act 2013 and are detailed in the table below:

Non-Compliance of Section 186 of the Act:

S.No. | Name of the Nature of non-compliance Maximum Balance as
Company amount at Balance
outstanding sheet date
1 Amthera Lifesciences | Loan given is interest free and | Rs. 8.34 million | Rs. Nil
Private Limited hence below the market
prevailing rate of interest.

Further, in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
guarantees and securities given during the year in respect of which provision of 186 of the Act are applicable
and hence not commented upon.

Explanation: The Subsidiary Company of the Company has granted loan in compliance with Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 by taking requisite Board Approval dated 19" September 2019 and
Shareholders Approval dated 22" September 2021 of the Subsidiary Company of the Company. The
qualification stated by the auditor is solely with reference to the Loan being interest free in nature
which is considered as prejudicial to the Subsidiary Company of the Company. In explanation to the
said remarks, your directors hereby state that as on 31°* March 2023, Amthera Lifesciences Private
Limited is wholly owned (100%) subsidiary company of Bioneeds India Private Limited. Hence, in
opinion of the directors it is not considered as prejudicial to the interest of the Subsidiary Company
of the Company.



Clause (vii)(a):

Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, duty of custom, cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. According to the information
and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, undisputed amounts payable
in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable, are as follows:

Statement of Arrears of Statutory Dues Outstanding for More than Six Months:

Period to
Name of the Statute | Nature of the Dues | Amount | Whichthe | 1 ;o | Dateof
amount Payment
relates
IGST Act, CGST Interest on late Rs. 0.15 2020-21 | September | Unpaid as
Act and SGST Act, | filing of Goods and | million | and 2021- | 14,2021 |at March
2017 Service tax returns 22 31,2023

Explanation: The Subsidiary Company of the Company shall remit said dues during current
financial year i.e. the financial year commencing from 1* April 2023.

Clause (ix)(d):

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that the company has used funds
raised on short- term basis aggregating to Rs. 16.68 million for long-term purposes.

Explanation: The Subsidiary Company of the Company has ensured the compliance of this clause on
a per annum basis. However during the current financial year i.e. the financial year commencing
from 1st April 2023, the company has started making remittance for capex procurement from its
current account to avoid utilization of funds from cash credit account.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Nitin Deshmukh.
Chairman

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 05/09/2023
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ANNEXURE-D

Annual Report on CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) Activities

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there
under, the Board has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. During
the year under review, a meeting of CSR Committee were held on 22" July, 2022 and 20™
February, 2023.

The terms of reference of the CSR Committee includes formulating and recommending to the
Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which indicate the activities to be undertaken
by the Company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, recommending the
amount of expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities, providing guidance on various
CSR activities to be undertaken by the Company and monitoring the CSR Policy of the
Company from time to time.

Pursuant to the recommendation of the CSR Committee, the Board has approved a Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) Plan.

The details required pursuant to Section 135 of the Act are provided in SCHEDULE-I to this
Report.

sfeskoskosk
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SCHEDULE-1

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD'S
REPORT
(Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013)

1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy

Pursuant to the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, the
Company has framed a CSR Policy.

The Company’s CSR vision & mission is to contribute to the social, economic and
environmental development of the community in which the Company operates. The Company
may undertake any one or more CSR activities as specified in the CSR Policy.

As permitted under Rule 4(2) of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, the Management of the Company has identified following institutes through which it has
decided to carry out CSR activities:

Sr. No. Name of the Implementing Agency
1 Shree Krishnayan Desi Gauraksha Avam Golokdham Sewa Samiti
2 Rotary Club of Bombay Queen's Necklace Charitable Trust
3 Indraprastha Cancer Society and Research Centre
4 Shri Bharat Saraswati Mandir Sansad
5 Vidhya Prachar Mandal — Direct

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee

As on the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023, the composition of CSR Committee is as
follow;

Sr. | Name of | Designation / Nature of | Number of | Number of
No. | Director Directorship meetings of CSR | meetings of CSR
Committee held | Committee

during the year | attended during the

year

1 | Ms. Aparajita | Chairman 2 2
Jethy Ahuja | Non-executive Director

2 | Dr. Kavita Member 2 1
Singh Independent Director

3 | Mr. Apurva | Member 2 2
Shah Non-executive Director

4 | Dr. Kiran Member 2 2

Marthak Non-executive Director
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3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

Composition of CSR Committee: https://www.veedacr.com/corporate-governance/

CSR Policy: https://www.veedacr.com/corporate-governance/

CSR projects approved by the board: www.veedacr.com/about/csr-initiatives/

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of
sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, if applicable (attach the report): N.A.

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required
for set off for the financial year, if any

Sr. Financial Year Amount available for set- | Amount required to be
No. off from preceding | set-off for the financial
financial years (in Rs.) year, if any (in Rs.)
1 2019-2020 0 0
2020-2021 0 0
3 2021-2022 2,948 2,948

6. Average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013:
Rs.38,63,87,221/-

7. a. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs.38,63,87,221/-
b. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: NIL
c. Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL
d. Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7¢c): Rs.77,27,744/-

8. a. CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Spent  for  the | Tota] Amount transferred | Amount transferred to any fund
Financial Year to Unspent CSR Account as | specified under Schedule VII as per

(in Rs.) per section 135(6) second proviso to section 135(5)
Amount Date of Name of Amount Date of
transfer the Fund transfer

Rs.77,27,744/- N.A.
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b. Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
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Details of CSR Amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial

year:
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As per Schedule -2 attached to this report

d. Amount spent on Administrative Overheads: NIL

Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: N.A.

c.

Total amount spent for the financial year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs.77,27,744/-

f.

g. Excess amount for set off, if any: Rs. 2,948/-
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Sr. No. Particular Amount in Rs.

I Two percent of the average net profit of the company as per 77,27,744
section 135(5)

ii Total amount spent for the financial year 77,27,744

1ii Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii) — ()] -

v Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or 2,948
activities of the previous financial years, if any

v Amount available for set-off in succeeding financial years (2,948)
[(ii1)-(iv)]

9. a. Details of unspent CSR Amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sr. | Preceding | Amount Amount | Amount transferred to any fund specified | Amount remaining
No. |F. Y. transferred to | spent in | under schedule VII as per section 135(6), | to be spent in
unspent CSR | the if any succeeding
Account reporting Financial Years (In
under Sec. | F. Y. (in Rs.)
135(6)  (in | Rs.) Name of the | Amount Date of
Rs.) fund (In Rs.) Transfer
NIL
b. Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the
preceding financial years(s):
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
Sr. No. | Project | Name F.Y.in Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of
ID of the which duration | amount spent on amount spent at | the project
project | project was allocated | the project the end of Completed
commenced for the in the reporting /Ongoing
project reporting Financial Year.
(in Rs.) F. Y. (in (in Rs.)
Rs.)
N.A.

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset
so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details)

is registered, their address etc.: N.A.

a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): N.A.
b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: N.A.
c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset




d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and
location of the capital asset): N.A.

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the
average net profit as per section 135(5). - N.A

G g

Ajay Tandon “Aphrajita Jethy Ahuja
Managing Director Chairman to CSR Committee
DIN: 02210072 DIN: 08298911

Place: Toronto, Canada Place: Delhi
Date: 05/09/2023 Date: 05/09/2023




SCHEDULE-2 TO CSR REPORT

Sr. | Name | Item from the Local Location of the project. | Project | Amount Amount Mode of Mode of Implementation -
No. | ofthe | list of activities area duration | allocated | transferred | Implementation Through Implementing
Project | in Schedule VII | (Yes/No) for the to Unspent - Direct Agency
to the Act State District .prOJect CSR (Yes/No). Name CSR
(in Lakh) | Account for ) )
the project Registration
number
as
per section
135(6) (in
Rs.)
1 N.A. | Animal welfare, No Uttarakhand | Haridwar N.A. 12.55 N.A. No Shree CSR0026574
Ensuring Krishnayan
environmental Desi
sustainability Gauraksha
Avam
Golokdham
Sewa Samiti
2 N.A. | Promoting health No Maharashtra | Mumbai N.A. 25.00 N.A. No Rotary Club | CSR00004403
care  including of Bombay
preventinve Queen's
health care, Necklace
Promoting Charitable
education Trust
3 N.A. | Promoting health No Delhi Delhi N.A. 20.00 N.A. No Indraprastha | CSR00004278
care  including Cancer




preventinve Society and
health care Research
Centre
N.A. | Promoting No Gujarat Junagadh N.A. 15.00 N.A. No Shri Bharat | CSR00046413
education Saraswati
Mandir
Sansad
Vidhya | Promoting Yes Gujarat Ahmedabad | N.A. 4.72 N.A. Yes - -
Prachar | education
Mandal
Total 77.27




Annexure - £
FORM NO. AOC -2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis: Not Applicable

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm'’s length basis.

Sr. No. | Particulars | Details of Transactions

Refer Schedule-1

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Veeda Clinical Research Limited

il b

Nitin Deshmukh
Chairman

Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 05/09/2023

Encl; as stated




Schedule-1 to Annexure-E

;:;' Particulars Details of Transactions
Bioneeds India R/llﬁ;ul'i;lr;l? Mr. Apurva
1 Name (s) of the related party & Private Limited Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited (Joint (Non- Shah (Non-
nature of relationship (Subsidiary Venture Company) . Executive
Company) Executive Director)
Director)
Sale or
Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ | Sale or purchase of Service purchase of Professional Lease Rent
2 . ) Lease Rent .
transaction goods or services Agreement goods or Service Fee
services
Duration of the 01-10-2021 to 01-04-2018 to
3 contracts/arrangements/transaction F.Y.2022-23 N-A. N.A. F.Y.2022-23 31-07-2024 31-03-2023
2,00,000 per INR 55,000/-per
month (GXP: month for April
25,000/- & 2022 till INR INR 3,00,000
Salient terms of the contracts or | Up to Rs.25,00,000/- Non-GXP: December 2022 per month
. X 1,00,00,000/- INR 50,000/-
4 | arrangements or transaction | In ordinary course of 1,75,000/-) (INR One On the terms as er month
including the value, if any business On the terms as | INR 60,638 per per the executed p
Crore)
per the month for agreement
executed January 2023 till
agreement March 2023
03-03-2021
5 Date of approval by the Board 04-08-2022 18-10-2022 78-12-2022 18-10-2022 19-11-2021 24-11-2017
6 ?nayte of approval by shareholder, if N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 22-11-2021 NA.
7 Amount paid as advances, if any NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL




S R B C & CO LLP 21st Flear, B Wing, Priviian
Ambli BRT Road, Behind lskcon Temple
Chartered Accountants CIf SG Highway, Ahmedabad - 380 059, India
Tel : +91 79 6608 3300
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Veeda Clinical Research Limited (Formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research
Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Veeda Clinical Research
Limited (formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited) (“the Company"), which
comprise the Standalone Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss, including the Standalone Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone
Cash Flow Statement and the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the Standalone financial
statements).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the 'Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the
standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

SREBCA&COLLR & Limited Lianuity Partnessing with LLP ldentily Mo, 822 5318
Reqd OFice 1 22, Camac Sleeel, Black "B, 3ed Floon, Kolata-TO0 014
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Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safequarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our. opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggreqate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the clrcumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adeguate
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such cantrols.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conciude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
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accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactiens and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we givein
the “"Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books; except that the backup of the
books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been
maintained on servers physically located in India on daily basis.

(c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Standalone Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Cash Flow
Statement and Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in paragraph (b} above.

(@) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
standalone financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;
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(h) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 21.1 to the standalone financial
statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

ili. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities ("Funding Parties'), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants ;
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003
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Annexure 1 referred to in Paragraph of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of
our report of even date of Veeda Clinical Research Limited (foermerly known as Veeda Clinical
Research Private Limited) for the year ended March 31, 2023.

i (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a) (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles
assets.

(b) Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during
the year in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them over the period of
three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company
and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
use assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(i}d)} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the reguirement to report on clause 3(i)(e) of the
Crder is not applicable to the Company.

ii (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification by the management is reasonable and the coverage
and procedure for such verification is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in
aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on such physical verification.

(b) As disclosed in note 36 to the standalone financial statements, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks
during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. The quarterly
returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks are materially in agreement with
the books of accounts of the Company.

iii {a) During the year the Company has provided loan to One Company as follows:
Particulars Loans
Aggregate amount granted during the year to Joint Venture Rs. 12.00 Million

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above | Rs. Nil*
loan to Joint Venture

* Company has written off outstanding loan balance of Rs 34.00 million as mentioned in
Note 4.5 to the standalone financial statement.

Further, the Company has not provided advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee
and provided security to any other companies, firms, Limited liability Partnerships or any
other parties.
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(b) During the year the terms and conditions of the grant of loan to Company is not
prejudicial to the Company's interest. According to the information and explanation give
to us, the Company has not provided guarantees, provided security and granted advances
in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties.

(¢) The Company has granted loan during the year to company where schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. However, Company
has not received the interest on loan given to aforesaid joint venture and the principal
amount thereof has been written off.

(d) There are no amounts other than the aforesaid loans which has been written off and
advances in the nature of loans are granted to companies or any other parties which are
overdue for more than ninety days.

(e) There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to
companies or any other parties which was fallen due during the year, that have been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given
to the same parties.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to any
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause adiixt) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Loans and investments in respect of which provisions of section 185 and ‘186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the Company. Further,
according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no guarantees and
securities given in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of Companies Act,
2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order
is not applicable to that extent and hence not commented upon.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as
prescribed. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees' state insurance, income-tax, duty of custom, cess and other statutory dues
have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has
been a slight delay in a few cases. According to the information and explanations given to
us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess,
and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as
follows:
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(Amount in millions)

Nature of | Amount Period to which the | Forum where
Nama of Statute Dues Involved* | amount relates dispute is pending
Finance Act, . ¥ CESTAT,
1994 Service tax 1.30 | FY 2008-09 Amedabat
Finance Act, . _ July, 2012 to Mar, | CESTAT,
1994 Service tax 21.95 2014 Ahmedabad
A . _ | Principal Comm.
i Act: | service tax 45.64 §g°7 00 18 @all~ | o GST,
Ahmedabad
Finance Act, ; FY 2014-15 to | CESTAT,
1994 SEyVICE Ha 11069 | 5515-16 Ahmedabad
Finance Act, " 2 Comm. (Appeals),
1994 Service tax 16.87 | FY 2015-16 Ehinadabat
Custom Act, 1962 Custom 579 2012-13 to 2013- Prancmai_
Duty 14 Commissioner
Custom 2013-14 to 2016- | CESTAT,
Custom Act, 1962 Duty 1.97 17 St

*Net of amount paid under protest amounting to Rs. 2.08 million.

vili. The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

ix (a) The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings or interest thereon due
to any lender during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ixXa) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

(c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company did not raise any funds during the year hence, the requirement to report
on clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries or joint venture. Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(f) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

X (a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /
further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the reguirement to report on
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has complied with provisions of sections 42 and 62 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of the preferential allotment / private placement of shares during the
year. The amount raised along with opening unutilised balance, have been used for the
purposes for which the funds were raised except for idle/surplus funds amounting to Rs
1,206.15 which were not required for immediate utilization and which have been gainfully
invested in liquid investments payable on demand. The maximum amount of idle/surplus
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funds invested during the year was Rs 1,206.15 million, of which Rs 743.13 million was
outstanding at the end of the year.

(a) No material fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Gevernment.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xiiXa), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company. '

The transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to
the standalone financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for
the period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(@) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)a)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank
of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 33 to the standalone financial
statements, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
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of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

XX (3) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are
required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act (the
Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This
matter has been disclosed in note 25 to the standalone financial statements.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section
135 of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 25 to the standalone
financial statements.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's report of even date on the standalone financial
statements of Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research
Private Limited).

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™).

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Veeda Clinical Research
Limited (formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited) ("the Company") as of March
31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls system with reference to these standalone financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to these standalone financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to these
standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls systems over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external
-..purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
~financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements
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includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to
these standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to
these standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI

ForSRBC&COLLP
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Veeidu Clinical Resenrch Limited (formerly known as "Veedn Clinical Research Privaic Limited"})
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
(AN amounis in rupees million, unfess stheranse stated)

Particulars Notes As at March 31, 2023 As at Mareh 31,2022
L ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a) Property, plant and equipiment ER| 66913 390,27
(b} Capital work-in-progress 33 46 34 B8 3%
() Right of use assets 34 355.64 298 47
(d) Other intanygible asscts 32 32.45 221
(e} Intanyible assets under development 332 3315 13,72
(f} Financial assets
(i) Investments 41 2,131 50 1,651.32
(i) Loans 45 : 2234
(i) Other financial assets 4.6 35732 162,54
(2} Deferrad fox nssets (net) 20 E346 67.59
(h) Income tax asscts [net) 5 206,82 195 54
{1} Other non-gurrent assets [ 1502 1277
Total non-ciarrent assefs 3.976.38 2.915.16
Current asseis
{a) Inventories 7 45,95 69.94
{b) Financial assets
(i} Investrenis 4.1 TEQLT 1117.28
(ii} Trade receivables 4.2 711.40 775.52
(10} Cash and cash equivalents 43 333.20 57716
(iv} Bank balance olher than (i) gbove 4.4 244 00 28.36
() Other linancial assets 4.6 37409 A77.03
(c) Onher current assels 6 134.39 R L3
Total eurrent assets 2.628.20 3,081,587
Tuotal assets 6,604,558 5.066.73
Il. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equily
(2} Equity Share capital 8 105,78 105,78
(b} Crher equity g 5,106.02 4,631,835
Total Equity 5211.80 4,737.63
Liahilities
Non-currend liabilities
(2) Financial habilities ‘
(i} Lease liabilities | 37485 305.66
(i) Other financial liahililies 102 0.50 Q.50
(b) Provisions 12 53.46 3618
Tatal non-current lisbilities 428.41 34235
Current liabililies
() Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 31 T840 72.14
() Trade payables
(2) voral outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 25,78 3550
Eh]_h‘-la! Outsdml_d.in-:', dues of creditors other than micre enterprises and 101 16613 it
smill enterprises
(i} Other finaneial lighilities 10.2 156,80 173.20
{b) Other current liahilities 11 52217 41081
(e} Provisions 12 14.70 1603
Total current liabilities 963.97 886,75
Total Hubilities 1,392.78 1,222.10
Total équity and liabilities 6,604.58 5.9606.73
Summary of significant accounting policies 21
Summiary of significant uucuumingjudgqmsgls, estimates and assumptions 22
: e :
The sccompanying notes I‘?En TEEI,E]{ p%l_‘ﬂ?m;‘e standalone financial stalements.
e, = Y
As per our report afc:j‘ef;'g#alé‘ \{f’ }\“s
ForSRBC& Co;‘jl'..];lj \("@\t’, For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accounigits’. \ % l1‘. Veeda Clinieal Research Limited
ICAL FRN: 324982EEI(0003 2 ! (formerly known as "Veedn Clinical Rescarch Private Limited")
W\ 5‘2} (CIN : U73100GI2004PLCD44623)
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited"}

Statement of Standalone Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2023
(Al amounts in nipees million, unless otherwise stated)

Sr. No. Particulars Motes Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022
M |Revenue from operations 13 2,%51.53 2,23931
(IT)  |Other income 14 91.47 4227
(TIT) |Total Income (I+ 11} 3,053.00 128158
(IV) |Expenses
Cost of material consumed 15 178.10 18831
Employee benefit expenses 16 740.51 63584
Finance costs 17 5332 4575
Depreciation and amortization expenses 3 21132 155.30
Clinical and Analytical research expenses I8 93053 60828
Orther expenses 12 555.24 39608
Total Expenses (IV) 2,682.02 2,019.56
V) |Profit before tax (11-1V) 370,98 252,02
(VI) |Taxexpense 20
(1) Current tax 126.14 74,40
(2) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years 0.12 -
(3) Deferred tax charge / (eredit) {14.80) (5.69)
Total tax expense (VI) 111.46 68,71
(VID) |Profit for the year (W-V1) 159,57 183.31
(VIII) |Other comprehensive income (OCT)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Re-messurement (losses) on defined benefit plans (4.24) (0.07)
Less: Income tax effect on above .07 032
Total other comprehensive (loss) for the year (net of tax) (V1II) {3.17) (D.05)
(IX) |Total com prehensive income for the year (net of tax) (VII+ Y111} 156,35 18326
Eamings per equity share {in Rs.) 2
Basic 491 il
Diluted 480 350
Summary of significant accounting policies 21
Summary of significant accounting judgements, esfimates and assumptions 22

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements,

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC & Co.LLP For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Veeds Clinieal Research Limited

ICAI FRN: 3249%2E/E300003
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Veeds Clinical Rescarch Limbted (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Statement of standalone cash Mows far the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

sl Far the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Cash Mow from operating activities

Profil before tax 370,98 252,02
Adjustmants to reconcile profit before tax to net eash flows

Depreciation and amarhzation expense 21132 15530
Employee stock option cost 480 1822
Finance cost 3319 45795
Bad debts (net of provision) and contract asset written off 1359 092
Impaiiment provisien on financial asset 350 -
Loan written off 3400 B
Gain on fair valuation of eall option [1.41) (3.50)
Nel less on mark to market of autstanding forward contract Q36 -
IPO expenses 1003 1487
Met interest income {17.20) (17.03)
Net gain on sale and remeasurement of muival fund (40.13) (12.35)
Write off / loss on sele of property, plant and equipment (net of gain) &S0 0.18
Lishilities no longer reguired wiiltten hack {6.11) (2.15)
Prowvision for doubtful delus 16,68 0.68
Provision for slow moving and non-moving imventony 2366 -
Gain an Jease termination (7.43) (0.34)
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 7.40 034
Operating profit beloreé working eapital ehanges 69548 460,949
Working capital adjustments:

{Increase}idecrenss in trade receivables 4807 (330.60)
{Inerease} in inventories {2.67) (13.31)
(Inerease)idecrease in financial assets 449 (B3.97)
(Incresse) i oflier gssets (39.21) {58.90)
(Decreass)incresse in trade payables (1787 9175
(Drecrease) increase in other financial labilities 32.18 (0.68)
Increase in other current liabilities 113.56 175.61
Increase in provisions 11.70 .02
Cash penerated from aperation 836,15 24691
Direot taxes paid {net of refund) (135.53) (115.62)
et eash Now generated from operaling activities (A) 750,62 127,29
Cash Now from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets including intangible assefs under development and Capital work-in-progress (462,22) (124.17)
Procesds from sale of property, plint and equipment - 4.82
Interest received 16.19 17.95
{Investment} in fixed deposits @27.0m) (102245
Earmarked balance of share application money pending allatment and wilization (213.00) -
Proveeds from redemption of Nixed deposits 445 -
(Investment in) mutual funds (38.00) (759.08)
Proceeds from sale of mutual funds 41524 1737
Loan repaid by subsidiary (was an gssociate Gl July 16, 2021) - 23330
Loas given to joint venture (12 00y (23.00)
Loan given repaid by joint venture - 1,00
(Investment] in optionslly convertible redeemable preference shares of subsidiary (was an associate till July 16, 2021} - (23330)
(Investment) in equity shares of subsidiary (was an sssociate 1l Tuly 16, 2031} {450 0 (B20.00)
Net cash Mlow (wsed in) investing activiiies (B) {1,067.05 (1418.25)
Cash flow from Gunascing activities

Finance cost paid {5243 (45.75)
Payment of TP expenise (net) (B.71) (33.75)
Praceeds fram / (Repayment of) shori-term Borrowing (ner) - {24327}
Share issue expenses for fresh issue of shares {13.02) (58.86)
Payment of principal portion of lease |iability (57.33) (5746}
Dividend paid to COCPS Class "A' - (120 &0y
Proceeds fram issue of shares (including securities premium and exercising of ESOPs) . 2,300.84
Proceeds from share application meney pending aftotment 213,00 -
Net eash Bow generated from financing activities {C) §1.51 1,721.00
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + ) {234.92) 430.04
Effect of exchunge differences an translation of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents (9.04) (2.49)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 59716 14961
Cish and cash equivalents at the end of the year 333.20 57716
Components of cash and cash equival ent

Balance with banks:

= On carrent accoums 3273 37617
Cash on hand .47 099
Total eash and cash equivalents (refer note 4.3) 333.20 57716




Vieuils Clinkeul Resesrch Limited (Tarmerly kismwn zv " Vieda Clnical Beseardh Private Limited")
Slalement of sssmilalenc cash fows for the vear ended March 31, 1023
(AT s s iy ruges maillion. unifess wherwise stasad)

Batties 83 statoment of cash fluws ¢

1) Thee Slascamant af Cus Fliows e boen pecpared vinder the Tndieect methad 25 56t out in nd 48 7 o Statcment of Cush Flows roified wider Section 133 of the Companis

Arcoaning Satedid) Rules 201 F{ns amendoay,

2y Chumpes i pasets and Tishlties arssing from fimmncing activii e

Ak, 2003, Fad tegettsae with Parsgraph 7 afthe Companis Andian

Particalurs A at April us, 2072 Cush Auwrs {ned) Civersd Ay at Mareh 31 223
Flousing acilviiles
L = Tiabililias ITTED 130.78 45125
Teda] ITTEL 130,78 451,28
Particulars Aba AR 0L, 2021 Cash fluws fnet) Othersé Auat March 31, 2022
Fimu g s fivilivs
Shoti-iorm horrowiigs 233 [ 2Ty - -
Laane lishifities 43403 LTS L3 27T
Tatal [T {300, 68y L4 e
#Othere in Jease Hability el poymet of imleres, o oo Riokility, adidhon to Teasc Sty and 1 sdhuction of Ve Hnhdiiny due 4o teraminuation on socoant of 160 05 116,
3} Bun-cavh fnanicing amd investing activiiies
Bapiicul Fur the year enied Faor the year emded
53 March 31, B023 March 31, 2023
[ i
3,30 -
2 T304
Summary 6f signi fivart scooumting policies 11
Summert of significant g Judg . extiihales and it 22
The ucoompaisiaig sies are 3 [tegra] gt of ihese staldons (nancis! datemnly

A per ol repor] of even date
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

Statem ent of Standalone ehanges in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Al amoums in rupess million, unless otherwise stased)

A} Equity share capital:

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity shares of Rs, 2 each (Rs. 10 each 61l June 28, 2021}

The accompanying nokes are an integral pan of these standalone Gnancial staicmonis,

As porour repon of oven date
ForSREC& Co, LLP
Charred Accountants

ICAT FRIN: 32498 2E/E3 00003

per Sulorut Mehita
Pariner
Membership No, 101974

Datz: Seplember 05, 20623
Place: Abmedabad, Tisdis

For and an Behalf of the Board of Directors of

Veeda Clinical Research Limited

(Fomierty kiows as "Veeda Clinical Rescarch Private Limited™)
CCIN : UT3 160G 2004PLC 14802 3)

Nitin Deshmukh
Cliairman
DIN: DiMiAN 743

D September 05, 2023

Place: Ahmedabad, Tndia

Ajay Tandon
Managing Director
DIN. (12210072

Place; Torento, Canada

Particulnrs Note Mo, of shares Am ount

As at March 31, 2021 601,196 .01
Change in Equity Share Capiml due i prior period emmors - 2
Issue of cquity shares of Rs. 140 face valve during the year 76420 0.7
|Preference shanes COCPS Class 'A' of Rs. 10 cach converted into equity shares of Rs, 10 face value 93 5ds 0.94
Split of equity shares of R 10 face value to Re 2 fee value 30,865,248 -
Shares issued during the year - bopus issue " 424359000 H4.87
Issue of cquity shares of Bs. 2 face valug during the year 62 %4 566 1257
Shares issued under ESOP schome of Rs 2 face value during the year 315500 063
As at March 31, 2022 5,18 53986 10578
Changs in Equity Share Capital dus 10 prier period amors. % 5
Changes during the year - =
As af March 31, 2023 5,28.93 986 10578

B) Instruments entirely equity in nature {Com pulsory Convertible Cumulative Participatory Preference Share Class 'A' (CCOPS Class A

Issued, Subseribed and fully paid preference sharves of R, 10 ench

Particularg Naote No, of shares Amount
As at March 31, 2021 3,52.29,780 35230
Change in CCCPS Class 'A' due ta prior period ermors - =
Conversion of preforence sharcs CCCPS class ‘A’ during the year s {3,52.29 780) {352.30)
Az at March 31, 2022 = 2
Change in CCCPS Class 'A' duc ta pror period emmors - o,
As at March 31, 2023 = &
C) Orher cquity
= Reserves and surplus
: SRS . Capital Share options
RAEculE =insy paiding Securities premivm redemption ouistanding Retnined earnings Ton
allotment
TESC Ve reserve

Balance 85 at March 3L, 2021 = 45299 3884 592 84172 1,339.27
Changes due 1 sccounting policy or prior period errors - - - - - -
Profit for the year {net of taxcs) - - 18331 i833]
Qthar comprebensive {loss) for the vear (et of faxes) - - = - {15 [(IETEY)
Total comprehensive income for the yenr - - - - 18326 183.26
Utilised for payment of dividend 10 COCPS Class "4 - - - - (120804 (120 &),
Options granted to joint venture during the year (refer note 24 and note 32) - £ 0.05 = nns
Shase based payments {refer nole 32) - - - 1322 1822
On issue of equity shares during the year - 301724 - - - 30ET.24
On conversion of CCCPS class A’ into equity shares dunng the y car - 350 36 - - - 35136
Utilized for issue of bonus cquity dhares {46.03) {38 54) - - (B4E7)
|Urilized towards profisssional fees expenses on feeh issue of equity shares . (71.88) - - - (718}
Halance as at March 31, 2002 - 3,703.48 - 24.19 a4 18 4,631.85
Changes dug to accounting policy or prior period errom - % = i = -
Profit for the year (aci of taes) - - - - 15552 259,52
Dlir comprehensive (loss) dor the year (nét of aues) - = 5 - (3.17) {3173
Tatal comprehensive income for the year - - - 15635 156,38
Options granied 10 joint venmure during the year {refer nete 24 and nots 32) = - 02 - 062
Shars based paymonts {rofer noig 32) - B 480 - 480
Adjustment on forfeitue of ESOF = - = (11 ) n6d

Share application monev rece]ved 21300 . = - = 213,00
Balance as at March 31, 2023 213.00 30348 - 2837 1,161.17 5,106.02
Summary of signifleant pecounting policies 2l

Summary of significant accounting judgements, extlimates and assumplions 22
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Company Secretary & CFO
ICSI Membership No.12551
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023

1. Corporate information

Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
(“the Company™) is a Company domiciled in India with its registered office at Shivalik Plaza — A,
2nd Floor, Opposite Ahmedabad Management Association, Ambawadi, Ahmedabad, Gujarat —
380015, India. The Company was incorporated on April 23, 2004 under the provisions of the
Companies Act applicable in India and is carrying on the business of Clinical Research for various
Pharmaceuticals Companies. The Company is a one roof service global CRO specializing in the
early clinical development of drugs with state-of-the-art facilitics in India. The Company provides
a full range of services in phase I and Il clinical research with Clinical Data management, delivering
expert and cost-effective research solutions to the Pharmaceutical and Biotechnology Industries
worldwide. The Company has become a Public Limited Company w.e.f. June 30, 2021 and
consequently the name of the Company has changed from Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited
to Veeda Clinical Research Limited.

The standalone financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on September 05, 2023.

2.1 Significant accounting policies
(A) Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) as prescribed under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) read with Rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended
from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division IT of Schedule 111 to the Act (Ind AS
compliant Schedule 111, as amended), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain
financial assets and liabilitics measured at fair value / amortized cost (Refer note 28).

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) and all values are rounded
to the nearest Rs. millions, except when otherwise indicated. Figures below Rs. 10,000 has been
indicated as “*” as the same is nullified on conversion of rupees in million.

(B) Summary of significant accounting policies
a. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended 1o be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

L B —

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is treated as current when:

1. Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
2. Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
™ 3. Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

‘\.,




Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited”)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

4. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Foreign currencies

The Company’s standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (“Rs.™), which is
also its functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional currency
spot rates on the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons,
the Company uses average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the
transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
profit and loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in OCI or profit and loss are also recognised in OCI or profit and loss, respectively).

¢. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate cconomic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.




Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the standalone financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement
and for non-recurring measurement.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting
policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation
by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given
in the relevant notes.

(a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 28)
(b) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 28)

(c) Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 28)

d. Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services is transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal
In its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the services before transferring them to the
customer.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to
===, revenue from contracts with customers are provided in Note 2.2.
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Lim ited™)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

it

Sale of service

The Company’s confracts with customers include promises to transfer multiple services to a
customer, Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognition and measurement when
the contract has been approved, in writing, by the parties to the contract, the parties to contract are
committed to perform their respective obligations under the contract, and the contract is legally
enforceable. The Company assesses the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct
performance obligations in the contract. Revenue from customer contracts are recognized based on
these identified distinct performance obligations.

The Company exercise judgement in determining the timing when the performance obligation is
satisfied. The Company considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as services
are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to
payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant
risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

For the majority of contract performance obligations, the Company has determined that an output
method is appropriate measure of progress. Revenue recognition is determined by assessing the
performance completed or delivered to date under the terms of the arrangement. The measures
utilized to assess progress on the satisfaction of performance are specific to the performance
obligation identified in the contract.

Contract Balances
Contract assets

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from clinical services because the receipt
of consideration is conditional on successful completion of the project. Upon completion of the
project and acceptance by the customer, the amount recognised as contract assets is reclassified to
trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment
of financial assets in section (p) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent
measurement.,

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of
financial assets in section (p) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent
measurenient.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised ifa payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Company transfers the related services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

e. Other Income

Other income is recognised when no significant uncertainty as to its determination or realisation
exists,




Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited”)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

f. Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company
operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company shall reflect the effect of
uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value
method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

i) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

ii) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax eredits and unused tax losses can be utilised,

except:

i) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

i) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,

associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
=== Teporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited”)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set
off deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities that relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

The Company is not eligible for MAT credit entitlement since Company had opted for lower tax
rate under section 115BAA of Income Tax Act, 1961 in the earlier year.

Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Services tax paid, except:

i) When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable; and

ii) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

g. Property, plant, and equipment

Property, Plant, and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment
and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criterias are met. When
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection
is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criterias are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for
the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criterias for a provision are met.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. It comprises
of the cost of property, plant and equipments that are not yet ready for their intended use as on the
date of Balance Sheet.

Depreciation is calculated on a written down value method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Assots Useful lives (in years) prescribed in Schedule IT of
the companies Act 2013
Plant and machinery 5tal5
Office equipment 5
~Eomputers and peripherals 3
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited

(for

merly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited®)

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Furniture & fixtures 10

Vehicles 3

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on straight line basis over the period of lease or useful
life, whichever is lower.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit
and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial period end and adjusted prospectively, il appropriate.

h. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired, The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates, The amortisation expense on
intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profitand loss unless such expenditure forms part
of carrying value of another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:

Intangible Useful lives Amortisation method used Inter_nally goncraiel, or
assets acquired
D |y | R |
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i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded
%n adjustment to the borrowing costs.
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

j- Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i} Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, whichever is shorter, as follows:

Building - up to 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life
of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are
incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment ocouwrs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremerital borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
7 o—=w, machinery and equipment and office premises. It also applies the lease of low-value assets
(:"rf:cognilion exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited”)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

The Company has sub leased certain office premises. Rental income arising is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

K. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as
follows:

Consumables: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision for slow moving and non-moving inventory is made considering its expected usage
pattern.

I. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered as
impaired and is written down is reduced to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer
periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth
year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case,
this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or
country or countries in which the Company operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.
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surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount
of any previous revaluation surplus.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairnnent losses no longer exist or have decreased. If any such indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine
the asset’s recoveiable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or
Company of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is
less than it’s carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment Josses relating to
goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

m. Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) and
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to seitle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of reimbursement, if any.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

n. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of contribution towards provident fund and employee state
insurance scheme (ESIC) is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC as an expense, when an employes renders the
related service,

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be
made to a separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit
plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
. subsequent periods.
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Past service costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the earlier of:

i) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
ii) The date on which the Company recognises related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense
in the standalone statement of profit and loss:

i) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
ii) Net interest expense or income.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as
short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated
at the reporting date. The Company recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an
expense when an employee renders the related service.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as
long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are
provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting
date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not
deferred. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does
not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting
date.

0. Share-based payments

The Company initially measures the cost of cash-settled transactions with employees using Black-
Scholes model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share-
based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which
is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of
the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option,
volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. For cash-settled share-based
payment fransactions, the liability needs to be remeasured at the end of each reporting period up
to the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised in the profit and loss. This
requires a reassessment of the estimates used at the end of each reporting period. For the
measurement of the fair value of equity-settled transactions with employees at the grant date, the
Company uses Black-Scholes model for Veeda Employees Stock Option Plan 2019 (VESP). The
assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are
disclosed in note 32.

p. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity,

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

. Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost,

air value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit and loss.

e\
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The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With
the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit and loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under Ind AS 115.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through
OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’
on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is
performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets or both. Financial assets
classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and
measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, 1.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset,

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of
cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

iii) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and
losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
A *financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i) The asset is held within & business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows; and

ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets
are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income
in the profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit
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Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes investment in mutual funds and call option on non-controlling interest of
subsidiary company.

Derivatives and hedging activities

The Company enters derivatives like forwards contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently marked to market at the end of each reporting period with profit / loss being
recognised in statement of profit and loss. Further, the Company has also entered into call options
in respect of its investment in its subsidiary which are initially recognised at fair value with
subsequent changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Derivative assets /
liabilities are classified under “other financial assets / other financial liabilities”. Profits and losses
arising from cancellation of contracts are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Embedded Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is
separated from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if: the economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit and loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in statement of profit and loss. Reassessment only occurs if
there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through
profit and loss category.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s standalone balance
sheet) when:

i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured

at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration

\\at the Company could be required to repay.
‘\.\
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Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL") model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss. For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next twelve months (a twelve month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (i.e., a lifetime ECL).

Investment in Subsidiaries, Jointly Controlled Entities, Associates

Investment in Subsidiaries, Joint Controlled Entities and Associates are measured at cost less
impairment in accordance with Ind AS 27 “Separate Financial Statements™.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit and loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instraments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

i} Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
ii} Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments,

.
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Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit and loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the ctiterias as specified in Ind AS
109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains / losses atiributable to
changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains / losses are not subsequently
transferred to statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
profit and loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through
profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the standalone
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

g. Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms
of the contract.

On issuance of the convertible preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is
classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included
in equity since conversion option meets Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed classification.
Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying amount of
~the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.
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Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible
preference shares based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when
the instruments are initially recognised.

r. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of standalone cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

s. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders
of parent Company (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders of the parent Company and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

2.2 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s standalone financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:

i) Capital management note 30
i) Financial risk management objectives and policies note 29
iii} Sensitivity analyses disclosures note 29

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
standalone financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as
a lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The

Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to

“H exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that
: "‘:\_clreafe an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
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commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a si gnificant event or change
in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the
option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of si gnificant leasehold improvements,
significant customisation to the leased asset, etc.).

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below, The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the standalone financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they ocecur.

Share-based payments

While estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions with the employees at grant date,
the Company uses a Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model for employee stock option plan. The
assumption and models used for estimating fair value for share based payment transactions are
disclosed in note 32.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the
present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment, The [BR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such
. as market interest rates).
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Standards notified but not yet effective

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the
Company’s standalone financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt
these standards, if applicable, as and when they become effective. The Ministry of Corporate affairs
(MCA) has notified certain amendments to Ind AS, through Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 on March 31, 2023. The amendments have been made in the
following standards;

Ind AS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements is amended to replace the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy information” and providing guidance
relating to immaterial transactions, disclosure of entity specific transactions and more.

Ind AS 8: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to include the
definition of accounting estimates as “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty,”

Ind AS 12: Income Taxes relating to initial recognition exemption of deferred tax related to assets
and liabilities arising from a single transaction.

These amendments shall come into force with effect from April 01, 2023. The Company is
assessing the potential effect of the amendments on its financial statements. The Company will
adopt these amendments, if applicable, from applicability date.
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4.

4.2

Veeda Clinical Research Limited (farmery known as "Veada Clinical Research Private Limited "'}
Nates to Standalone Financiol Stutements foe the year ended March 31, 2023
(AN amounts in rupest million, unless athern e slaled)

Financial nsseis

Tnvestinenis

Particulais As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022
MNon-current
Investaient in equity shares of subsidiary (conded ab cost) (Unguoted)
GAZL 306 (March 31, 2032: 5,364 304) fully paid equity shaves of Bioneds India Private Limited of Rs. 10 cach ¢refer note i and i o
helow) 213150 147 82
Investment in equity shares of joint venture (caried at cost) {Lnquoled)
350,000 {Misrch 31, 2022 350,000 fully: paid equily shares of Ingenuily Biesciances Private Lindied of R, 10 20ch 350 350
Less: Prowision far impairmei on non-curment e s (3.50) -
Total 2,131.50 1,651.32
Curvent
Investionent in units of mutual fonds {earded ot fir value thiwush profil and loss) (Quoted)
33015284 (March 31, 2022; 332052 84) Units of 1C1C1 Prodemial Smvings Fuid {Reguar Growih) 15191 143,90
256.220.57 (March 31, 2002; 256238 £7) Units of Adilya Birda Sun Life Lon Duraiion Fund (Reyular Growh) 143,59 137.52
R80,9a0,53 (March 31. 2022 86,990 £3) Liits of Adita Birls Sun Life Lew Duraiion Fusd (Direct Growih) 5319 503
Wil (Marcli 31, 2022: 87,315 32) Units of Adiva Rirda Sun Life Oxernight Funi (Direct Growih) & 114 20
il (March 31, 2022: 21.241.74) Uniiis of Axis Liquid Fuod (Direct Grovth) 3 sG22
1IN, 713,54 {March 31, 2022 1009, 713.54) Units of HDFC Low Dusaition Fund { Direcy Growth) i5m 3027
17,310, 34 {March 31. 21 1T, 318.34) Units of Kotk Low Duraion Fund (Direct Growth) 550 5025
Nl (March 31, 2022 88 556.45) Units of Kotk Owernizht Fund (Direct Growih} - 1041
Mal (March 31, 2033 8,542.3%) Unbe ol Nippon India Liquid Fund {Direct Gravwth) - 50,22
2746447 (March 31, 2022 15, 859.2%) Unite-of Mippon Indin Low Duration Fund {Tirect Growdk) o174 5026
i (March 31, 2032: 28, 793.72) Units of UTI Liguid Cash Plan (Direci Growih) & Fo0 43
Investments in oplionally comvertible redeemable prefecence thares of Subsidiny (was an assocate tl duly 16, 2021)
(eanied at fir value throwgh profit and loss) { Ungquoted)
233,000 (March 31, 2023; 3,333 vow) fulke paid opionally comerible redeemable preference shares of Biongeds India Privase .
Linsted {refer noie i below ) BT A0
Todal TH017 1,117.18
Tatal ivan-curment invesiment I,131.50 1,651.32
Asgrepnie amwunt ol quoted in ssimenis and markel value thercol . =
Agpregale amount of unquoiad i ssrmenis 2,130,350 1.651.32
[Total eurrent inyestments TROIT 1,117.28
Apgresate amiount of quated iy estmenis and marker v abue thereal 32687 R3.08
Apgregale anound of unguasiad ins ecimenis 23330 23330
LAgerepse amouni of impairment - -

Mates:

(1) The Company: emizrad into invesiment agreement with Bionseds India Privie Linsited ("Bionceds™) and ile shareholders on Jube 07, 2021 for scquisition of sdditional 20,109 wxquaty sharsholding m R,
62060 million froo the promoter wd existing shareholiers of Bioaceds and wsa 3 par the said agraemen the Company hos various call opions 10 acquire remaining 4% 50% equily shareholding from the
promater of Buoneeds. Sebseguent to this, the Company enterad inle addendum 1o said inscstment agresment on Jonuary 30, 2022 pursumt 1o which, the Company has svercised share swap call opiion and
has acquired additional 28 065 of oial share capival of Bionsads equivalent to 1,788,721 equi y shares for which the corsideration has been paid by aliotrment of 2,839 359 equily shares of the Compay,
Additional iy estriant 0 25,00 acquisition in Bionseds has been nocownted 3l Rs. 730,36 million based on the fir vobualion report of the mdependent valuer. Furthier. 5 par the addendum, the Compam has
call oplinn zyailabie on the remaining 24.90%% share capitad of Bioneeds which was fir valsed at Rs 73.15 million based on the fair vabuation report Fom the independent valuer and the resuliant fir value gain
of Rs. 3.90 million was recognized in other inco me {refir nola 14),

(i) During the yesr ended March 31, 2024, the Company has eniered inte addendur dated Miy 23, 022 and Decembier 9, 2002 pussuust 10 which Company has acquired additional cquity by wiay ol P
my estment i Bionoods and secondary investment by way o sequisiiion from promoter of Bioneeds aggregating 1o 1E90" on flly dilwed besis, Purher. a per the aforessid sddendum dated December 9,
2022, the Cormpany has an ogiion to Murilier acquire remaining balance of 13.00% shares on fully diluted basis. Fair value of the aforessid call aption is Rs. 16,74 million 03 on Masch 31, 2023 based on the fxir
s alustion eepost (ram the independent valuer and the resaltan fair v aluation loss of Bs. 22.75 million hes been recu gniced in "Onhar expenses” (refer nota 19),

iii) Ag per Lhe same invesient agreemant with Bionceds India Private Limited and its sharehiolders duted July 07, 2021 the Coitigany has made investment in Optionally Comventible  Bedeemubla
Preference Shares (“OCKPS") for o total considecation el Rs, 23330 million. The said OCRPS ware isved on the following 1arms and conditions:

{a) Mininsum preferential dividend rate o006 01% p.a eumulative preference dividend and the same shall b paid in full (tegether with dividends acerued Fom prior years),

(b} Conversion: 1. Conversion aplion e be exercised by the Compam: only aflar Bisneeds becomes awhally e ned sulidiary of the Conpany.

2. OCRPS will be conserled inbe such number of squity shares of Bioneeds, &t the price per share equal 10 the fair narket value of the equity shares at the lime  of such convarsion

(Comersion Price™).

() Redemption - Sublect 1o tha Company”s fight to seek conversinn, the GCRPS shall b redeemed by Bianeeds wpor gardier of 47} | day prior @ expine of 20 vears ot the face  valve of OC KPS or
(i) 1 the option af the Company, at the redamption price which shall b the fair market salue of equity shares of Bionseds o the fime af such redemption,
Sincs the terms of redeniption iz at the oplion of the Company, the wanugsment of the Compusy expesis 1o pot the redeayiion of DCRPS at face value befoee March 31, 2024 and sccardingly, the in estment
in the said OCRES has been consifered 3 current In e siment.

v} Subaequent o the year end, the company has amered infe ageeament dised Jule 20, 2023 10 amend the tems of iy estment agresment and addendum 10 insestment agreement as per which the company has
Acquired 295385 equily shuses of Bioneeds Indiz Private Limited represenning 4% of its fotal equity share capiral fon an ayg regaie consideration of Bs. 235,00 Million,

Trade receivabiles

Farticulars Az at March 31, 2023 | As at Mach 51,2022
Trade receivalies
Secured, considerad good - -
Unsicured, considered good 71140 TI3E2
Trade receiyables which have sigmificant incresse in credit risk 1045 0,57
Trade receiables < credit impaired 3141 1581

Tmpainment allowance (allawance for bad and doubtful debis)
Unsecured, ossidered good

Trode receivables which hiye sienifican mcresse in eredit rsk (1i45) (9.57)
Trade receivables - credit imgaired (3181 {1581}
Totw TILA0 77392

T rcTalEs fre non-interest bearing and are generally on ks of 7-890 dav

ufjufnninll‘gﬁ.n : redit rigk and markat sk related 19 trade roceis abile, please rafir note 20,

varirale or e ar due from direciors or olher officers of the company aithar 321 erally o jointhy with &y other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from frms or privite companies
et |5 a pariner, a direclor ara mankber,




Wivdy Climieal Rossarch Limiied Mlrmerly ko s "Veeds Clindonl Rescarch Privise Limitey" )
Noles to Samlalone Finasciid Statemonis Tor the year enibed March 31, 2023
(AL ainowng in rpozs million, wibkess offcrwise siatod)

A1 Trade reccivibiles

The foflowinge wible sunwrize the Qi in wepaimual alle snce nessured usiog fhe i fine expeciad credis dozy imodal:

il Ad al Murch 31, Ag an Murch 31,
Farticubirs ooy wn
Al Ul beginmig af (e pear FERT] 15.%
Fron isicai siiacks during the vear LLae] 2.08
UWhiliaed { reversed during e year - s
AL R i of il vear 4206 3538
T Ruvivaliles ipcfig schedule as at Mareh 31, 2023
Ouiatameling fur follow Ing peviols frem the gue Jate &l pan ment
Fartic Tat;
et Nat duc Less than 6 moaths | 6 asonibs = 1 year 1-2 yuars 23 Years Mare than 3 years it
i} Undisprved Trade reccivabies = considered gocd 41250 TR 08 1533 5799 - - 140
i Ui wsod Trade Roceivables —wihich have s gilican] e s eredi sk - - - %50 185 - W45
Lk ' - - - 15,46 .95 B %0
3 Dbspuied Trade B ables—tounidered zoed g = = - - = :
(v Dispuicd Trade Roceivables — vilich have shnific i 60 s i Crodnl risk = = - - e - =
{vik Dispusiod Trade Recenablos - credit inpained - - - - [ 55 651
Totul 41234 FRLEL] 153 SU45 341 1399 TEIAR
Trade Rocvivabbes amcing schedule as af March 31, 2007
Guistanding for Tolbit i persody Mrous the due date of payment
Pusiiculary . Tutal
Not due Loss than 6 monibs | 6 montis - 1 year 13 pwirs 2-3 Yeurs Mare than § years
(1) Ufispeisd Trade reccivables = comsickred ol 42,64 2361 3 55 308 - - EREER)
Lin) Unckigprsted Trade Rocanaliss = whicl Vv similficant increase b cred risk - = - 9.53 - [ 5,27
i - - i3 198 - &.04 .24
() Dispunted Trads Ruceivables — which love Genife incTeiEe M crodi ok - o = = = = ¥
[vi) Dispasiicd Trude Recoivablos — cradil mgained - - - 0,13 - 544 857
Tota | 46254 13384 .7 14,75 - 13155 199,30
A3 Cush and casti equivilonts
Sy At Maech 31, As at March 31,
ph i 203 wn
alimces nith Banks
= 0 canrron acceine mm 576,17
Cish ai luad 047 099
Tulal 33N 57716
. Otber Bank balances
Az ut Darch 31, Az wt March 31,
Rl 3 w22 “
= Depasiis with geigitial imiwring of smoore e Heee soms byl fee s fwchn i 2458
ol frefer igee bk 3
Shase application wosy azconnl 21300 -
{Tata EYFNT 2085

Moz
Dapasits with bank 25 af Mach 31 2623 apioeniiive e B, 3100 wilfion {
carig Mercst rasging betncea 5459 o 6 805 ihlzrch 30, 2023 4 00y 1o %

25 Rs 2050 millioni are given as collueril sscui ity gl cash credit limive These dopowils are mads for a2 vary g period for 3 ol to 12 mohe 2ud

R
45 Lvansg
Particulars A =t March 31, Asat Warch 31,
ikl 22
Nun-curresi
Unscewred, consldervd goa
Pt b o vemnmr i which Ui camgnny is 3 vailrer dielor mole 3 Bolow) a ]
Taeal - 124
Nees:

1} Since the above laan ghen fo joind vosim i nis
credi lguired B oot applicabie,

) Laah given w0 folin veniue amowiing i@ B 34 00 gillion (\fach 31 3u22: Ry Nily has been wrkiion ofT during the yar comkderning the wday urable S Coniuditivie of jurin. vewiure and the same sk been booked wndes oificr axpenise {refer now
1% -

wred i eoesiadered goodd. the bifiincstion o loax 1 ather ccyories as soguined by sohedile 1T of ¢ RIS ACL 301 viz; w) Secured B} Locus which bave significsn increase incsedil risk and <l

Diswinsuee requined uniler See 18604 of the Cnmpanics Act 2013 =
Incliaded i foare and sdvance ars comiin ilrl:h.'l‘mi'al'.'dl:p-s-:-ilﬁ il particalirs of wiich sre Siszlosed bl 25 Feqmred by Soe 184443 of thie Cormtusios Act 263,

Nt 0F Uhe lnaner Rate of Titereat D dute Sevurait f Unsecured| ™ ":‘:;3"" i, | as “::;';“-“-

Loan & eepsyablel
within 2 yews from

iy Blowierces Fra i s he date of sgreancit,
Engoniily Biossereos Pravate Limiled G Mt e it
iy be ropaid ol
bisie by sz barroser,

Unsecured = 54

Weefier noac 24 for Lomia and canditions of Isen 1o Joun yciinre 1o wineh Comipuw i 3 vesarer,




Verda Clisical Rexearch Limited {Formerly Joswn as "Verdn Clivical Researels Private Linised™)
Nirlies b Standubone Fimancial Stugcments Tor ghe yoir ended March 31, 2023
(Al nmowns I nupees miklion unless alleryise shied)

A6 LHher Rnancial sssels

Particulars Ax il harch 31, As at Murch 31,
23 2021
Crsecared, sonsidered good
[Non-carreal
Bccwrin depasits 2530 4669
Baaik deposits with renunien moswrity B i o 12 monabis fefer noce helaw) 123N 6230
Fisir vuhie ol call apsion (refir npte 4.1) 40 AR il
Sub-toral 39132 16254
Ursevarel, cinsidered good
Curveng
Comi aasd
= D Tooum cusionoey (accred revenweh (refor o 13.2) 17449 1874+
Tmeres o rucd on sacursty dicposiss 036 a3
Sa deposite L84 -
Expon uscentive reccivable It 11208
“ |Bumk deposits witlh remunning aiority Far less fham 12 monibs frelor mote B bl 12508 G191
Bcanbersament recenahle frefor na 34 - a1z
Beciivable from selling starchodders (refzr nowe 34} 3755 3516
Suli-tatal i 3703
Total 7741 | 53957
Reconciliuthon of contract Assets
[Batunce at the Deginming of the year 16744 T8
Leax: Imoicing duriig the yeui Diom balasce a1 (he beginning of ibe yor 125310y 67 &2)
L cse: Writien ofT during the vaar from bulsse ot U bezaming of the year 3 9m) -
A Coairact Assets oreaial duriig i yar L1 155,73
| Eulunce #t the end of the vear 17408 167
Noest

i) Bk dhiposies with ecissinang matwrily Tor more than 12 mosifis a5 a0 March 31, 2003 arc Rs.
12 ol and e userest rapglig Berween 4, 5570 10 7250 darch 31 2022 155 1 500
Ehewitad scowtily agains onerdmifi facilites amd bank B

) Bard deposfis with odfglil suitirty for i tas 12 sioalhs and with ronaining ity Gor less tlan 12 mosils 25 a1 Ma
These depasits are mads for 2 period of wore dan 17 aondis and @ i
Mareli 31, 2023 (Manch 31, 2022 R 3 035 millioes ure given 2 collukesad sconrity o

1. 2423 are Re.

tcash credin lindts 2ol B goaranice,

5 Tueome 105 assets {net)

12324 million (March 31, 2022 Re: 62,70 million), These depesiis am made for 3 perind of mons than
Dposiis amoming to Re 8139 million as 3 March 31, 2003 (March 31, 2022: Re. 2.81 millios) are

58 mitlion (hiuech 30, 2022 Rs: 6170 naillion.
g between 3.23% @ 7.25% (Mirch 31, 3225 510% 0 94%a). Deposits ausouniing to Re. 19.16 million as at

. Ayt Mareli 31, At March 31,
Barticulars W 2021
Mow=cur et
Adv i g el 9 Tnconie tax (net oF provision 2iRAY
Tatal P}
6 Other assets
g Ay at Murch 31, Agan Marel 31,
Particulary 033 e
[ Mon-Current
Unsevured, considered goud
Prcpaid exponscs a2 L3
Bulance with gon e pullionies {roler oo below) XY 745
[ Capits] v ininces 748 i
Sub-tanal 1812 12.77
Curivit
Unseewred, considered good
Prepaid exporscs 1231 i35z
Adviics o sipplicrs . ig
" |Emplavec adviness 134 149
Falance with goverimen amboriiie (refer noce baloay 1046 27 TEES
Suli-taril 136,39 1. 65
Tatal 15341 1915
Nustez
Balance wiih govermesi anthorisies inchides GST Liput 1wy eredin secomgble (g of fiubiling,
T Ieventories {vabued at lower of cosl and net reilizble valae)
Particulurs Agxat March 31, As ot March 31,
1023 22z
Caranuibics TR
Loss: Provision for stow niing ond ion-iwisine consimublzs -
Tutul G094




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly knvwn as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
[All amounts in rupess million, wiless offierwise staied)

8 Share capital

Esquity shave capiial

L Euuity shares

Paiticulirs No.of Shares Kasut
Authorised equity shnres of Rs. 2 each (Rs, 10 sach till June 28, 2021)
As at March 31, 2021 06,000 7.00
Change during the year 100, 006 1.00
Freference shares COCPS Class ‘A’ of Re. 10/ 2ach reclassified inlo equity shares of Bs. 10/ sach 35,540 5RO 35541
Equity shares of B8, | 0f= each split into equity shares of Rs: 2 gach 145762, 730 -
As at March 31, 2022 182,203,400 364,41
Change during the year - =
As #t Muweh 31, 2023 182,203 400 364,41

Particulirs Equily shares

Mo, of Shires Amount

Tssued, subscribed and fully paid wp cquity shares of Rs. 2 each (Rs. 10 each till Jung 28, 2021)
Az at March 31, 2021 601,196 601
Change in Equity Shaie Capital dus o jirior period erros - -
Issue ol equity shares of Re. 10 face value durini the vear 6,420 0.76
Preference shares COCPS Clazs ‘A of Rs. 10 sach converied into equity shares of Ra. 10 face valus 53,848 0.94
Split of equity shares of Ra. 10 face value to Re 2 face valye 3,086,148 =
Shares issued duning the year - bonus isvep 42435910 84,87
Lesue of equity shares of B, 2 face value during the year 6,284,656 12.57
Shares issuad under ESOP scheme of R 2 fice value during the year 318,800 0.63
As af March 31, 2022 52,893,985 10578
Change in Equity Share Capital due to prior period arron - -
Changes during tha year - -
Asat March 31,2023 52,803,986 10578
Instruments entively equity in nuduie (Campulsary Convertible Cumalative Participaio vy Preference Shire Class "A' (CCCPS Class "A’))

Farticulurs AT s i

Now of Shiures Al

Authovised shores of Re. 10 each
As at March 31, 2021 35,640,680 35641

Preferanca shares CCCPS Cliss 'A' of Rs. |0/ 2ach reclassified inio equily shares of Rs. 10 face valus

§35,640.680) (136,41}

As at March 31, 2022 - e
Change during the year . .
As at March 31, 2023 = =

Instruments entirely equity in nature (Compulsory Canvertible Cumulative Participatary Preference Shure Class *A’ (COCPS Class 'A'))

CCCPS Class 'A'
Particulas

Mo, of Shares Awnvunl
Tssmed, subscribed and fully paid up shages of Rs. 10 eachs
As ar March 31, 2021 35279 780 35130
Change in CCCPS Class 'A' dug to prioe petiad serars & x
Canersion of preference shases COUPS class 'A'infe equity shares of Rs, |0 face value during theyear {35,228 780} (352.30)
As ar March 31,2022 = =
Change in CCCPS Class 'A’ due 1o prior period ermors - -

As at Mol 31, 2023 = 3

{a) Terms/rvights witached to equity stinres.
In vespect of Ordinary shares, voting rights shall be in the same propartion 55 the capital paid upan such ordinary share bears o the ot paid up erdinary capital ofthe company,
The dividend propased by the board of directors, it any, s subject 1o the approyal of the sharzhalders in the snsuing Anoual General Meeting, exceprin case ofinterim dividend.
In the event of liquidation, the shareholders of ordinany shares are aligible o recaive the remal ning assets of the company after distritution of Il preferential amounts, in proportion 1o their shardwldings.
(b) The board of direciors in their meefing held on June 26, 202 | approved split of each equity share of Re, 10 each into § edquity shares of Re. 2 each which was approved by the members in their meeting held on
June 29, 2021,
() The: board of disectors in their meeting hetd en June 26, 2021 approved issue of 11 bonus shares fully paid for each equity share of Rs. 2 aach which was approved by the members i thair meating held an June
29 2021,
{d) Agzregate number of equity shires issued 35 bonus. shares issued for considerntion other than eash and shures bought back during the periad of five years inmediately preceding the reporting daie
For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year cnded
Partientars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 Mureh 31,2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
{Numbier) {Number) (Number) (Number) (Number)
Issue ol fully pard equity shares of Rs. 2 each as bonus shares - 42,435,910 . - -
Issue of fully paid Preference shares CCCPS Class'A'of Re. 10 each as bonus shares 2 e = 15,229, 780
Buyback of Preference shares COCPS Class B of Rs 3340 sach - < - 11630
Lssue of equity share of Rs. 2 each for investment in Bionzeds India Privara Limied = 2,830,864 E E




Veeda Clinical Research Limited {formerly kaown as "Veeda Clinieal Researeh Private Limited")
Notes to Standulone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(ANl amounts i rupess million, unlzss otherwiss stared)

8 Share capital

te) Termsof eonversion redemption of CCCPS Class "A'
i. The CCCPS Class 'A' shall be eniitled 1o 0000015 partcipaiory and cumutative dividend, During the previous year, the board of directore at their mecling held on May 25, 2021 have modified the percentage of
dividend from 0.0001% 10 14,1198, which was approsed, and dividend has been paid for the period from Ouicher 27, 2018 tll March 31, 2021 anwunting to Bs 120,50 million,
ii. The ounstanding COCPS Class ‘A shires were converted inio 3,948 2quity shares baszd on approval of Board of Direciors and Membars of the company on Tune 29, 3031,

(I} Shares beld by holding company

Name of Shurchalder As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Nunilver Aivaunt MNurriber At
Basil Private Lined
ity shares of Bs. 2 sach 22.251,712 4450 23,351,712 4450
() Details of sharehollers holding more than 5% shares i the Compuny
Equity Shwe Cupital
As il March 31,2023 As at Muarch 31, 2022
Particulars g Yol el
. Holding Numibie Holding
Equity shares of Rs, 2 each
Basil Private Limiiad 32,251,713 42:07% 1251712
Bondway Investmant Tne. 13,130,580 % 13,156,580
|_§:'|hre Piirtniers AIF Trusi 2 Ta0 840 5230 2 760, R40

(B} Equitly Shareholding of Promoters as at March 31, 2022

Ko of shares at the
Pramoter Name Clazs of slure beginning of the
yedar

Chinge during the | No. of shares at the % ehange during
year * end of the year ol Tutal ilvives the year ¥

Equity shares of Rs.
2 each fully paid
Tatal 406,194 211845518 22,251,712 41,07 (22,40

Basil Private Limited

Al 184 21 845 518 22,351,712 42.07 (2543

%t chanye is on accouwnt of new shares [seued o sharsholdars ofher than remoics.
#% change is 9n nccount of new shares fssued to shareholders other than Pramoter and s fr of shares by Promoier.

(i) Equity Shareholding of Promoiers as at March 31, 2023

Ma. of slares at the Z
Pramiaier Mame Cluss of share beginning of the Change during the | No. of shares at the S of Total ghares Rt dinkiy
e year end of the year the year
Basil Private Limited Equity shates ef_Rs. 22251712 . 12351712 h i
2 zach fully paid
Total 22.251,712 - 22251,712 41,07 i

—

Employees Stock Option Scheme
1,289,970 equaty sharee (March 31, 2022 1,491 840 aquity shares) ol the face value Rs.2 eich are reserved undar Emmployea Stuck Option Plan of the company {refer note 24 and note 3

16




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Other equity
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022

Securities premium
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,703.48 452,79
Changes due to accounting policy or prior period errors " <
On issue of equity shares during the year - 3,017.24
On conversion of CCCPS class "A' into equity shares during the year - 351.36
Utilized for issue of bonus equity shares - (46.03)
Utilized towards expenses on fresh issue of cquity shares - (71.88)
Balance at the end of the year 3,703.48 3,703.48
Capital redemption reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year - 38.84
Changes due to accounting policy or prior period errors - -
Utilized for issue of bonus equity shares - (38.84)
Balance at the end of the year - -
Share options outstanding reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 24.19 592
Changes due to accounting policy or prior period errors - -
Reversal on forfeilure of ESOP (0.64) -
Options granted to joint venture during the year (refer note 24 and note 32) 0.02 0.05
Compensation for options granted during the year (refer note 32) 4.80 18.22
Balance at the end of the year 28.37 24.19
Share application money pending allotment
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Changes due to accounting poliey or prior period errors . -
Share application money received 213.00 -
Balance at the end of the year 213.00 -
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginning of the year 904.18 841.72
Changes due to accounting policy or prior period errors - -
Profit for the year (net of taxes) 259.52 183.31
Other comprehensive (loss) for the year (net of taxes) (3.17) (0.05)
Addition on forfeiture of ESOP 0.64 -
Utilised for payment of dividend te CCCPS Class 'A' - (120.80)
Balance at the end of the year 1,161.17 904.18

Total other equity 5,106.02 4,631.85

Nature and purpose of reserves:

(1) In cases where the Company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal 1o

the agaregate amount of the premium

received on those shares has been transferred 10 “Securities Premium”, The Company may issue fully paid-up bonus shares to its members out of the

securities premium and to buy-back of shares.

(2) Capital redemption rescerve represents the amount transferred on account of buy back of CCCPS Class 'B,

(3) The share options outstanding reserve : The share options based payment reserve is used to recognize the grant date fair value of options fssued to
employees under employee stock option plan,

(4) Surplus in statement of profit and loss: Surplus in statement of profit and loss are the profits / (losses) that the company has earned / incurred till
date, less any transfers to gencral reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders, Retained earnings include re-measurement loss /
(gein) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss. Retained earnings is a free reserve
avail_a}g_lglgg the company and eligible for distribution to sharcholders, in case where it is having positive balance representing net earnings till date.
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Veeda Clinieal Research Limited {formerly lnown as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Mates to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended Muach 31, 2023

(Al amounis in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)
Finaneial linbilities

Trade payables

2 Asat March 31, As at March 31,
Particulnrs s o)
Outstanding ducs of micro and small enterprises {refer noe 36) 25,78 3550
Quitstanding dues of creditors ather than micrs and small anlerprises 146,12 179.27
Taial 141,40 214.77

Terms and conditions of the abeve sutstinding halances:
Trade payables are non-interast bea
Far explanation an company's credin risk managenent process, refer note 29
For term: and conditions with refated pasty, refer note 24,

vg and are normally s2tled in 45-180 days

Trade Payables ageing schedule g5 at March 31, 2023

Particulars Qutstanding for lalluwing periads from the date of transaction #
Un bilied Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More thin 3 yesies Total
i1 MSME - 2577 0.0] - - 278
(i} hars 67.71 97.50 9] 4 166,12
(i1i) Disputed duss - MAME = = 5 o _
(iv] Disguiad dues - Others - = = = L =
Total 57.71 123.27 0,93 * - 19190
* Figure aullificd in conversion of Rupees in million,
Trade Payables ageing seliedule as ot March 31, 2022
Pariiculars Qutstanding for follawing perivds from the date of transaction #
Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Mare than 3 years Tatal
{1} MSME - 35.40 0.10 - - 35,50
(i) Cithers 73.38 10256 135 1.06 042 179,27
{in) Disputed dues - MEME - = = - = s
iv) Disputed dues = Others - - - - = 5
Taral 7338 13796 1.95 106 0.42 114.77

# Considering the availability of data, the sbove ageing is considered from the date of recording the

Other financial Habilities
" Asat March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2023 1021
MNan- Curvent
Financial labilities enrvied at amoriized cost
Sacurity deposits 0 58 .50
Sub-total 0.50 050
Current
Financial Babilities carvied at amartioed cost
Craditors for capital expenditure (refer nots balow) 4728 27171
Employee bunefits payabla TEAT 55.0%
Poyable wwards IPO expenes 473
Payable wwards share issue expenises for fre<h jssue of shareg : 1302
Fefund liability 1o customer 2102 11.06
Other pavables 0.67 -
Finanrinl liabilities earvied at fair valoe through profit and lyss
Forward contracls 034
Sub-total 156,80 173.20
Total 157.30 173,70

Wote:

transzction insiead of due dite, Consequently, thare are no "ot due’ caditors balance disclased,

Craditors for capital goods alss inelude outstanding dues of micrs anterprises and small enterprises ax at Masch 31, 2623 of Bs, 1.19 million (March 31, 2022 Rs. 0.86 million} {refer noie 26),
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Other current liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31,2022
Contract liabilities
- Due to customer (excess billing over revenue) (refer note 13.2) 479,97 378.07
- Advance from customers 12,95 7.53
Statutory dues payable 31.25 25.01
Total 52417 410.61
Particulars As at March 31,2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Reconciliation of contract liability
Balance at the beginning of the year 385.60 219.97
]cs- I.{evcrme n:Tcogmzed / liability reversed during the year from balance at the (337.19) (185.17)
beginning of the year
Add: Contract liabilities created during the year 444.51 350.80
Balance at the end of the year 492.92 385.60

Provisions

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Non-current
Provision for employee benefit

Gratuity (refer note 23) 39.37 32.41
Compensated absence 14,08 3.78
Total 33.46 36.19
Current
Provision for employee benefit
Gratuity (refer note 23) 8.30 6.47
Compensated absence 6.40 9.56
Total 14.70 16.03
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13.2

Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited')
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Revenue from operations

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2023

Year ended March 31, 2022

Revenue from operations

Sale of services 2,961.53 2,239.31
Total 2,961.53 2,239.31
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Set out below is the disaggregation of the company's revenue from contract with customer
A. Geographical location of customer
Particulars Year ended March 31, 2023 | Year ended March 31, 2022
India 940.98 84038
us 663.85 400.36
Greece 404.44 13217
Others 952.26 857.40
Total revenue from contract with customers 2,961.53 2,239.31

B. Timing of revenue recognition

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2023 | Year ended March 31, 2022
Services transferred over time 2,961.53 2,239.31
Total revenue from contract with customers 2,961.53 2,239.31

;"o"’ )

Contract Balances

The below table provides information about trade receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from the contracts with
Customers:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022
Trade receivables (refer note 4.2) 711.40 773.92
Contract assets (refer note 4.6)
- Due from customer (accrued revenue) 174.09 167.44
Contract Liabilities (refer note 11)
- Advance from customer 12.95 7.53
- Due to customer (excess billing over revenue) 479.97 378.07

Contract assets relates to revenue earned from ongoing clinical services. As such, the balances of this account vary and depend on
the number of clinical services at the end of the year.

Trade receivables are recognized when the right to consideration becomies unconditional. These are non interest bearing generally
on the terms of 7-90 days. Company has receivable from its customers for the sale of services to its customers. During the year,
an amount of Rs. 16.68 million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 9.68 million) is recognized as provision for significant increase in credit
risk and credit impairment of trade receivables,

Contract liabilities includes short-term advances received for providing clinical services and pavment received from customer
against invoice raised for which clinical services are yet 1o be rendered. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the

Company-satisfies the performance oblieation.
S :?E é,{}‘c\\i__\ 5 &
e el 5




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited 4
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

13.3 Reconciling the amount of revenue recognized in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
Parbienlics Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue as per contracted price 3,067.66 2,317.64
Adjustments
Credit notes issued due to change in performance obligation (106.13) (78.33
Revenue from contract with customers 2,961.53 2,239.31

13.4 Information about Company's performance obligation are summarized below:

The Company exercise judgement in determining the timing when the performance obligation is satisfied. The Company
considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being
created or existence of enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer

of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer,
performance obligations, the Company has determined that an output method is appropria
recognition is determined by assessing the performance completed or delivered to date under
measures utilized to assess progress on the satisfaction of performance are specifi

contract,

13.5 Information about major customers:
For information about major customers, refer note 27.

14 Other income

cte. For the majority of contract
te measure of progress. Revenue
the terms of the arrangement. The
¢ to the performance obligation identified in the

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2023

Year ended March 31, 2022

Interest income on

-Bank deposits 15.41 3.30
-Loans to associate (refer note 24) - 10.16
-Loans to joint venture (refer note 24) - 0.38
-Security deposits 1.77 1.34
-Others 0.02 1.86
Net gain on investment in mutual funds 40.13 12.85
Liabilities no longer required written back 6.11 2.15
Net gain on foreign currency transactions 18.40 5.26
Gain on lease termination 7.48 0.34
Rent income 0.70 0.67
Gain on fair value of call option (refer note 4.1) 1.41 3.50
Others 0.04 0.06
Tatal 91.47 42.27
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited')

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Cost of material consumed

Year ended March 31,

Year ended March 31,

Particulars 2023 2022
Opening stock of consumables 69.94 56.63
Purchases during the year 180.77 201.62
Less : Closing stock of consumables (72.61) (69.94)
Total 178.10 188.31

Employee benefit expenses

Particulars

Year ended March 31,

Year ended March 31,

2023 2022
Salary, bonus and allowances 689.94 576.30
Employee stock option expenses (refer note 32) 4.80 18.22
Contributions to provident and other funds (refer note 23) 29.49 27.42
Staff welfare expenscs 16.28 13.90
Total 740.51 635.84

Finance costs

Particulars

Year ended March 31,

Year ended March 31,

2023 2022
Interest expense on
-Borrowings # 293
-Delayed payment of income tax and other statutory ducs 1.83 0.17
-Lease liabilities (refer note 31) 49.09 40.74
Bank charges and other borrowing cost 2.40 1.91
Total 53.32 45.75

* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million.

Clinical and Analytical research expenses

Particulirs Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
2023 2022

Screening expenses of subjects 94.83 82.85
Subject participation expense 326.04 22437
Food and refreshment expenses of subjects 32.62 24.86
Investigator Charges 24548 112.88
Data Management outsource services 18.35 16.98
Bio analytical rescarch expenses 3935 17.94
Project approval charges 48.87 51.35
Phlebotomists, nurses and doctors fees 39.04 26.05
Others 94.95 51.00
Total 939.53 608.28




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in rupees million, unless atherwise stated)

19 Other expenses

Partisilisg Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
2023 2022
Marketing and business promotion expenses 45.36 34.31
Rent expenses (refer note 31) 0.88 1.07
Water, Power and Fuel Charges 66.81 60.45
Legal and professional expenses 65.08 33.07
Conlractor expenses 95.84 85.45
Insurance expenses 12.53 13.81
Travelling and conveyance expense 3.04 3.28
Communication expenses 3.02 2.74
Repairs and maintenance -
-Buildings 10.31 7.69
-Plant and machinery 35.32 33.60
-others 16.36 11.81
Renewal charges of software and licence 11.2]1 7.72
Rates and taxes 2774 10.37
Payments 1o the auditor (refer note below) 1.75 0.90
Expenditure towards CSR activities (refer note 25) 7.73 10.36
Printing, stationery and courier expense 20.11 22,92
Property, Plant & Equipment written off §.90 -
Net loss on mark to market of outstanding forward contract 9.36 -
Bad debts and contract asset written off 13.99 0.92
Loan written off 34.00 -
Impairment provision on financial asset 3.50 =
IPO expenses 10.03 14.87
Provision for doubtful dehts 16.68 9.68
Provision for slow moving and non-moving inventory 23.66 -
Miscellaneous expenses 16.03 11.06
Total 559.24 396.08
19.1 Payments to the auditor
Pativiikive Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
2023 2022
As auditor:
- Audit fecs 1.75 0.90
- Tax Audit fees 5 _
- Reimbursement of expenses - ¥
Total ) 1.75 0.90

* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million,

Excludes amount towards IPO services included in receivable from selling shareholders and amount included under PO
expenses.
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Veeda Clinieal Buescarch Limited (Fermerly known as "V,
Nates to Standalone Financial Statements for the yeur en

(Al amounts in rupees million, unless atherwise stited)

Tax expense

The major compaonents of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 20

Profit and loss section

ceda Clinical Research Private Limited")
ded March 31,2023

2% and year ended March 31, 2022 are -

Note:

The company offsets tax assets and liabililies

atithority.

e

“C & {‘E;\

if and only if it has a Jegally enforceable right to st off defered tax sssets and de

+ For the yeur ended | For the year ended
articul
il March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Current income tax charge:
Current income tax 126.14 7440
Adjustrment of tax relating to earlier years 0.12 -
Deferred tax
Relating fo origination and reversal of Lemporary differences {14 811} (5693
Total tax expense repurted in the statement of profit and loss 111.46 68,71
Other comprehensive income (QCT) section
Particairi For the year ended | For theyear ended
Murch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred tax related (o iems recognized in OCI during the year ‘
Met lost on remeasurement of defined benefit plans 1.07 {102
Deferred tax charged to OCI 1,07 .02
Reconciliation of tax expense and the avcounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate far the year ended Mareh 31,2023 and March 31, 2022
5 For the year ended | For the yesr ended
Particulars
i March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Profit before tax 370,98 252.02
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rite (refer nore below) L 25.17%
Expected incume tax expense as per applicalile tayes 93.37 6343
Adjusiments
Non-deductible expense 17.10 469
Others 0.99 0.59
Tax expense as per standalone statement of prufit and loss 111.46 68,71
Bolance slhicet section
Particulars As at March 31, Asat March 31,
2073 2011
Tneoime tax asscts (net) 208 B2 199 54
Income tax assets {net) 208,82 199,54
Deferred tax
Balance Sheet Statenrent of Profit and Loss Ocl
Particulars Asat Macch 31, As at March 31, For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended
2023 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Deferred tax relates to the following
Difference between depreciable assers as per boaks
. 30. ¥ gl “ 7
of aecounts and written down value for gax pupose P-4 .13 (27 (1.36)
Employee benefits 17.15 13.87 (221) (1.51) 1.07 042
Effect ofM:l‘M loss ! {gain) on forwad coniract L (0.98) 200y 101 | J
and call option
Effect of provision for doubiful delis 18.72 6.39 (1233) (2.44) - 4
TP expenscs - 1.85 186 {1.88) - -
Right of use assets and lease liabilities 75,57 21.17 (4.41) (1.86) - ]
Reestatement of mutual furd (9.16) (2.90) 6,26 233 - -
Deferred tax expense / (credit) (14.80) (5.69) 1.07 0.02
Net deferred tax assets B3.446 67.59
—_— z Asat March 3], As at March 31,
Reconcilintion of deferred tax assets (net) s34 2022
Opening balance as at the beginning of the year 67.59 6188
Tax income recognized in the statement of profit and loss during the year 14 80 5.69
Tax income recognized in OCI during the year 107 (.02
Closing bulanve as at the end of the year 83.46 67.59

ferred tax liabililies that relate to incoimne taxes levied by the same tax




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited ")
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

21  Contingent liabilities and capital commitment not provided for

21.1 Contingencies
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debis:
(1) Income tax * 109.47 109,68
(i) Service tax ** 210.01 191.90
(i1i) Customs # 4.75 4.75

* Income tax demand comprise demand from the Indian tax authorities for payment of additional
31, 2022: Rs 109.68 million) upon completion of their tax review for

software, interest charged on loan advanced, capital
tax Act. The matter is pending before various authorities.
various years by Income Tax depariment and hence net demand is Nil in respect of such period.

tax of Rs 109.47 million (March
the assessment year 2007-08 to 2019-20. The tax demands
are mainly on account of disallowances relating to mansfer pricing matters, expenditure to eam exempt

income, depreciation on

expenditure charged to revenue, etc. claimed by the company under the Income
The said demand amounts have been already adjusted against refund of

** Service tax demand comprise demand from the Service tax autharities for payment of additional tax of Rs 210.01 million (March

31, 2022: Rs 191.90 million), upon completion of their tax review

for the financial year 2008-09 10 2015-16, The tax demands are

on account denial of export of service under Rule 4 of place of provision of Services Rules, 2012, reversal of CENVAT credit under

Rule 6(3) and 6(3), disallowance of in put tax credit, etc. The matier is pending before various autharitics,

Above amount excludes Rs, 145.87

natter.

# Custom duty demand comprise demand from CBEC for payment of additional tax of Rs 4.75 million
millien), upon completion of their tax review for the financial year 2011-12 10 2016-17. The demand

million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 145.87 million) for the period April 2016 to June 2017 in
of matters where the company has received favourable orders from the first appellaie authorities and has received
the department is pursuing appeal with higher appellate authority, The actual outflow would depend on the fin

respect
refund. However,
al putcome of the

(March 31, 2022 Rs 475

is on account denial of custom

duty exemption benefit claimed under the Notification 12/2012 dated March 17, 2012. The matter is pending before various

authoritics,

The company is contesting the demands and the management, including

management belisves that the ultimate outcome of this
position and results of operations.

Other claims not acknowledged as debt

Claim by a party arising out of a commercial contract: Rs. L0
has not acknowledged this claim. As advised by
is adequately insured and the matier is intimated to
claim lodged. The matter is pending at commercial court, Ahmedabad. In view of these,
this count and accordingly ne provision is made in books of accounts,

21.2 Capital commitment

its tax advisors, believe that its position will likely he
upheld in the appellate process. No fax expense has been accrued in the financial statements for the tax demand

raised. The

proceeding will not have a material adverse effect on the company's financial

18.84 million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 1,018.84 million). The company
the external legal counsel, the elaim is not legally tenable. Moreover, the company
insurance company as well, The company has filed detailed response to the
the company does not forcsee any losses on

Particulars As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be exccuied on capital

account and not provided for (net of advances) —

21.04
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Veeda Clinical Rescarch Limited (for merly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are caloulated by dividing the profit for
the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated
Pplus the weighied average number of

the year altributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average

by dividing the profit anriburable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
Equity shires that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity

Tha following reflects the income and share used in the basic and diluted EPS computation:

niumber of equity shares outstunding during

shares,

average number of Eyuity shares outstanding during the year

it For the year ended | For the year ended
AR March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022

Profit after tax for the year 259.52 18331
Nominal velue of equity share (Amount in Rs.) 2 2
Total number of equity shares 52,893,986 52 893 086
Weighted average number of equity shares 52,893 086 46,862,176
Effect of dilution:
Dilutive effect of stock aptions granted under ESGRP 122.896 104,964
Weighted average number of shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 53,016,882 46,967,140
Earning per equity share (Amount in Rs.)
Basic samings per share 4.91 3.91
Diluted earnings per share 4.50 3.90

Notes

Ther above earning per share as at Marcl 3 1, 2022 has been computed based on revised number of shares considering split and bonus issue during the year ended March 31 2022,




Veeda Clinieal Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Al amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)
23 Disclosure for employee benefits

(a) Defined contribution plans
Amount recognized as expenses and included in note 16 "Emplovee

benefit expenses”

- For the year ended For the year ended March

Plrticulans March 31, 2023 31,2022
Contribution to Provident fund 19.05 17.55
Contribution to Employee slate incurance 1.49 1.60
Total 20.54 19.15

(b) Defined benefits plan

The Company has following post employment benafit which is in the nature of delined benefit plan;

Gratuity

The Company provides for graluity for employees in India s per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Employees whae are in conlinupus service for a period of 5

years are eligible for graluity, The amount of gratity payable on relirement/lermination is the eémployees last drawn basic salary per month computed
praportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service ealculated on actuarial busis, The gratuily plan is a funded plan to the extent
balance available in Gratuity account maintained with bank. Balance available in such account as at March 31 » 2025 is Rs. 0.07 million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 007

million).

i, Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation

Particulars Asat March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Opening defined benefit obligation 3895 34.79
Current Service Cost 6,47 6.25
Past Service Cost . 5
Interest Cost 245 2.04
Components of actuarial guin { (losses) on obligation
= Due to change in demographic assumptions . 0.59
- Due to change in financial assumptions {3.97) {130y
- Due to experience adjustments (0.26) 0.69
Benefits paid 4.36 4,15
Closing defined benefit obligation 47.74 38.95
ii. Reconciliation of the fair value of plan assets
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Opening value of plan assets 0.07 0.07
Interest Income ¥ ans
Retum on plan assets excluding amounts included in inferest income . (0.05)
Clusing value of plan assets 0.07 0.07

* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million,

jii, Net liability/(Asset) recognized in the Balance Sheet

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Present value of defined benefit obligations 47.74 38,95
Fair value of plan assets {0.07) (0.07)
Net liahility/{Asset) recognized in the Balance Sheet 47.67 38.88

iv. Expenses recopnized in the statement of profit and loss

For the year ended March

For the year ended March

Particulars 31,2023 31,2022
Current service cost 6.47 6.25
MNet imterest cost 245 1.99
|Net gratuity cost recognized in the statement of profit and loss 8,92 8.24

W= =/
‘?&-jj\ &\\4____/ ‘:ﬁf
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Veeda Clinieal Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinieal Research Private Limited")

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023
(Al amounts in rupees million, unless atferwise stated)

23 Disclosure for employee benefits

v. Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended March

For the year ended March

Particulars 31,2023 31,2022
Actuarial guins / (losses)
- Due to change in demographic assumptions - 0.59
- Due to change in financial assumptions (3.97) (1.30)
- Due fo experience adjustments {0.26) .69
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in net interest expense i (0.05)
Camponents of defined benefit costs recognized in other comprehensive income (4.24) (0,07)

* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million.

vi. The major eategories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assels

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Bank balance (escrow account) 100% 100%
Total 100% 100%
The principal assumptions used in determining ahove defined benefit ohligations for the company’s plan are shown below:
Particulars As at Mareh 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022
Discount rate 735% pa 6.70% pa
Future salary increuse 10.00% pa B00% pa
Age 25 & below: 25% pa. Age 25 & below: 25% p.a.
25t035:25% pa 251035 25% paa.
Employee turnover 351045 15% pa 351045 15% pa
4510 55: 10% p.a. 4510 55: 10% p.a.
55 & ahove: 0% p.a 55 & above: 0% pa
; Indian Assured Lives|Indian Assured Lives
ortality rat 3 _
ey Y Mortality (2012-14) Mortality (2012-14)

Sensitivity analysis for significant assumplion is as under:

Increase / (decrease) in defi

ned benefit obligation

rticul Sensitivity |
Fartieslis FHEHE For the year ended March | For the year ended March

31,2023 31,2022
. 0.5% imcrease (1.60) (121}

5 it ro

e 0.5% decrease 1.70 128
St ineresse 0.3% increase 1.64 125
SR 0.5% decrease (1.56) {1.20)
Employee turnowver Change by 10% upward (0.94) (0.49)
Change by 10% downward 1.05 053

The following ave the expected future benefit payvments for the

defined benefit plan (Undiscounted )2

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporling period) 510 4.71
Between 2 and 5 years 23.08 20,79
Between 6 and 10 years 17.35 12.47




Veeda Clinical Rescarch Limited (Formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Ressarch Private Limited")
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31,2023
(Al ameounts 1n rupees million, unless stherwise stated)

24 Relsted party transaciions
As per the Tndiun Accounting Standard on "Refated Party Disclosures” (Ind AS 24), the relued parties of the company are 25 follows:
Name of related puarties and their relition ship

Holding Company
Basil Private Limited

Sulsidiary Conipunies

Bionezds India Private Limited (W.ef, July 16, 3021)

Activin Chemicals and Pharmaceuticals Private Limited (W.e.f. July 16, 2021 upio July 20, 3631)

Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited (Wa f Juby 16, 2021) (Wholly svned subsidiary wef. December 15,2021)

Juint ventore and associnte
Ingenuity Biosciences Privite Limited (W.e.f, March 29,2021
Bivneeds India Private Limited (Upta July 15, 2023

Entity with significant influence on the Cbmfmuy
Bondway Investment Inc.

Key manngerial personnel of the Company

M. Mitin Deshmukh (Independent Director) (W.e.f, July 01, 2021)

Mr. Rukesh Bhartia (Independent Director) (W.a.f. July 01, 2021) :
Mrs. Kavata Singh (Tndependent Directon) (W.e . July 01, 203§

Mrs. Jeanne Hecht (Independent Director) (W.a.f, July 01, 2021)

Mr. Jegannath Samavedam (Nominee Directar - wef. Januzry 28, 30312) (Mominee Director= w.ef Jurie 22,2021 upbo July 16, 2021)
Mr Apurva Shah (Directar)

Mr. Binay Gardi (Direstor) (Till June 26, 20231

Mr. Ajay Tandon (Managing Direcior)

Mr. Vivek Chhachhi (Nominee Directar)

Mr. Manu Sahni (Nomines Director)

Ms. Aparagiea Jethy Ahuja (Momines Director)

Mr. Kirsn Marthak {Director)

Mr. 8. N. Vinava Babu (Director) (W.ef. July 18, 2031}

Mr. Nirmal Bhatia (Comypany Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer - wie.f. June 22, 2021)

Nature of transaciions with refated parties For the year ended Murch 31, 2023 | For the year ended March 31, 2022
Holding company
Basil Private Limited
Reimbursement recevable fom selling shureholder pecognlaad 068 998

Enfity with significint infuesce on Compun
Bondway Invesiment Ine,

Reimbursement receivable from salling sharehoider recognized 124 1827
Dividend paid on CCUPS elass 'A' shares - 7604
Jusi

Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited

Reimbursement of expenscs incurred .01 10
Reimburserient for esnploves stack aptions granted .02 003
Rent income a7 067
Sale of service 240 263
Purchase of service 4.02 -
Sale of propery, plant and equipmem - 452
Loan given 12,00 2300
Repayment of loan given - 1.00
Tnterest income on loan wives - 03z
Tnterest income on delayed payment towards MSME dues 002 1462
Loan writien off 3400 -

Subsidiary (Wee £ July 16, 2021) (Assciate w.e.f, March 19, 2021 4o Julv 15,

2021)
Bivneeds India Private Limited

Investment in equiry shares 100,00 -
Investment in Optionally Convenible Redeemable Preference Shares (O RPE) - 233 30
Inberest neome on loan given - 1016
Repiyimient of loan given - 330
Purchase of consumables o228 .
Tnterest paid om deluyed payment towsds MSME dues o.02 -

mangerial pecsonnel
Remunerntion (including perqisites)

Mr. Ajay Tandon 1500 15 0

Acquisition of additional stake in Subsidiary Company

Mr, 5. N. Vinaya Babu 38000 RIR |

Prafessional fees paid 10 non-executive divector

Mr. Kiran Marthak 3.60 185
. Nitin Deshmukh 1.50 1.13

w “Rakesh Bhirlia 1.50 1.13
s\ Kavit Singh 1.50 113
Mﬁg.-‘;é:mne Hechr 322 228
ﬁ{lll Hincluding perguisites)
“Wirmal Bltia 13.49 14,19
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as " Veeda Clinical Research Private Linyitad'")
Notes to Standulone Financial Statements for the yeur ended Maych 31, 2023
LAl amaunts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Relatad party transactions

Nature of transactions with relied parties For the year ended March 31,2023 | For the year ended March 31, 2022
Resit - Cipense
Mr. Apurva Shal 0.60 050
Reimbursen ent of expenses
Mr. Ajay Tandon 0,34 008
Mr. Kivan Marthgk 012 o1t
Mr, Mirmial Bhalia 024 024
ESOF Expenses
Mr. Ajay Tandon 279 712
Mr. Kiran Marthuk 0.24 047
Mr, Nirmal Bhatia 048 053
Issue of shires on exercise of ESOP
Me. Nirmal Bhatia - 17.50
Outstanding balances at the end of the year As al March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Holding com pauy

Basil Private Limiied
Remmbursement receivahle fiom selling shareholdar 1068 998

Bondway Investment Ine,

Reimbursement receivable from selling shaneholder 1951 18.27
sk v in which the company is rer

Ingeunity Biosciences Private Limited

(Trade payable) / Reimburse ment receiy ahle (1.75) Q.12

Loan given (including interest acerued) - 2234

Subsidipry (Woel July 16, 2021) (Associate wee.f, Mureh 13 2021 to July 15,
2021]

Bioneeds India Private Limited
Investenent in Optionally Convertible Redeemable Pre Ference Shares (OCRPS) 23330 233,30

Cmanagerinl persi
Remuneration payable ! (receivahbie) {includling perquisiies)

Mr. Ajay Tandon |04 .09
Prafessional fees puyable 1o non-executive director

Mr, Kiran Marthak - 027
Ms. Nitin Deshmukh - 014
Mr. Rakesh Bhartia - 0.11
Mre. Kavita Singh g Q.11
Salary payuble (including perquisites)

Mz Mirmal Bhatia G691 0.76
Reimbursement of expenses payable / {receivahla)

Mr. Ajay Tandon (0,02 {0.10)
M. Kiran Marthak 008 003

Terms and conditions of transactions with related partios

(1) The Company’s transactions with related parties we @t arm’s lenuth, Management believes that the Company’s domestic and international transactions with related
parties post March 31, 2022 continue i be 2 arm's lenzth and thal the transfer pricing legistation will not have any impact on the financial staements particularly on the
amount of the lax expense for the year and the amount of the provision for taxation at the yeer end,

{2) The future lighility for gratuity and compensaied ghsence is provvided on ageregared basiz for gl the emplayees of the Company tiken 15 2 whole, the amoun:
pertaining to key misnagerial personnel is nat ascertainable separaely and therefore not included abowe,

{3) Loan 1o Bubsidiary (was an associate till July 15,2021)

The toan granmed to Bionesds Tndia Private Limited is intended to fund the repayment of its CVCFL Biability, The loan is unseoured and is repayable on or before nal
maturity date which shall not be Jater than 3 months from the date of disburserient ar such other dute a3 mutually wureed amon the partees to loan. Loan carries interes|
rale of 1500% p.a. compounded annual Iv. The loan has been utilized for the purpose for which it was zranted, The said lpan hias been received on July 16, 2021

(4) Laan 1o Joimt venture i which the company is a venturer

The loan granted to Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limired is intended 1 fund its working capdal requirements. The loan 15 aisecured and is repayable within 2 years
from the date of wgreement, However, the loan may be repaid 4 any fime by the borrover, Loan irries interest rate of 6 00%% p.a, cempounded annually, The loan has
been ulilized for the purpose for wiich it was ganed,

Nom-cash transaction with key managesial persannel:
During the year eoding March 31, 2022, the Company has acquired additional 25 009% of total shase capital of Bioneeds equivaben 1o 1,785,721 equity shares from Mr.
5. N. Vinaya Babu {Director of Veeda) for which the consideration has been paid by allolment of 2,835 564 gwn equity shases of the Company.




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly kuown as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023
(Al amounes in rupees million, unlese otherwise stared)

25 Carporate sociul responsibility (CSR) expenditure
Particulars For the year ¢nded March 31, 2023 For the year ended March 31, 2022
The gross amount required to be spent by the Company an the corparate social
a)  sespoasibility (CSR) activities during the year as per the provisions of Section 135 of 173 .05
the Companies Act, 2013 {refer nole befow)
b} Amoum gpproved by the board to be spent during the year 71.73 11.05
€)  Amcunt spent during the year I eash Y“_m B pied, Total Incash Yz ko be paid Total
in cash in caish
i) Construction / acquisition of asset - - - E - -
i} On purposes other than (i) above 773 = 7.73 10,36 - 10.36
d}  Details refated to spentiunspent obligations:
i} Contritistion to public trust - = - 3 = =
i) Contribution to charitable trust fAssociation af person registered under
Section 124 of Tncome Tax Act, 1961 7.1 . 713 *h g #.86
iil) Contribution ta others . . - 050 = 0sm
iv) Unspent amount in relation to;
- Ongoing project = = = = = z
= Othes than ongoing project a = % < 2, .
Total 7.73 - .73 10.36 - 10.36
€)  reason for shorifid| Mot zpplicable ot applicable
details of relaled party transzctions, s, contdbution to 3 truit controlled by the < i
lics alicahl
o Campany in relation to CSR expenditure a8 por relevint Accounting Standard, Wetzpplisble Matappilcalle
where a provision is made with respect to-a Fubifity incurred by entering inte al
g) conusciual obligation, the movements in the provision during the year shall be Not applicable Notapplicable
shown separately
h)  Details of CSR expenditure under section 135(5) of the Actin respeci of other than angoing projects
Particul For the yeir ended March 31,
articulars 2013
Balanee 35 at April 01, 2022 {0.02)
Amount deposited in a specified fund of sehedule VIN of the Act within & mienthe -
Amount required to be spent during the year 173
Amount spent during the year 773
Balance unspent as at March 31, 2023 (0.02)
For the year ended March 31,
Particulars 2092
Balwnce as at April 01, 2021 (0.71)
Amount deposited in & specified fund of sehedule VI of the Act within & minths 3
Amount required 1o be spent dusing the year 11.05
Amount spent during the year 1035
Balance wispent as at March 31, 2022 (002
Note:
Amount reguired to be spent by the Company has heen eomputed based on signed financial stetements of respectiva yeurs,
26 Detwils of dues ta mices and small anterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

The Minisiry of Micro, Small and Medium Enierprises has issued an office memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the Micra and Small Emerprises should mention in
their correspondence with Its cusiomers the Entreprencurs Memorandum Mumber 3¢ allacared afier filing of the Memorandum in aceordance with the "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006' {* the M SMED Act).

Accordingly, the disclosure in tespect of the amounts peyable 1o such enterprises 25 at March 31, 2023 has been made in the Financizl Statements based on information receivied and
svailable with the Compuny, Further in view oF the Munagement, the impact of inerest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected 1o be

material The Company has not received any claim far jnterest fram any Supplier as al the Balance Sheet date,

The defails as required by MEMED Act are given helow

Asat As at

Farticulars
TS Mareh 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022

The peincipal amouni and the interest due thereon remalni ng unpaid to any supplier as at the end of acco g year;

Priincipal and ierest amount

Trade peyable 2578 3530

Capital payable 119 86

The aicunt of interest paid by the buyer under the MSMED Agy, 2008 along with the amounts of the payment made o

the supplier bevond the appoined day during each socvunting years 1Az i
The amaunt of interest due and payable for the year {where the principel has been paid but interest under the MSWED

Act nod paid); = -
The amount of interest accnued and temaining unpaid at the end of accounting year; and = =
The amount of fusther interest due and payable even in the succeeding period, until such date when the intesest dues az)

dbove are avtually paid to the small enterpeise, for the purpese of disallowance 2. deductible expenditure under| %

of MEMED Act, 2006

SRETg)
e

{;%gnaliun and reconds avaitable with the Campany, the above disslosures ara made in respect of amount due 10 the micie and small entespiises, which have been registered with

fgﬂl’ 11elcul authorities. This has been relied upaon by the audiices.
i
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (Foruerly known os "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Standalone Finuncial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023
(Al smounts in rupees million, unfess atherwise stated)

Segment reporting

The company is mainly angaged in the business of Clinical
‘Clinical Rasearch' and all the activities of the Company revolve around this main business. The Chief Operating decision maker (
business 25 a whale for the purpose af making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Therelore, manaugmen
segment and there are no separate reporiable segments in teoms of the requirements of Ind AS 108

Grographical segment
For management puiposis, the company is organized ito fwo major sperating geographies Indiz and owside India. More than 30%%

ssgment reveniue is disclosed based on geographical location of cusiomers in the

Rescarch for various Pharmaceuticaly Companies. The company's business fails within a single business segment of

CODM) monitors the operating results of the
Lviews compiny's business activity as o single

"Opesating Segments® as notified under section 133 of the companies Agt 2013

af the Company's business iz from India, The

Ginancial staements for the year ended March 31 v 2023 and March 31,2022,

Revenue from external customers For the vear ended Mareh 31, 2023 For the year ended March 31, 2022
Tndia 040 08 B40.38
1f5 653 85 40K 36
Gireece 404 44 132.17
Olihers 432 26 857,40

The following is an analysis of the: carrying amount of non-cisrrent BSSLS,
geogriphical area in which the asseis are located:

which do not include deferred 1 assers, income tax assers and francial assels analyzed by the

Carrying amount of non-current operaling assels As at March 31, 2023

As at Mareh 31, 2022

Tnidia 1,155.29

81133

Duiside Indin E

Information ahout major customers:
The company has assessed that there are o extemal customers from which tha revenue from transaciions is 1084 ar more of the Com
31,2023 and for the year ending March 31, 3012,

pany's total revenue For the year ending March

Iﬂ'_i it

edabad



Veeda Clinical Researel Limded (formerly kaown as "Yeeda Clinical Researeh Private Limired")
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the yearended March 31, 2023
(A aovsunis in Tugess million, unfezs otherwisa stited)

28 Financial instrument - Giir vadue hiera rehy

The significant aceounting policias, includ ing the criterin for recognition, the basis of measuremeny and the basiz on which income and expensas ane recognized, in respect of 2ach class
of financial 2sset, financial Fabilin: and quity insirument are disclozed in note 2 fo the standalone financial slatements

Fair vilues
A. Categery-wise elassification of Gnancial instrument
The carrving value of financial instramens by categories as at March 31, 2023 and Masch 3 [,:2022:

Particulars Maotes As at Marcch 31, 2023 Az at March 31, 2022
Financial assets;
Al cost
Investments 4.1 213150 1,65132
Sulb-total 213150 1,651.32
AL amoitized cost
Loans {noncurrent) 435 - 2234
Trade receivabiles 42 TiE40 77582
Cash and cash equivalenis 4.3 REE Bl 57716
Other bark hatances 44 28400 28.56
(her Mnancia! ascers (oumant) 46 374,08 T1.03
Other financial sss2is fnan-current) 456 356,45 8939
Sub-total 2,019.14 1,869.40
Total 4,150.64 3.530.72
Fair value through prafit and loss
Invesimnts 4.1 TR0 17 1,117.28
Fair varlue of eall gption 4.6 4088 73.15
521.05 1,190.43
Total financial assets 4.971.69 4, T1L15
Finuncial Hiabilities
At mmartized cost
Trade payables Lot 191 90 20477
Leass lighilities ki 451.25 780
Other financial Eabifities (current) 102 147.43 173,30
Chther finmcial labifites {ron-gurreni) 102 050 0.50
Tatal 79108 766,27
At fair vilue throngh profit & loss
Mark to market linbility on forward comracrs 102 %36 -
Total 936 -
80044 66,27

The management aszessed that carving values of finaneial assets ke, eash and cash squivalents, ade pasahles, made receivables, current invesimenis and other financial assets and
lighilities 2= arMarch 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are rzasonable approsimutions of their falr values largely due to the shom-term manaities of thesa mEUmeEns,

The fair value of the financial essets and liabikies ic included at the amount st which the insrumant could be exchanged in 3 current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liguidation sale:

Fair value hicracchy

The Company wses the following hirarchy for determining andior disclos ng the fuit value of Financial Instrumenie by valuation techniques:

(i) Level 1; guoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical Asseis or Linbilities,

(1) Level 2: inputs other than quoed prices included witlin Level 1 that arz observable for the Asscis or Liakilites aither direcly (i.e. as pricesYor indinectiy (i.e., derived from prices),
(i) Level 3: inpuss for the Assets or Liabilitics that are not based on abserable matket data funobsenable inpurs),

Quaintitative dischosures fiir value measurement hievarchy =

Fair Yalue

Particulars Asat Mareh 31,2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Opening bhalance B83.98 298.52
Net zain on invesiment in mutoul fands 4013 12.85
4,;;;;-:—:‘ Pligheses 3800 79950
’f’ 4| Sal By, 415.24 13737
< 54687 553,98

Puarticulas

As at Marchi 31, 2023

As nt March 31, 2022

Fair Value hievarchy

Significant shservahle

input

Investment in mutual funds at Fair valus thraugh profit and loss (refer nose

MAV Siatement provided

an B46.8T £33.98 Lavel-1 by fund mansger

Call aption on nan-controlling inkeras: of subsidiary company (refer nota 4058 Wi Leval “‘j'd. party independent
4.6) valuation report

Mark v nmarket lability on forward conmacts {refer note 16.3) 935 Level-2 MTM stasement by bank

Mure: Investment in OCRPS iz carried at cost conzidering the samiz a5 shart 1emm in nature and hence the fair value hi

Financial instrument measuved at amortized eost

The

Reconciliarion of level 1 fair values

The followsng table shows a reconciliation from the opening balance to the closing balances for laval | fair

eirrying amtount of financial sssers and financial liabilifes megsured &t aniortized cost In the financial
Company does not anticipare thal tie Garying amwounis wondd be significantly differ

eraichy has not been disclosed

slatements arz 2 reasonable approximation of their fuir valuss since the
ol fram the values thas would eventually bz received or gattled.

values reprasenting ihvessmentin short ferm liguid mitual funds.

ff qhb‘ |Closing balaiice
s
REALY
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Flnunchal risk mansgerient objeciives and policies
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (Tormerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the yearended March 31, 2023

{All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)
31 Leases

Company as a Lessce:

The company has operating lease for various premises which are remewable on a periodic basis and cancellable at
+batween 3 10 9 years. The compuny has availed the exemplion of Jow value of assets. Lease paymenis evaluated b
with company not exercising any tenmination or renewal options 1o terminate or extend the original lease
of amorlization expense on right of use asssts is assumed to be the term of the lease

its eption. The lease terms of premises are
¥ the company are fived payiments in nature
term. Useful life of right of use asset for complutation
and method used is straight-line mathod,

The company has taken certain premiscs on leuse wherein lease rent is of law value amounting to Rs. 0.88 million for the year ended March 31, 2023 (Year

ended March 31, 2022; Rs, 1.07 million). The company applies low value lease

i) The carrying value of right of use and depreciation charged during the year

rent exemption for these leases,

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31,2022
Premises
Opening balance 20847 363.09
Additions during the year 199 36 3.05
Termination during the year (55.92) (1.51)
Depreciation charged during the year {refer note 3) (86.27) {66.16)
Closing balance 355,64 298.47

i) The movement in lease liabilities during the year

Particulirs Asat March 31,2023 | Asat March 31, 2022
Opening balance 377.80 434.02
Additions 193.61 3.06
Termination during the year (62.83) (1.82)
Payment of lease lighilities (106.42) (98.20)
Interest expenses (refer nole 17) 49.09 40.74
Closing balance 451,25 377.80

iii) Balances of lease liabilities

Particulars As at March 31,2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Current lease liabilities 76,40 72.14
Non-current lease liahilitics 374 85 30566
Total 451.25 377.80

iv)  Amount recognized in statement of profit and loss during the year

i For the year ended For the year ended
B Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 1022—|
Depreciation expense on right of use asset {refer nole 3 86.27 66.16
Interest expense on lease liahilities (refer mote 17) 49.09 40,74
Expenses relaling to low value Jeases (included in other expense) {refer note 19} 0838 1.07
Gain on lease termination (refer note 14) (7.48) (0.34)
Total 128.76 107.63

v)  Maturity analysis of lease liabilities

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Maturity analvsis of contractual undiscounted cash flows

Less than one year T6.40 1214
One to five years 23738 20008
Maore than five years 147.47 105,58
Total 451.25 377.80

vi)  Amount recognized in cash flow Statement

Particulars For the year ended For the yeur ended
. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
/_,’ ga:}izmnf"t%{:incipal portion of lease liability 57.33 57.46
%, e et jierest portion of lease Hability 45 09 40.74
106,42 98.20

. 3 1)
y/ r;/ Total <N\
il Yv‘
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Veuda Clinical Research Limited (Tormerly known as
Notes to Standulone Financial Statements for the year
(Al amoums in rupess million, unless otherwise stated)

"Veeda Clinical Research Private Li
ended March 31, 2023

Ewployee stock option plans

Under ESOP 2019, the board of directors i autharized to grant options exercisable ino subscription of shares of the company. Bach aption shall be convertible inio one equity
share and the aggrepate number of options subscribed inte shares shall nat excead 55 of the paid-up capinel of the Company, The options granted under ESOP 2015 will be
excrcisable at an exercise price of Rs. 10,644 par shars Tor round 1 to 3 and Rs. 12,823 per share for round 4 (Rs. 177,40 for round 1 to 3 and Rs. 21370 for round 4 after
considering effect of split and bonus issue). IF the aptions expire o become unexercisahle without having heen exercised in full, the unexersised apiions, which were subject
thereto, shall become available for future grani,

The fair value of the share options is estimared at the prant dite using Black-Scholes madel, taking info decount the terms and conditions upan which the share options were
granted. Howaver, the shove performance candition is on Iy cansidered in determining the rumber of insiruments that will ultimiarely vest,

The conractuel term of each option granied is varying from 85 months ta 101 months, There are o cash setllement liematives. The company does not have a past practics of
cash settlement for these share options, The company ascounts for the Veeds Emplayee Steck Option Plan 2019 (VESP) as an equity-setiled plan,

The expense secounized far employes services received during the year is showa in the following tahle:

For the year ended March

v Far the year ended Mau-u:ﬂ
Particulsirs
N 31,2023 31,2022
Expense arising from equity-seifled share-based Payment ransactions 450 1822
Total expense arising from share-based Py ment transactions 4.80 1822

There were na cancellalions or modifications to the awards during the year ending March 31, 3093 gnd March 3 12002

Movements during the year
The follawing tabfe iliustrates the number and weighted avesage exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share opnons during the year:

Year ended March 31, 2023+

WAEP (Rs.) 177.40

WAEP (Rs.) 213.70

SReiiE Nusmber of ESOP Number of ESOP
Outstending at the beginning of the year 811,680 GEO, Faf
Granted during the year - -
Farfemted during the year 56,620 146,250
Exercised during the year - i
Expired during the year = -
Ouststanding at the end of the year 736,060 535510
Exercisuble at the end of the Year 399040 266,100

Yeiir ended March 31, 2622+

*MNumber of ESOP gl WAEP are considered after the bonus and split impact (refer note B).

Parliculars

WAEP (Rs.) 177.40
Number of ESOP

WAEP (Rs.) 213.70
Mumber of ESQOP

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,174,560 -
Granied duriig the year - A3 000
Forfeited during the year 47,520 115,440
Exercised during the year 315,600 -
Expired during the year = 2
Outstanding at the end of the year &11 6RO 650, 160
Exercisable at the end of the year 423 960 170,040

*Nurnber of ESOP and WAEF are comsidered afier the e

The follawing tables list the inputs 1o the models used far

s and sphit impact (refer noie 8),

the year ended March 31, 2022

. WAEP (Rs.) 177.40 WAEP (Rs.) 213.70
Particulars VESP VEsP
Werghted average fair values at the measurement dale 3 30.97 383
Dividend yicld (%) - -
Expesied volatifity (94) 2226 21,14
Risk~lres inlerest rate (%) 5E3 6.32
Expected life of share options (years) 575 &30
Weighted averaze share price [Rs) 2 184,47 21132
Model used Blavk-Scholes Black-Scholes

# Weaghted average fair values at the measurement date and Weighted average share price arg considered afler the bomus and split impact (refer note 8).

The expected wolatility reflects the assumption that the histerical volatility over & period similar 1o the

e the actual outcatng,

Iife of the options is indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily




Veedu Clinical Researeh Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Notes to Stundalone Finuncil Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in mapees million, unless oif 1erwise stated)

33 Ratio analysis and its clements

: Y ehange Mrom
r Particulars MNumerator Denuminator As at March 31, 2023 Azt r};’;‘h H; Mareh, 2022 10
March 2023
[Current miio Current Assers Cuszent Liabilities 2.73 344 21%
Current  borrowings + None
Debt- Equity Ratio current  borrowingst  leaselSharcholder's Equity 009 Q.08 2%
payients
Earning fir Debi Service = MNet
Profit after 1axes + Non-cash|Debt service = Interest & Lense
Debt Service Coverage ratio Operating Payments + Principal 4.94 350 41%
expenscs + Inteiest + other Repayimens
adjustments
Return on Equity satio Net Profils afler (axes — Average Shareholder's Equity 0.05 0.05 -8%

Prefesence Dividend
Inventory Turnover atin Cost of poods sold Average Inventory 300 298 194
Net credit sales = Gross eredit
sales - sules rewrn

‘Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio Average Trade Receivable 3.99 365 9%

Net credit purchases = Gross

Trade Payable Tumover Ratin credit purchases - purchase Average Trade Payables 039 .19 -25%
returm
et sales = Total sales - sales| e8¢ working  capital =

Net Capital Tumover Ratio bl i “|Current  assets —  Current 1.55 171 0%
Teturn e

lizbilities
. Net sales = Total sales - s I ;
Met Profit ratio Met Prafit affer rax r;.tr:dm Tosl salew = sales % 8% 7%

x . i ed = si il
Earnings befre interest and Capital Emglayed = Tangible

Return an Capital Erngloyed i Net Worth + Total Delbt + T %) 28%)
= Defermed Tax Liability
Return on [nvestmient Intetest (Finance Incorme) Investment 205 154 ?‘}6'
Reason for change more than 25% in above ratios
Particulars Reasons for %, change from Mareh 51, 2022 to Mareh 31,2023
Current ratio Not Applicabled
Debt- Equity Ratio Mot Applicabled
Debt Service Covernge ratin Thete is an improvement in debt service coverage ratio due to increase in profils,
Return on Equity ratin Nat Applicablest
Inventony Turmover ratio Mot Applicableg
Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio Mot Applicable¥
Trade Pavahle Turnover Ratio There is an improvement in trade payable mmover ratio due to decrease in purchase,
Met Capital Turnover Rafio Mot Applicable#
Net Profit ratio Mot Applicabled
Return on Capital Employed There is an ingrovement in retum on capital employed due to incrense in profits,
Return on Invesiment Thiere s increase in return on iny estment due 1o inciease in inierest rate of fived deposits.

# Since change is tess than 2526, reasons ar such changes are nat given as per the CEgquireIenis,
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known 25 "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Government of India's Code for Social Security 2020 {the 'Code’) received assent from the President in Sepiember 2020, However, the date from whan the Code will become applicable and rules have not
yet been notified, The Company will assess the impact of the Code and sccount Tor the same once the effective dale and ules are notified.

There are no materinl subsequent evenis which have any significant impact on financial statements of the Company.

Other Statutery information:

{i) The Company deoes not have any Benami property, where any procesding has been initiated or pending sgainst the Company for halding any Benami properly under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition} Act, 1985 and rules made thereunder.

(i1} The Company dees not have any transaclions with Companics Slruck off.
(i} The Company does not have any eharges or salisfaclion which is yet 1o be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,
(iv) The Company does have not raded or invested in Cryplocurrency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(%) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persans) ar entity(ies), including foreign enities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

{a) directly ar indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whalsoever by or on behalf of the company (Wimate Beneficiaries), or
{b) provide any guaranice, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics.

(vi} The Company has not received any fund from any personish or entity(ies), including foreiga entities (Funding Party) with the undersianding (whether recorded in writing of olherwiss) that the
Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons er entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Pasty (Ultimate Beneficiaries), or

(b} provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Bereficiares.

{viil) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the hooks of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other rélevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 19613,

{viii} The Company has not been declased a Wilful Defaultess by any bank or financial institution or consortium thereof in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the RBL

(i) Theee is na immovable property whose tifle deed is not held in the name of the Company.
(%) The Company has complied with the fum ber of layers prescribed under clause (R7) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Resiriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

(i} The Company has availed loans from banks on the basis of security of ourrent assts. The Company files statement of current assets with the bank on pericdical basis. There are ne material
discrepancies between the stafemenis filed by the Company and the books of accounts of the Company.,

{xii} The Company has not entered into any scheme of armangement in terms of sections 230 1o 237 of the Companies Act, 2013,

With effect from August 5, 2022, the Ministry of Corpocate Affairs (MCA) has amended the Companies {Aceoims) Rules, 2014, relating 1o maintenance of electronic books of secount and ofher refevant
books and papers on daily basis in the servers located within India. Howeves, Company has not taken backups on weekend (i.e. Sunday), bowever, the backup of the same is covered on the follawing
weekiday (Le, Monday), Considering the requirement urder applicable statute, management will take necessary steps and configure syslems to ensure that bisck up for books of accounts will be maimainad
an a daily basis.

As per our report of even date

For SR B C & Co. LLP For and on Behalfof the Bonrd of Directors of

Chartered Accouniants Veeda Clinical Research Limited

ICAI FRN: 324982 E/E 300003 {formerly known as *Veeds Clinieal Research FPrivaie Limited")

({CIN - U3 00GI2004PLON44021)

O ghe NARU=

per Sukrut Mehta Nitin Deshmukh Ajay Tandon Nirmal Bhatia
Pariner Chairman Managing Director Company Secretary & CFO
Membership No, 101574 DIN: 00060743 DIM: 0221072 ICSI Membership Mo, 12551

Date: Sepiember 05, 2023
Place: Alhmedshad, India

Date; Seplember 05, 2023
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known 85 "Vesda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Consalidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
{All amuanis in Indian rpees million, unkess ol ise sty

" As at Asat
Egrticula Note March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
L. Assets
Non-current assets
{a) Property, plant and equipment 31 61683 121225
{b} Capital work-injwogress 32 186935 190.1%
{2} Coodwill 41 () L0k0. 58 1,080 28
{d) Right of use asseis R 530,42 408 48
{e} Other intangible asseis 34 20,37 23587
() vangible assets under development 31 EL N 1371
(2] Investment in associate and jent veniure al s =
(h) Financial sssets
(i) Loaas g - 1511
{i1) Onher Mnancial psses 9 42385 215.04
(i) Income lax assets (oot} 11 13522 23046
(1} Oiher non-cuirent 135215 10 B0 31 54,50
Total pon-cur rent assets 440574 36EL10
Current assets
{a) lnventories 12 7.8 8451
{b) Fiancial asseis
(1) Tavestmens 432 S4GET $R39%
(i1} Trade receivables 5 1.051.24 QL1
(i) Cash and cash equivalens i I6RF1 593 89
{iv) Bank balance gther than (i) sbaove 7 244 00 FLB
(v} Orber Ninancial assets 9 45303 40571
(e} CHher current neseis 10 206.99 147.24
Total current ascets 294192 3,124,531
Total asseis T.347 .66 £,77542
1L Equity and Rabilitics
Equity
(a) Equity Slire capital 13 105,78 105 78
(b} Othsar equity 14 446352 419482
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 457160 4,301.60
HNomt-c onirolling inierest 3773 7122
Tatal siuity 4.628.33 437383
Linbilities
Non-current liabilities
(@) Financeal Labifities
(i} Bosromings 15 259.12 353.50
(it} Leasc liabilives 35 544 57 42443
Other Gnancual liabiliies 7 .50 036
(&) Prov isions 1% 65 B3 33350
() D ferred Lae Babiliies (nat) 21 3737 3730
Total non-current Habilities 90839 BR9.09
Curcent liahifities
{a} Financial Liah&iics
(i} Borrowimgs is 22662 L1852
(hi} Loasz Kakiliies EL] 19106 9143
(i) Trade payahles
fa) lun! outstanding ducs of micro enterprises and snall 1513 4268
CHRCp s 16
tb):ola.r n?nslamlmg ducs uf?rniltws ollser thun micrg hea7 20510
enserpeises and small enerprises
(v} Other financial Kabilities 17 23166 24213
(b Cithver gurreni labifities 18 49719 TELT4
(e} Provisions 1] 2213 2942
) T ome tax Biabifities (ned) 1] 7358 249
Tatal current linbilities 1,800,594 1,513.51
Taotal liabilities 2,718.33 240260
Total equity and liabilities 7347 65 PRELET
Summary of significunt accouning policics - &)
Summary of sigmilicant accounting judgemens, cxlimates and nssumpiions 22

The scconipinying netcs are an integral part of these consolidated finonciol stwments.

A per our report of even date
For SRBC & Ca. LLP
Chariered Azeountants

TCA] FRMN; 32494 2EE3 KNG
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Veeda Clinical Rescarch Limited (formerly known as " Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Statement of Consolidated Profit snd Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
(ANl amaunts in Indizn rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

i Year ended Year ended
Srle: Tl Bt Mareh 31, 2023 March 31,2022
() Bevenue from operations 22 4,005 T8 288026
(1)  Cherincome _ 3 [06.32 5083
(TI)  Total income {1+ [T} 4,202.10 2,931.00
(IV)  Expenses
Cost of material consumed 4 32987 282,60
Employee benefits expense 25 1,091 82 872.73
Finanee costs 26 13882 96.29
Depreciation and amortization expense 3 380.25 254.06
Clinical and analvtical research expenses 27 93925 60828
(hther expenses 23 T00.52 50233
Tolal expenses {IV) 358063 2616358
Praofit before share of profit/ {loss) of an assuciute and a joint venture,
i b remitaedes shalnd oo, 621.47 314.74
foi i i
v Shere of grafit / (loss) from joint venture and associate (net of {ax) (refer noie 40 (2667) 3.44
and 41 {a)}
(VII) Exceptional items (VI 41(b) . 34117
(VIII) Prafit before tax (¥ + VI + VII) 594,80 65935
(IX) Tas cxpense 2]
{1} Caurrent tax 192,79 9424
(2] Deferred tax charga / (credit) (19.29) a0 53
(3) Adjustment of tax relating to éarlier years (293}
Total tax expense (IX) 170.57 154.77
(X}  Profit for the year (VITI-1X) 42423 5458
(XI)  Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Trems that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (2.48) 0.89
Tncome bax effect 062 (0L0T)
Tatal other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year {net of tax) before share
i < (1.86) 0.82
of profit from joint veniure and associate
Share of other comprehensive income from joint venture and sssociaie (net of tax) - (0.17)
Total other comprebensive income / (loss) for the year (1.86) 0.65
{XII) Total comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (X+ XI) 422.37 505.23
(XII1) Profit for the year
Attributahble ta:
= Equity holders of the pasent 401.15 480.71
- Non-controlling interess 23 08 23,87
424.23 504,58
(XI¥} Other comprehensive inceme / (loss) for the yvear
Attributable to:
= Equity holders of the parent {2.08) 0.23
- Non-controlling interests 022 042
(1.86) .65
(X¥]) Total comprehensive income for the year
Attributable to!
- Equity halders of the parent 9907 480,94
=MNon-controlling interests 2330 24.39
423.37 0533
Earnings per equity share (EPS) 29
Cemputed on the basis of profit for the year (In Rs))
-Basic 758 1026
- Diluted 757 10,24
Summary of significant accounting policies 21

Summary of significent accounting judgements, estimates and assumplions
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consalidated financial stalements.

As per aur report of even date
ForSRBC& Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICATFRN: 324982E/FE300003

For and on Behall of the Board of Direciors of
Veeda Clinical Research Limited
{farmerly known as "Veeda Clinieal Rescarch Private Limited")

{CIN : UT3 100G 2004PLC044023)
XD fofhe N

Nitin Deshmukh Ajay Tandon Nir il Bhatia
Chairman Managing Director Company Secretary & CFO
DIN: 00060743 DIN: (2210072 ICST Membership No 12551

Date: Seprember 05, 3023
Place; Ahmedabad, India

Place: Toronte, Canada
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Veedn Clinicnl Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeds Clinical Research Private Limited")
Statement of Consolidsted cash Mows for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amountz in ndizn mpees mellion, unless sihenvise stated)

Year ended Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

A Cash Mow lrom sperating agfivities
Profit hefore tax 584.80 65935
Adjustment to reconcile profit belore tax to net cash flows

Gain on fair valuation on inyvestnent s (F4L1T)
Sharg el (prafit) / loss from an associate and a joint venture 2667 (344)
Diepreciation and amortization expense 380,24 2540/
Emploves stock aption o 480 1822
Finance cost 13873 e 29
Met foss on mark to market of sutstanding Srwand contret 935 -
Had debts wntten off [net of provision) - 082
Gan on fair value of call aption (141} (300
PO exponses 105 14.87
Net interest income (18 26) (20,19
Nzt gain on sale and restatement of mutual fond (40.13) (12.83)
Loss on sale of propomy, plant and equipment {net of gain) : D48 0.4
Liahilitics no banger required wiitten back (LD4T) (B71)
Provision for doofil debts 2193 19.31
Provision for doubtful advances - 040
Prowision for slow moving and nop-moving imventory 2648 -
Pooperty, plant and gquipment srtien aff 1445 354
Gininoon lease iwrmination (7T48) (034
Unrwalizid fo exchange loss 472 {123
Contrict peset written off 13.09 .
Oither receivables wntten off 89 023
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,170.78 67570
Working capital adjustments:
{Imcreass) in trade receivables B7.74) (418.21)
(Increass} in inventories {13 05) {1%.54)
Decrease in fimancial asseis 1513 6292
(Imereass) in ather asets 19911 {3286}
{Pecreaselincronse m trde payables {18:53) 7860
Inerease in other financial lisbilitcs 38323 (H R3]
Ingrense in other cument fiahifitics 2§45 17231
Increase in provisions 3.73 19.43
Cash generated from operations 1,248.91 53075
Direct toces paid (net of refund) (19221) {1716
Met cash flow generated from aperaling aclivities {A) 1,056.70 35613
B Cash NMows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intanuible assets including intangible asscts under development and Capital &
work-in-progross (159.01) (ZE7.03)
Procoeds from sals of propenty, plant and equipment 070 596
Tnterest received 1617 17.06
Tvestment in fixed deposits (327.71) (121.74)
Proceeds from redemption of fived doposits 445 19350
[vecstment in mutual funds {38 .00) (7o 0g)
Proceeds from sale of mutual finds 41524 22738
Laan given o joint v tiie {12.00) (23 00y
Lean given repaid by joian veniung = 100
Lean repaid by dircctors of subsidsasy company - 44,21
Sale of deks in subsidian: - 0.1d
Earmarked balanca of sharz application moniy pending allotme nt and utillizstion (213.00) .
Purchase af st of subsidiany from Non controlling intercst {350 (e -
Insestiment in cquity sharcs of suhsidiares - (62002}
Net cash flows (used in) investing aciivities (B) (1,263.16) {1.536.66)
€ Net cash flow [rom financing activities
Procacde fram long -torm barmwing - 5449
Repayment of lang-tomm borrow ing (126.21) S23Y)
Repayment of short-remme barmowiog (nel) - (278.22)
Proceeds frony shart-temi boriow ing fuct) 10525 3
Finance cost paid (103.63) (97,50}
Payment af IPO cxupense (nat) (LW (3375}
Proceeds from share applivation morey pending allotment 113,00 -
Share insue expenses for frieeh issue of shares (15.02) (3% §A)
Dividead paid 16 COCES Class ‘A’ - (120 80)
Pavment ofprincipal portion of fease Hishility (TLTZ)y (6826)
Procceds frorm issee of shares {mcleding scainties preninm and evercising of ESOPs) - 2,300 #4
Net Cash Now generated from ¢ (used in) liancing activities (C) {11.69) 162562
et {decresse)l increase in cash and eash equivalents (4 = B+ C) (218.15) 448,09
Effect of exchange differences on translation of foreign currency essh and cash equivalents {203y {249)
Cash and cash equivalents af the hegining of the vear 305 89 145 &1
Additions on account of scquisition af subsidiary [refer nate 41 (b)) = (7]
Cash and eash equivalents at the end "“'EEE" 368.71 59589
Companents of cash and eash equivilents
Cash on hand k1] Lo%
Balances wih hanks:
=00 current accounte 36750 364 50

368,71 E0589




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinieal Research Privale Limiled™)
Statement of Consolidited eash flows for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023
(Al amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise staied)

Notes to stntement of cash Mows:
1. The Statemend of Cash Flows has been prepared under the Indirect method 15 set out in Ind AS 7 on Sistement of Cash Flows notified under Section 133 of The Companies Act, 2013, read together with Paragraph 7 of
the Companies {Indian Accounting Standard} Rules 2015 (as amended)

2. Chenges in liabilities arising from financing activities:

. As at Asat
!
Particulurs Apiil 01, 2022 Cash Flaws [Net} Othiersd Mareh 31, 303
Finuncing Activities
Shari-ierm Borrawings 118.52 105.25 2.584 23662
Long-lerm Borrowings 353.50 {126 81)! 3244 259132
Lease liakilities 515 8h (77.72) 20730 64564
Total 9587.88 {95.28) 241.78 1.131.38
Additions on account
. Agat of acquisitien of As at
Particulais
e Aprl 01,2021 | wubsidiary (refornote | S8 Flows {pet} it March 31, 2022
41 (b))
| Eipancing Activilies
Short-term Bormowings 243,22 15460 (278.22) (11.08) 11852
Long-tarm Borowings 2 344,30 217 11.03 333 50
Lease liahilities 43401 148 B7 (6K 25) 1.23 S15.86
Tatal 67724 653,76 (344.31) 1.18 987,58

# MNotes ¢
1) Onhiers in lease labifity includes the elfect of mteres sccrual on lease liatiity, addilion 16 lease liabibty and reduction of lease liabdity due to terminaiion on account of Ind AS 116,
2) Others in long-term bortowing represents impact of amortisation of upfront foss paid on borrowing, remeasurement of long term horrowing and reclassification of barrawings.

3. Mon-cash financing and investing activities

Year ended Year ended

et March 31,2023 | March 31, 2012
Acguisition of right of use assars 279 50 -
Iszue of squity share capital for invesment in equity shares of subsidiary (refer note 4.1) - T30, 36
Ag per our report of even dale
ForSREC& Co. LLP For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Charterad Accountands Veeda Clinical Research Limited
ICAI FRN: 324082E/E 300003 {formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Reseach Private Limited™)

M (CIN ; UTI 006G 2004PL 044023
g | D (@ o pN ) @R~

per Sukrut Mehta Nitin Deshmukh Ajay Tandon Nirmal Bhatia
Partner Chairman Managing Director Company Secielary & CFO
Membership Mo, 101974 DIN: 00060743 DIN; 02210072 TCSE Membership No. 12551

Date: Sepiember 05, 2023
Place: Ahmedabad, India Place; Toromio, Canady Place; Ahmedabad, India

Date: Seprember 05, 2023 ﬁ
; : G, = .
Place: Ahmedabad, India Z {' R (" N,
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

Statement of Consolidated changes in equily for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Equity share capital
Equity slhares of Re. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

Particulars Mo. of shares Amsount
As al April 01, 2021 601,196 6.01
Changes in Equity Share Capilal due to prior pericd srrois = -
lssue of equity shares of Rs 10 face value duning the vear 76,420 078
Freference shares CCCRS Class ‘A" of Rs. 10 cach convened into squity shares of Rs. 10 face valus 91,046 0.94
Splii of aquity shares of Re. 10 face value 1o Bs. 2 face value 30,865,248 -
Shares issuad during the year - bonus issus 4,24 35 210 B4.87
Issue of equity shares of Rs. 2 face value during the year 62, B4, G665 1257
Sharzs issued under ESOP seheme of Rs 2 face value during the yesr 3,15 500 n.63
As at March 31, 2022 5,28,93,986 10878
Change in Equity Share Capital due {0 prior period emors - =
Change during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 528,93 986 105,78

(B} Instruments entirely equity in nature (Compulsory Converdible Cumulative Participatory Preference Shure Class "A" (CCCPS Class "A'))

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid preference shares of Re 10 each

Farticulars No. of shares Amaunt
As at April 01, 2021 3,52,29,780 35230
Chianges i CCCPS class "A" due {0 prior period ermors - .
Conversion of preference shares CCOCPS elass 'A’ into equity shares during the year (3,52,30 750) (352.30)
As at March 31, 2022 m 7
Change in COCPS Class ‘A’ dug o prier period arrors - N
As at March 31, 2023 2
Onbier equity

Attribulable to the equity holder of the parent
S Reserves and surplus
Particolurs application » Capital | Shains options ) N“"hctzl'rm“" Total equity
money pending|  Scrurities redemption | ouistanding | Capitalveserve| Toouned
allotment premiom reserve reserve SR

Balance as at April 01, 2021 - 45279 38.34 594 238 48 - 1,336.05 |
Chunges dus fo sccounting policy of prior peried erors = 7 = o v & " 2
Additsons en account ef acquisition of subsidiary (refor note 41 (b)) s - i - - - 116.47 116,07
Profii for the year (net of {aves) - - - - 48071 2387 204,58
Chiber comprehensive (loss) for the vaar {nat of laxes) - - - - - 023 .42 0.65
Total comprehensive income for the year - = - - - 450,94 14036 621.30
Unifised for pavment of dividend 1o CCCPS Class ‘A = E - (12050 - (120.80)
On isswe of equity shares during the year - 301724 - - - - - 3,017.24
On conversion of CCCPS class 'A" into equily shares during the year - 35136 - - - - - 351.36
Utilized for issue of bonug equity shares = {46 013y {32.84) E - - (84.87)
Unilized towands professional fees expense for fregh issue of squity shares - {71.88) - - - - (71.8%8)
3:3:::;::“0“'“ of additional stake purchased frem non-centrolling imerest o = (730.49) x (69.19) (798.63)
Options granted 10 joint venture during the y ear (refer note 31 and noie 39) - 3 " 0,05 . " " 0.05
Shars based paymens {refir note 39) - - 18.22 - - - 18.22
Balance as at Mareh 31,2022 - 3,703.48 = 24.21 {730.49) 119562 7122 4, 267.04
Changes due to accowting policy ar prior period erors - B - - - - -
Profil for the year (net of taves) - - = - - 401.15 2308 424,23
Other comprehensive (loss) for the vear (net of faxes) - ~ - - - {2.0%) 022 {1.86)
Tatil comprehensive income for the yem: P - - - - 399.08 23.29 422,37
Options granted to joint veniure during ihe year {refer note 24 and noss 32) - - - a0z - - - 0oz
Shisre based paymenis (refer note 32) = - - 4,80 - - = 4.80
Adjusiment on forfeiture of ESOP & o (0.64) - .64 - s
:ﬁn\ﬂ;:;cwum of additional stake purchased from non-controlling imterest . . 5 . (346.00) - (36:79) (383.68)
Share application monay received 21300 e - - M 2 = 213.00
Balance as at March 31, 2023 21300 3,703 48 % 28,99 (1,077.39) 1,508.34 51.73 4.523.55

Summary of significant accounting policies
Summary of significant sccouning judgements, estimates and nssumgtions
The pccompanying notes are an intagral part of these consotidated fnancial slatements,

As per qur report of aven date
ForSREBC & Co, LLP
Chartered Accounianis

TCAI FRN: 32498 2E/F 300043

per Subout Mehia
Partner
Menibership Mo, 101974

Date: Sepiember 05, 2023
Place: Ahmedabad, India
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited”)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

1. Corporate information

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of the Company, its
subsidiary i.e., Bioneeds India Private Limited (associate till July 15, 2021), its step-down
subsidiary companies i.e., Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited and Activin Chemicals and
Pharmaceuticals Private Limited (upto July 20, 2021) and its joint venture i.e., Ingenuity
Biosciences Private Limited.

Bioneeds and its subsidiary companies are in the business of providing Integrated Discovery,
Development and Regulatory Services to Pharmaceutical, Biopharmaceutical, Agrochemical,
Industrial Chemical, Herbal, Nutraceutical & Medical Device companies.

The Company, its subsidiary companies, joint venture and associate are collectively referred to as
“Group”,

Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited)
(“the Company” or “Holding Company™) is domiciled in India with its registered office at Shivalik
Plaza — A, 2nd Floor, Opposite Ahmedabad Management Association, Ambawadi, Ahmedabad,
Gujarat — 380015, India.

The Company was incorporated on April 23, 2004 under the provisions of the Companies Act
applicable in India and is carrying on the business of Clinical Research for various Pharmaceuticals
Companies. The Company is a one roof service global CRO specializing in the early clinical
development of drugs with state-of-the-art facilities in India. The Company provides a full range of
services in phase | and II clinical research with Clinical Data management, delivering expert and
cost-effective research solutions to the Pharmaceutical and Biotechnolopy Industries worldwide.

The Company has become a Public Limited Company w.e.f. June 30, 2021 and consequently
pursuant to approval from Registrar of Companies (“ROC™), the name of the Company has changed
from Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited to Veeda Clinical Research Limited.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 were approved for issue
in accordance with a resolution of the directors on September 05, 2023.

2.1 Significant accounting policies
(A) Basis of preparation and transition to Ind AS

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) as prescribed under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) read with Rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended
from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule 111 to the Act (Ind AS
compliant Schedule ITI, as amended), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value / amortized cost (Refer note 36).

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) and all values are
rounded to the nearest Rs. millions, except when otherwise indicated. Figures below Rs. 10,000 has
been indicated as *“*” as the same is nullified on conversion of rupees in million.

(B) Basis of consolidation

o= The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company comprise the financial statements of the
._{if‘:\\_\xcompany, its Joint Venture and its Associate. Control is achieved when the Company, its Joint
-l "




Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023

Venture and its Associates are exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee,

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. Accounting policies are uniformly adopted
by the Company, its joint venture and its associate.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation were
drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent Company.

Profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) are atiributed to the
equity holders of the Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

» Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee)

» Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
» The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investeg,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings
of the other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year/period are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group
gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

yvyYyvyy

Consolidation procedure in case of subsidiary:

» Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent
with those of its subsidiary.

» Eliminate the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in subsidiary and the parent’s portion of
equity of subsidiary.

» Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup
transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full).
Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated
financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the
elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

; rwf*“« nmf t or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity
C & ers of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
1polling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial




Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

statements of subsidiary to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting
policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

| 2

>
>
>
»
|
B
.

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying
amounts at the date when control is lost

Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-conirolling interests

Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Recognise that distribution of shares of subsidiary to Group in Group’s capacity as owners

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or
transferred directly to retained earnings, if required by other Ind ASs as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Investments in Associate and Joint Venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar
to those necessary to determine control over the subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the
Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill
relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is
not tested for impairment individually.

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the Company’s share of the results of operations of
the associate or joint venture. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the
Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate
or joint venture.

If an entity’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate or joint venture (which includes any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the
Company’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint




Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as “Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited”)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the entity resumes recognising
its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on
the face of the statement of profit and loss.

The Financial Statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period
as of the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with
those of the Group, its Joint Venture and its Associates, unless it is impracticable to do so.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise
an impairment loss on its investment in its associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the
Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint
venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value,
and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture’ in the statement
of profit and loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in
profit or loss.

Particulars of consolidation

The Financial Statements of the following Subsidiary / Step-down subsidiary / Associate / Joint
Yenture have been considered for consolidation:

Percentage of voting

Nature of relation with the Power as on
Name of the Company oo
DanY March 31, | March 31,
2023 2022
ﬂif:;;‘;ty Biosciences Frivate Joint venture 50.00% 50.00%
Bioneeds India Private Limited Asscmata: (_Upto July 15,2021) 87.00% 75.10%
and Subsidiary thereafter

Amthera Life Sciences Private Subsidiary of Bioneeds (W.e.f. & 5
Limited July 16, 2021) o] 10R00%
Activin Chemicals & Subsidiary of Bioneeds (W.e.f.

Pharmaceuticals Private Limited # | July 16, 2021) i )
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Co

# The Group has disposed off this Subsidiary of Bioneeds w.e.f. July 20, 2021.
(C) Summary of significant accounting policies
a. Current versus non-current classification

The Group, its associate and its joint venture presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet
based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

mali i B

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is treated as current when:

Tt is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

el s e

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Foreign currencies

The Group’s Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also
its functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at its functional currency spot
rates on the date the fransaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the
Group uses average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or
statement of profit and loss are also recognised in OCI or statement of profit and loss, respectively).

air value measurement
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The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

(1) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes info account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Consolidated financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quated (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observahle

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as 2 whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement
and for non-recurring measurement.

At cach reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies.
For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by
agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

his note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given
in the relevant notes.
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(a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 36)
(b) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 36)

(c) Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 36)

d. Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services is transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those services. The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its
revenue arrangements because it typically controls the services before transferring them to the
customer.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to
revenue from contracts with customers are provided in Note 2.2.

Sale of service

The Group’s contracts with customers include promises to transfer multiple services to a customer.
Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognition and measurement when the
contract has been approved, in writing, by the parties to the contract, the parties to contract are
committed to perform their respective obligations under the contract, and the contract is legally
enforceable. The Group assesses the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct
performance obligations in the contract. Revenue from customer contracts are recognized on these
identified distinct performance obligations.

The Group exercise judgement in determining the timing when the performance obligation is
satisfied. The Group considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as services are
rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to payment
for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and
rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc. For the majority of contract
performance obligations, the Company has determined that an output method is appropriate
measure of progress. Revenue recognition is determined by assessing the performance completed
or delivered to date under the terms of the arrangement. The measures utilized to assess progress
on the satisfaction of performance are specific to the performance obligation identified in the
contract.

Group renders customer specific services as per the terms of contract and does not provide any
types of warranties and related obligations to its customers.

Contract Balances
Contract assets

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from clinical services because the receipt
of consideration is conditional on successful completion of the project. Upon completion of the
project and acceptance by the customer, the amount recognised as contract assets is reclassified to
trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment
of financial assets in section (p) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent
measurement,

Trade receivables
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A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of
financial assets in section Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the related services. Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs related obligation(s) under the contract.

e. Other Income

Other income is recognised when no significant uncertainty as to its determination or realisation
exists.

f. Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group reflects the effect of uncertainty
for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method,
depending on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax base
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

i) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

ii) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:
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i) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

ii) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off setted if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities that relate to income taxes levied by the same
tax authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current
tax for the year. The deferred tax asset is recognised for MAT credit available only to the extent
that it is probable that the concerned company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which
the company recognizes MAT credit as an asset, it is created by way of credit to the statement of
profit and loss and shown as part of deferred tax asset. The group reviews the “MAT credit
entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer
probable that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

The Holding company and Bioneeds India Private Limited (subsidiary) are not eligible for MAT
credit entitlement since respective companies had opted for lower tax rate under section 115BAA
of Income Tax Act, 1961 during the earlier year.

Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Services tax paid, except:

i) When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable; and

ii} ‘When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
=== receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

RN
’KVT (\’é\ g. Property, plant, and equipment
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Property, Plant, and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment
and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criterias are met. When
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection
is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criterias are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criterias for a provision are met.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. It comprises
of the cost of property, plant and equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use as on the
date of balance sheet.

Depreciation is calculated by the group over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Aot Useful lives .(in years) prescribed in Schedule IT of
the companies Act 2013

Plant & machinery 5to15

Office equipment 5

Computers 3

Furniture & fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Building 5to 60

Lab equipment 10

Electrical installation 10

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on straight line basis over the period of lease or useful life
whichever is lower.

Depreciation is consistency charged on written down value method for the assets by the holding
company and as per the straight-line method by the subsidiary company which reflects the pattern
of consumption of those future economic benefits in separate financial statements of the respective
companies.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between

the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit
and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

h. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.




Veeda Clinical Research Limited
(formerly known as *Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part
of carrying value of another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

A summary of the policies applied to the Group’s intangible assets is as follows:

hvtamelile Useful lives | Amortisation method used lnter_nally ESHETRESL. O
assets acquired

Computer e ;

e 3 years Straight line method Acquired

Customer _ £ Tt 5

Relationship 8 years Straight line method Acquired

i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded
as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

j- Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
irect costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
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incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, whichever is shorter, as follows:

Building - up to 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life
of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are
incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery
and equipment and office premises (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of twelve months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease
of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be
low value. Lease payments on short-terin leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

The Group has sub leased certain office premises. Rental income arising is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

k. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as
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Consumables: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision for slow moving and non-moving inventory is made considering its expected usage
pattern.

I. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account. If no such fransactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which
are prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.
These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods,
a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.
To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts,
the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate
for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries
in which the Group operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation
surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount
of any previous revaluation surplus.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.
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Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or
company of CGUSs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is
less than it’s carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to
goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

m. Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of reimbursement, if any.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

n. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of contribution towards provident fund and employee state
insurance scheme (ESIC) is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC. The Group recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund and ESIC as an expense when an employee renders the related
service.

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be
made to a separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit
plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCT in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

i) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
if) The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in
the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss:

i) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and -
ii) Net interest expense or income.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as
hort-term employee benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the
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additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated
at the reporting date. The Group recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an
expense when an employee renders the related service.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-
term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are
provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting
date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not
deferred. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does
not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting
date.

0. Share-hased payments

The Company initially measures the cost of cash-settled transactions with employees using Black-
Scholes model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share-
based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which
is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of
the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option,
volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. For cash-settled share-based
payment transactions, the liability needs to be remeasured at the end of each reporting period up
fo the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised in the profit or loss. This
requires a reassessment of the estimates used at the end of each reporting period. For the
measurement of the fair value of equity-seftled transactions with employees at the grant date, the
company uses Black-Scholes model for Veeda Employees Stock Option Plan 2019 (VESP). The
assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are
disclosed in note 39.

p- Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under
Ind AS 115.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through
OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’
on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is
performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets or both. Financial assets
classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and
measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

i) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT) with recycling of
cumulative gains and losses (debt instrumenis)

iii) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and
losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income
in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The
Group’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, other receivables and loans.

Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with
net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes investment in mutual fund and call option on non-controlling interest of
subsidiary company.

Derivatives and hedging activities

The Holding Company enters derivatives like forwards contracts to hedge its foreign currency
risks. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered
J———— into and are subsequently marked to market at the end of each reporting period with profit/loss
% g’; & C‘\\\ being recognised in statement of profit and loss. Further, the Holding Company has also entered
< S
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into call options in respect of its investment in its subsidiary which are initially recognised at fair
value with subsequent changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Derivative assets/liabilities are classified under “other financial assets/other financial liabilities™.
Profits and losses arising from cancellation of contracts are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Embedded Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is
separated from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if: the economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a
change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company s balance sheet) when:

i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii) The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss ('ECL') model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss. For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
nclease in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
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default events that are possible within the next twelve months (i.e., a twelve month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (i.e., a lifetime ECL).

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
ii) Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in
own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to
statement of profit and loss. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and

: '\\ borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses
Q

‘-a\i through the EIR amortisation process.
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Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
Consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

q. Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms
of the contract.

On issuance of the convertible preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is
classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included
in equity since conversion option meets Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed classification.
Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying amount of
the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible
preference shares based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when
the instruments are initially recognised.

r. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the Consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management,

s. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders
of parent company (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
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For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

s. Business Combination and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets include
an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The acquired process is considered substantive if it is critical to the ability to continue producing outputs,
and the inputs acquired include an organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or
experience to perform that process or it significantly contributes to the ability to continue producing
outputs and is considered unique or scarce or cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay
in the ability to continue producing outputs.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities
representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the
fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following
assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively.

Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition
date or arise as a result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as
appropriate.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess
of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of
the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the
amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair
value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in
OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain
purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same
through OCI,
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After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit
or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the
measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The
measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

2.2 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Group’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:

i) Capital management note 38
i) Financial risk management objectives and policies note 37
iii) Sensitivity analyses disclosures note 37

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
Judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Consolidated
Financial Statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Group as a
lessee

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

. The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group
j applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the
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option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement
date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances
that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or
to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements, significant customisation to
the leased asset, etc.).

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Consolidated Financial Statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Share-based payments

While estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions with the employees at grant date,
the Group uses a DCF model for employee stock option plan. The assumption and models used for
estimating fair value for share based payment transactions are disclosed in note 39.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the
present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation invelves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditions of the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as
market interest rates).
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Standards notified but not yet effective

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the
Company’s standalone financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt
these standards, if applicable, as and when they become effective. The Ministry of Corporate affairs
(MCA) has notified certain amendments to Ind AS, through Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 on March 31, 2023. The amendments have been made in the
following standards:

Ind AS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements is amended to replace the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy information™ and providing guidance
relating to immaterial transactions, disclosure of entity specific transactions and more.

Ind AS 8: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to include the
definition of accounting estimates as “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty.”

Ind AS 12: Income Taxes relating to initial recognition exemption of deferred tax related to assets
and liabilities arising from a single transaction.

These amendments shall come into force with effect from April 01, 2023. The Company is
assessing the potential effect of the amendments on its financial statements. The Company will
adopt these amendments, if applicable, from applicability date.
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{All amounts in Indian rupecs million, unless otherwise stated)

Capital work-in-progress and Intangible assets under development

Capital work-in-

Intangible assets

Particulars Total
progress under development

At April 01, 2021 4.59 6.74 11.33
Additions on account of acquisition of

subsidiary (refer note 41 (b)) 13 : LA
Other additions 224,33 5.98 231.31
Capitalization 201.47 - 201.47
At March 31, 2022 190.18 13.72 203.90
Additions 540,02 29.76 569.78
Capitahization 54325 2,19 54544
Deeletion - 1.54 1.54
At March 31, 2023 186.95 39.75 226.70

CWIFP ageing Schedule as at March 31,

2022

Amount in CWIP for a period of

cwie Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years b cind s
years
Project in progress 170,32 10,48 6.82 2.56 190,18
Project completion schedule for overdue projects as at Mareh 31, 2022 (refer note ii below)
To be completed in
CwIpP
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years ke
years
Project in progress 77.47 - - -
CWIP ageing Schedule as at March 31, 2023
Amount in CWIP for a period of
CWIP Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Moresisa 3 chp
YEArs
Project in progress 151.55 35.40 - - 186.95

Note:

(i) Capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2023 of Rs. 186.95 million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 190.18 million) comprises expenditure for the property,
plant and equipment which are under development and net yet put for use. There are no projects overdue in ems of timelines and budget as at March

31,2023,

(ii} The project in Bioneeds India Private Limited (Subsidiary Company) includes : a) construction of Building at Devarahosahalli location which was
started in January, 2020 and was planned lo be completed by June, 2021, The building is being self-constructed by the Company, There was delay in
completion of this project on account of delay in supplies of material and labour on account of COVID-=19 from March 2020 and further due to changes

in the designs as per internal requirements, The said project is completed and capitalised during the year ended March 31, 2023,

Intangible assets under development (IAUD) ageing Schedule as at March 31, 2022

Amount in IAUD for a period of

i sets under devel t 3 Total
Intangible assets under developmen Lk sl e i e 2.3 years Mg;:;l:n 3 (]
Project in progress 6.98 1.66 1.82 3.26 13.72
Intangible assets under development (IAUIY) ageing Schedule as at March 31, 2023
Amount in IAUD for a period of
Intangible assets under devel t Total
S NS RENCR Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mm;:!:n 3 °
Project in progress 27.57 5.45 1.66 5.08 39.75
Project completion schedule for overdue projects as at March 31, 2023
To be completed in
Intangible asset der devel t
RS i Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mo:i;::n :

Project in progress (refer note below)

13.27

~~Notes:
: _- @) ij'ita_r_ngib‘le assets under development as al March 31, 2023 is Rs, 39.75 million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 13.72 million) comprise expenditure for the
, Ze~dEveldpment.of soflware not yet put to use.

(ii) The. toject of develupment of cronos software was started in March 2017 and was planned to be completed by May 2018. The said software is a

custamiz

i ?ﬂﬁ\,ﬁ&rﬂ which is being developed by the third party vendor. There has been delay in this project on account of customization requirement
i ﬁ. resignation of employee who was handling the said project from the Holding Company's side. The delay was also on account of
March 2020 onwards, The project is now on track and has been capitalized in June 2023,
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Right of use assets (refer note 35)
Particulars Land Office Premises Total
At April 01, 2021 - 478.07 478.07
Additions on account of acquisition of
subsidiary (refer note 41 (b)) 25 s a4
Other additions. - 3.05 3.05
Deletion / termination - 2.06 2.06
At March 31, 2022 81.75 520.74 602.49
Additions 8014 199,36 279.50
Deletion / termination - 72,76 73,76
At March 31, 2023 161.89 647.33 809,23
Accumulated Depreciation
At April 01, 2021 - 114.98 114.98
Charge for the year 573 73.84 79.57
On deletion / termination - 0.55 0.55
At March 31, 2022 573 188.27 194.00
Charge for the year 15.24 %501 111.25
On deletion / termimation = 16,84 16.84
At March 31, 2023 20.96 267.43 288.41
Net block
At March 31, 2022 76.02 332.47 408.49
At March 31, 2023 140.93 379.90 520,82
Other intangible assets

i Computer Customer
RraE software relationship Tk
At April 01, 2021 12.06 - 12.06
Additions on account of acquisition of 2,
subsidiary (refer note 41 (b)) R 23150 Bl
Other additions 9.45 - 9.45
At March 31, 2022 26.00 231.50 257.50
Additions 37.27 - 37.27
Disposals 334 i 3.34
At March 31, 2023 59.93 231.50 291.43
Accumulated Amortization
At April 01, 2021 7.60 - 7.60
Charge for the year 5.50 20.53 2603
At March 31, 2022 13.10 20,53 33.63
Charge for the year 11.65 28.94 40.59
On disposals 3.16 - 316
At March 31, 2023 21.5% 49,47 71.06
Net block
At March 31, 2022 12.90 210.97 223.87
At March 31, 2023 38.34 182.03 220,37

The Group has elected to continue with the carrying values as at April 01, 2019 i.e., date of transition to Ind AS under previous GAAP for all the items
of other intangible assets as its deemed cost,
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Viweda Clinical Researels Limited (formerly known 25 Veeds Clinfcal Resenrch Privite Limited™)
Notes to Consoliduied Financial Siatements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounis in Indsan ripess million, unless otherwise stxied)

Investoment in pssociate and joint veniure

Particulars i Al
March 3, 2023 March 31,2022
MNon-currant
Tiivestiments in equily shares of joinl ventire (earcied at cost) (Unguoted)
330,000 (March 31, 20212 350, 0040) fully poid equity shares of Insemiity Bloscwrces Private Limined of Rs. 10 cach E &
Total non-current investments .
Total non=current investment
Aggregote amount of quoted invesiments mnd market valise thereof - =
Aggregate amount of unguoted Thwestiments L
Aggregate amount of impairmen =
Summinry of movement of investment in associte:
Particulars Asat Al
Mairch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening earrying value a5 a0 the beginning of the year - 366,39
Add, Tnvgzimen) in associabe during the vear = =
AddfLess: ghare of profid / (Jois) of associae 11.28
less: Share of other comprehensive (loss) (net of Lax) 3 (0,18}
Closing currying value as at July 15, 2021* R 377,49

*The Halding Company bus entered inte fmvestmiont agrezmscnt with Blonceds and ite sharcholders on July 07, 2024 for & Mecling the same. On fuly 16, 2021, the Holding Company completed this scquisition and appoied iajority of
it momine directors on the board, thereby making Bioneeds its subsidione. Accordingly, the sddifional scquisition of shares bas been accounted wnder Ind 45 102 Busincss Combination. Refier nole 41 (b} for further details,

Swininary of movement of investiment in joint venlure:

. Asat As at
Farticdlars March 31,2083 Mareh 31, 2022
Opening carrying value as at the beginning of the year o 058
Add: Tnvestment in joant veniiere during the vear = =
Add/Less: Share of Prafit!iloss) of join veniure - (8 59
Add/Nesa Share ol other comprebensive ncomefloss) {net of tax) = =
Closing earrying value as ot the end of the year 5 -
Investments
\ Asat Asat
Paiticita March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Current
Investments in wnits of mutual fuinds (cardied at fair value through profit and loss) (Quoted)
I3TIALE4 (March 31, 2022: 332,052 §4) Unies of 101C] Prudentisl Savings Fund (Regalar Growil) 150,91 143 90
256,229.87 (March 31, 2022: 356,220 87) Units of Aditva Birla Sun Life Low Duration Fund (Regular Grovith) 14398 137.32
26,990,863 {March 31, 2022 86,940 63) Units of Aditva Birle Sun Life Low Duration Fund (Direet Growih) 53.19 5031
Wil harch 31, 2022 87 316 337 Linits of Aditya Birla Sun Life Overnight Fund (Direet Growth) . 10k 3%
Nil {March 31, 2022; 21,241, 74) Units of Axiz Liquid Fund §Direct Growth) . 56
100, 713,94 {March 31, 2022: 1400% 713.94) Units of HDFC Low Dwration Fund (Direet Growth) 102 5027
1731934 (Mareh 31, 2022: 17,319.54) Units of Kotak Low Duration Fund {Dircet Growih) A 5115
Nil (March 312027 88 356 43) Lnits of Kotak Qvernight Fund (Dircct Growih) - | (et |
Nil (March 512022 9,552.39) Units of Nigpon India Liquid Fund {Direct Growth) - 3.2
I7,AG4.47 [March 31, 2022 15,859 79) Units of Nippon Indiz Low Duration Fund (Dircet Growth) o174 50 16
il {harch 31, 2022; 28,793 73% Units of UTI Liquud Cagh Plan {Direct Grow iy s 1060.43
Total current investments 546,87 E.ﬂ
Total curvent ipvest ments S46.87 83398
Aggregale amnount of quoted imvesiments md market value thereal MGET HEI.0H
Agyregale amouil of wnquolsd n estimeils P -
Agpregale amount of impaimnt & e
Trode Receivabiles
Particulars Asat il
March 31, 2023 March M, 2012
Trade receivables
Seeured, considessd goad - -
Unsce ured, considered good 105124 95143
Trade reccivables which have significant iicreass m erodit sk 25 50 3187
Trade recelvablas - cradil impaired 3050 20.21
Impairm ] (bl for bad and doabtful debts)
Unszcured, considened yood
Teade receivables which have significant icrease in credit nsk (245m (32.87)
Trade receivahles - eredit impaired (0150 {202
Tutal trade receivables 105124 931.43

Notes:
Trade receivables are nen-interest bearing and ars gencrally on terms of 7-90 days,
For information about eredit risk and market risk related to irade receivable, phease refer nota 37,

Mo trade or other receiv able are due from direstors or other ofMicers of the company gither severally or jointly with sy other persen. Nor any trade or atfer receivable are due from firms or privale comipanies respectivaly in which any

director is a parimer. & direcior or & membear




WVeeda Clinical Research Limited {formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Rescarch Private Limited'")
Muotes 1o C lidzted Fi Tl & ts for the year ended Muarch 31, 2013
(ANl amaonenis in Indian rupees million, unkes stherviss stated)

Trade Receivalbles

The following tehle summarizes the ehange in bnpoirment allowance mepsured weing the life tme expecied credil loas model:

= Az ai As at
htilacy March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Axthe beginming of the year 53408 1570
Additians on sccownt of aequasition of subsidiary (refer note 41 b)) - 2403
Pravision made during the year 2292 1931
Lhilized / reversed during the year = {7.06)
At the end of the yzar 2600 5308
Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023
Duistanding for following perieds from the doe date of payment.
Total
Farticufars Nat due Less than § months |6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 Years More than 3 years #
(it Undisputed Trade receivables— considered good G815 4011 64 35 66 5.79 - - L5124
{if) Unelisputed Trade Receivables — which hove sigmficant inerease in crednt - . 1161 1204 (15 - 2550
ton) Lndisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - 7.57 4.13 19.92 3.68 842 4399
(iv} Dispuicd Trade Receivables-considered poosd = P = i = - 1
(v} Dispuied Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit 4 a : = > i -
vij Dispuited Trads Recaivabies — credit impaircd = - - - (.61 3.50 [E]
Total 608.15 408 .51 £1.40 3875 511 14.32 1.027.24
Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2022
Dutstanding for following periods from the due date of payment
Particulary Tatal
Not due Less than 6 moaths | & moanths - 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 Years More than 3 years
(i) Undispeiied Trade recenvables = considered good 573.49 31825 B 60 i - - G5L43
glLUqupulcd Trade Receivables — which have significans increase in eredic N 1581 735 459 gl e 189
(iii} Undispused Trode Rocaivables — credit impuired - - 0.7 4,50 I8 B9 14.64
{iv) Digputed Trade Receivablos—<onsidered good - = . = 5 - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significam incresss in cradit
ik g B i = i ) =
[vi) Dispuied Trade Reccivablos — credit impaired 5 = - .13 - 544 557
Total 57349 33404 94.11 17.31 1.88 13.55 1.034.51
Cash and cash equivilents
: Agat As at
s March 31,2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Balance wilh Banks
- Om carrent accounis 25790 594 80
Cash on hand 081 Lo9
Total eash and eash equivalenis 358,71 59589
Other Bank balances
: Asat As at
P March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Dicposiis with Qriginal matwriey ol more than threa months but fess than tw elve months {refer note below) oo 29 56
Share application monsy account 212,00 -
Total nther bank balunces 244.00 2956
Mote:

Deposits with bank os at March 31, 2022 amointing to Rs. 31.00 million {(March 31, 2022 Rs. 29,56 million} are given s callatera] sccurity against cash credit limils. Thess deposits are mads for a varving period for 3 months to 12
months and cams imerest ranging barween 5437 to 6.807 (March 31, 2022; 4.0407% to 5. 15%%

Loans

As at As at

Particolars
March 31, 2023 Mlarch 31,2022

Non-Current

Unsecured, considered goad

Loan 10 Joint venture in which the company is 2 venturer (refernote 2 halow) - 1311
Total non-current lnans - 1511
Current

Note:

1) 'Since the shove laan given 1o associale and joinl vesture is unsecured and considered o], the bifureation el loan in other cazgories as required by schedile 11 of conypanies Aet, 2013 viz: 2} Secured b) Loans which have
significant wcreass in credit risk and ¢) credit impaircd is not applicable.

2} Loan given (o joint venlure smounting (o Bs. 24.00 million (Masch 31, 3023; Re Ni) hat been wrilten off during the year considering the wnlavousrablz fnancial condifion of joink ventire {refar note 400,

Loans

Disclosure required under Sec 136(4) of the Companies Act 2013
Inchdad in loang and advarce are cenain invercorporate deposits the particuiars o Cwhich arg disclosed below as required by Sze 186{4) af the Companies Act 2013

Secured / As at Asat
Unsecured | March 31,2023 | March 31, 2012

Name af loanee Rate of interest [hee Date

Loan is ropavable within 2 years from
the dete of agreement However, the
loant may be wpaid my tme by the
borrawer,

*hectted share of loss amountng ko Rs, 26,67 Milkon (harch 31, 2022: Rs. 7.23 million’ and fean writlen off amonnting 1o Rs. 34 00 million (March 31, 2022 Rs. Nil),

Ingemiily Bicscences Private Limited” 6,007 Linsecuiad - 1511

Refer note 31 G terms and conditions of Joan 1o asseeisic and loan to Joint vantsre @ which the Holding compainy is a venturer,
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Veedn Clinical Research Limited {formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stalements for the year ended March 31,2023
(Al amounts in Indion nepecs milllion, wnless atherwise stoed)

Other financial assets
" As i As at
Ty March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Unsecured, Considered pood
Nan-Current
Security Deposits 5073 4771
Bank deposits with remaining motunily for more an 12 months frefer note | bebow) 3234 270
Export incentive receivable - 3238
Fair valise of call aption (refer note 4 1 (b)) A0 83 7315
Total ather nos-cur rent financial asets 41385 21594
Unseeared, Considered good
Current
Coniract nssat

= Dnee from cusiomer (seerued revenue) (refer note 22.2) 240,76 188 06
Sacurily deposiis 1,80 o
Interest accrued on seouity deposils nag 032
Expon incerive receivable 4634 Ha 03
Bank deposits with remaining maturity for 2z tha 12 months (refer note i below) 12318 6191
Reimbursement receivable {refer noic 31) - 0r
Receivable from selling sharcholders (refer note 31) 3755 3546
Total sther current financinl asscts 453.03 401.71
Total other fnancial assets B4 88 £17.65
Reconciliation of contract Asset:
Balivnee at the beginning of the year 1B 06 7441
Additions on secownt of sequasition ol subsidiary (refer noe 41 (b)) - 146 8%
Lezs: [mvoicing during the year Bomn balance at the by of tie year (148 33) (21288)
Less: Wrinen ofT dering the yzar lrom balance ot the beginning of the vear {1399 -
Add: Coniract Asscts ercalid during the vear 21503 174.55
Balance at the end ol the year 240.76 1BR.06

Mates:

i) Bank deposits with remaining maturity for more than 12 months 55 at March 31, 2022 are Rs. 322,24 million (March 31, 2022: Ra 62 70 milfion). These deposiis are made for @ period of nore than 12 monis and gam interes|
ranging betwesn 4.55% 1o 7.25% (March 31, 2023: 4 557 10 5.40%), Deposits amounting lo Rs. §1.49 milkion a5 at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022 Rs. 281 million) are given o3 security against over drall facilites and bank

guaraiwes,

i} Bank deposils with original avaturity for mosz ihan 12 months and with remaining metunitye for less than 12 monthy 25 at Morch 30, 2023 are s, 123 18 million (March 31, 2022; Re. 61.91 million). Thesz deposils are mada for a
perind of move than 12 montis and gam inercst ranging bebwesn 5.25% bo 7.23% (March 31, 2002; 5 1070 0 0 6074, Deposis amouniing to Rs. 19,16 milkion a5 at March 31, 2007 (March 31, 2022; Rs. 3.65 million) are gien as

collaicral seeurity against cash credit limits and bank guarsnice.

Other nssets
? Asat Asat
F: L
aliasila March 31,2013 March 31,2022
MNon-curreat
Unsecured, Considercd good
Bualunes wilh government authorities (rafor nose hokow) Bhn T8
Capinal advamces 3097 4461
Prepaid expenses 4.61 204
Total other non-current nssets #0.31 5450
Curreat
Unsecured, Considered good
Propaid cxpenses 3476 35 E6
Advarce 10 oreditors 1552 6.93
Less: Prowision foe deubafol sdvances - 040y
Empiovee advinces 491 A3
Balunce with govermment authoritics {refer note below) 151 50 99.70
Total sther current asscls 20599 147,24
Total other assets 28750 01,74
Mode:
Balanes with govesnment suthoritios includes GST inpui tax credil receivable {nat of liability),
Timeame tax assets (net)
5 Azat As at
Tcticulace March 31,2023 Murch 31, 2022
MNon-curvent
Advinoe payment of Income tax (net of provision) 23628 13046
Tatal Income tux assets (net) 23638 23046
Dnventories (valued at lower of cost and net realizable vidue)
Particul Asat Agat
gkt March 31,203 March 31, 3022
Cousumables 9754 2451
Lo Froveson Tor non moving & show moving invemony (2646 &
Total inveniories T1.08 R4,5]
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as “Veeda Clinicul Research Private Limited™)
Nuotes to Consolidated Financial Stalements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts in Indian rupess million, untess ctherwise stated)

Equity share eapital

Particulars Equity shares
No. of Shares Amount

Autherised equity shires of Rs. 2 each (Rs. 10 each il June 28, 2021}

As at April 01, 2021 To0000 700
Change during the year 100 D00 1.00
Change due to preference shares CCCPS Class 'A’ of Rs. 10 cach converied into cquity shares of Re. 10 each 35 R0 880 15641
Change due to equity shares of Rs. 10 each splitted inio equity shares of Rs. 2 each 145,762,720 u
Asat March 31, 2022 181,203,400 36d.41
Charige during the year - -
Asat March 31,2023 182,203,400 36441

" Equity shares
ARy No. of Shares Ammpunt

Issued, subseribed and fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 2 each (R, 10 each till June 28, 2021)

As at April 01, 2021 G01,196 601
Changes due to prior period errors = -
Issue of equity shares of Rs 10 face value during the year 76,420 06.76
Preference shares CCCPS Class "A’ ol Rs. 10 each converied into cquity shares of Rs. 10 face vilue 93,344 .54
Split of equity shares of Bs. 10 face value to Bs. 2 face value 3,086,248 -
Shares issued during the year - banus [ssue 42,435910 54.87
Issue of equity shares of Rs. 2 face value during the year f,284 66 12.57
Shares issued under ESOP scheme of Rs 2 face value during the year 315,500 063
As at March 31, 2022 51,893,986 105,78
Chisnges due 1 prios perod erions - =
Change during the year = =
Ag at March 31, 2023 SLS?L?& 105,78

Terms/ rights attached te equity shares

In respect of ordinary shares, voting fights shall be in the same proponion as the capital pald wpen such ordinary share bears ta the toril paid up erdinary capital of the holding company, The dividend
preposed by the beard of directars, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Ansual General Mecting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the
shareholders of Ordinary shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the holding company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion 1o their sharehaldings.

The board of directors in their meeting held on June 26,

on June 29, 3031,

The board of direciors in their meeting held on June 26,

June 29, 2021.

Details of shureholders holding more than 5% shires in the Company

Equity Share Capital

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March31, 2022
No. of shares % holding Mo, of shares % holding
Equity shares of Rs. 1 each (refer above note)
Basil Private Limized 22,251,712 4Z.07% 13,351,712 42 074
Bondway Investment Inc. 13,130,580 24.82% 13,130,580 24.82%
Sabre Pariners AIF Trust 2,760,840 52294 3,760,840 52244

2021 approved split of each equity share of Rs. 10 2ach into 5 squity shares of Rs. 2 cach which was approved by the members in their meeting held

2021 approved issue of 11 banus shares fully paid for ach equily share of Rs. 2 each which was approved by the members in fheir mesting held an
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023
(Al mimounis in Indien rupees millicn, unfcss otherwise stated)

Instrumeits entively equity in sature (Compulsory Convertible Comubative Pariicipatory Preference Share class 'A' (CCCPS class "A"))

CCOCPS Class "A'

e No. of Shares Amouinl
Authorised shares of Bs, 10 each:
As at April 01, 2021 35,640,680 35641
Change due to conversion of preference shares COCPS Clase 'A" of B, 10 2ach into eguity shares of Rs, 10 sach {35,640 680) (356.41)
As at March 31, 2022 - .
Change during the year % 2
|As at March 31, 2023 H 2

Particulars COCPS Class 'A'

No. of shares Amouni

Tssued, subscribed and fully paid up shares of Rs. 10 each:
As at April 01, 2021 35,219,780 352,30
Changes in COCP'S clasz A" due 1o prior period errars = )
Conversion of preference shares CCCPS class ‘A’ into equity shares of Rs. 10 face value during the year (35,229,780 (352.30)
As at March 31, 2022 = =
Change during the year = =
As at March 31,3023 E 3
Terms of conversion / redemption ol COCPS Class ‘A’

i The CCCPS Class A" shall be entitled 1o 0.0001% participatory and cumulative dividend. During the year, the board of directors at their meeting held en May 25, 2021 have modified the percenage of
dividend Fom 0.0001%% to 14.11%, which was approved, and dividend has been paid [or the period from October 27, 2018 il March 31, 2021 amounting to Rs. 120 80 millian.

ii. The outstanding CCUPS Class ‘A shares were converted into 93,846 equity shares based on approval of Board of Directors and Members of the company an June 29, 2021,

Shares held by Holding Company

Naiiie 60 INé shiareholder As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. ol shares Amount No. of shares Amaunt
Basil Private Limited #
Equity shares of Rs_ 2 each {refer above note) 22251712 44 50 22251712 4450
T — —

Aggregate number of equity shares issued as bomus, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting
dute:

For the year For the year Fer the year For the year ended | For the year ended
Parliculars ended March 31, | ended March 31, | ended March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
2023 (Number) | 2022 (Number) (Number) (Number) (Nuniber)
Issue of filly paid equity shares of Rs. 2 each as bonus shares - 432,435,010 = = %
Issue of fully paid Freference shares CCCPS Class 'A' of Rs. 10 each as bonus shares - -~ - - 35,229 7RO
Buyback of Preference shares COCPS Class 'B' of Rs. 3340 each - - = 4 11,630
Issue of equity share of Rs 2 each for investment in Bionesds India Private Limited - 2839 8nd H - -

Equity Shareholding of Promoters as at March 31, 2022

Mo, of shares at .
Fromoter Name Class of share | the beginning of Ehangs duriag | No.of facks at the end %% of Total shares W ehangedustag
ias the year = of the year the year #
& year
P Exuiny shares af
Basil Private Limited Rs. 2 each fully 408,194 21,845,518 22,251,112 4207 (25.49)
paid
Total 406,194 11,845,518 21.251,712 42.07 {25.49)

* change during the year represents the changa on sccount of bonus, share split and transfer of shares
# % change s on zocount of new shases issued to shareholders other than Promoter and transfer of shares by Promorer.

Equity Shareholding of Bromuoters as at March 31, 2023

No. of shares at ;
Promoter Name Class of share | the beginning of Chonsge durlig | Noi of thares al the el % of Total shares oslinparucing
iaga the year of the year the year
e year
Equity shares of
Basil Private Limited Bs. 2 cach fully 22,251,712 - 22351712 4207 =
paid
Toial 22251712 - 22351,712 4207 -

Eniployees Steck Option Scheme

1,289,970 2quity shares (March 31, 2022: 1,491,840 equity shares) of the face value Rs2 each are reserved under Employee Stock Option Plan of the company (refler note 31 and note 19).




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited'')

Nates to Consclidated Financial Stements far the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian rupees millfon, unless otherwise stated)

14 Oiher Equity
: As at As al

Pariexlarg March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Reserves and surplus
Securities premium
Balunce at the beginning of the year 3,703 48 452.7%
Changes due to accounting policy or prior period emors - -
On issue of equity shares during the year - 3017.24
On conversion of CCCPS class ‘A" into equity shares during the year - 351.36
Utilized for issue of bonus equity shares - (46.03)
Untilized towards expenses on fresh issue of equity shares - (71.88)
Balance at the end of the year 3,703.48 3,703.48
Capital redemption reserve
Balunce at the beglnning of the year - 3534
Changes due 1o accounting policy or prior period emors - =
Utifized for issue of bonus equity shares - (38.84)
Balance at the end of the year = =
Capital reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year (730.49) -
Changes due to accounting policy or prior period ermors - -
Change en account of additional stake purchased from non-contralling interest of subsidiary (346 %0) (730.49)
Balance at the end of the year {1,077.39) (730.45)
Share options outstanding reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 24.21 5.54
Chisnges due to accounting policy ar prior period sirors - -
Reversal on forfeilure of ESOP (054)
Options granted 1o joint venture during the year (refer noe 31 and note 393 002 004
Compensation for options granted during the year (refer noe 33) 480 1822
Balance at the end of the year 2R.39 24.21
Share application money pending allotment
Balance at the beg g of the year - -
Chianges due teavcounting policy or prior period errors # &
Share apphication money received 213.00 -
Balance at the end of the year 213.00 -
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginning of the year 115862 B3k 4%
Profit for the year (nel of taxes) 401.15 43071
Other comprehensive profin / (Iose) for the year {net of taxes) [2.08) 023
Addition an forfeiture of ESOP 0.54 -
Utilised for payment of dividend 1o CCUPS Class 'A - (120.50)
Balance at the end of the year 1,598.33 1,198.62
Total ether equity 446582 4,19582

Nature and purpose of reserves:

(1) In cases where the holding Company issues shares at ¢ premium, whether for cash or otherwize, 2 sum equal to the azgregare amount of the premium received on those shares has been transferred to
“Securities Premium”. The holding Company may issue fully paid-up bonus shares 1o its members out of the securities premium and to buy-back of shares

(2) Capatal redemption Teserve represents the amount transferred on account of buy back of CCCPS Class "B,

(3) Capital reserve represenis non-controlling imerest reserve ceeated on acquisition of additional stake during the year ended March 31, 2003 of 11.90% (year ended March 31, 2022 « 2425 from non-
controlling shargholder of Bioneeds India Private Limited,

(4} The share options outstanding reserve : The share options based payment reserve is used to recounize the grant date fair value of oplions issued 1o employees under employes stock aption plan,
{3} Surplus in statement of profit and loss: Surplus in statement of profit and loss are the profils / (fosses) that the Group has eamned | incurred Gl dute, less any wansfirs to general reserve, dividends ar

other distrihutions paid ta shareholders. Retained earnings include re-measurement loss / (gain) o defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified 1o the statement of profit and loss. Retained
eamings is a free reserve available to fhe Group ard eligible for distribulion to shareholders, in case where it is having positive balance representing net earnings tll date,




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (farmerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in ndian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Financial liabilities

15 Borrowings
" As at Asat
Bartilees March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Non-current borrowing
Secured
Term loans from bank
Indian Rupee loan from bank (refernote 1 below) 37.03 59.08
Foreign eurrency loan from bank (refer note 2 to 5 below) 343.46 412,54
380,49 472.02
Less: Current maturities of long term bomowings elubbed under "Current homowings"
Indian Rupee loan fom bank (refer note | below) (22,18) (22.05)
Forgign currency loan from bank (refer note 2 to 5 below) (99.19) (96.47)
Total non-current borrowings 1_59.!2 353.50
Current Borrowings
Secured
Current maturities of long term borrowings
Term loans from banks
Indian Rupee loan firom banks (refer note 1 below) 22.18 2208
Foreign currency loan from bank (refer note 2 to 3 below) 9919 96,47
Loans repayable on demand
Cash credit from bank (refer note 6 below) 10525 -
Total current borrowings 216.62 118.52
Total borrewings 485,74 472.02
i As at As at
ehsho March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Appregate secured loan 485.74 472.02
Aggregate unsecured loan - -
Details of terms and securities for the above borrowing facilities are as follows:
The term Lozn amounting to Rs. 67 million from canara bank is taken to build up current assets and meet operational lishilities. The term loan is secured by assets created out of the
credit facilities extended. The outstanding balance of the term lean as at March 31, 2023 is of Rs. 37.22 million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 59.56 million).The loan carrics intcrest rate
I llinked ta one year RLLR (Repo Linked Lending Rate) plus spread of 0.60%. The effective interest rate is 9.85% (March 31, 2022; 7.50%). The loan iz repayable in 36 monthly
installments commencing from December 2021,
The term Loan amounting to Rs. 270 million fram Canara Bank was taken for purchase of undertaking expansion of Pre-clinical and Chemistry Services located at Devarahosalli and
Peenya by way of consiruction of building, purchase of equipments, setting up of Kilo labs ete. and was sccured by hypothecation of proposed utilities, lab fumitures and scientific
instrumenis at Devarahosalli - Sompura hobli, Nelamangala and Peenya - Bangalore unit, The loan carried interest rate linked MCLR plus spread of 1.13%6. The effective interest rate
was 10.50% till the conversion in foreign curtency loan during the year ended March 31, 2022
During the year ended March 31, 2022, outstanding Indian Rupee tenm loan of Rs 267.67 million has been liquidated by obtaining the foreign eurrency term losn of USD 3,561,760
" from the Canara Bank. The said loan carries interest rate linked to six months LIBOR + 350 bps. The loan is secured against hypotheeation of plant & machinery, lab equipment,

fumniture and computer. The loan is also secured by personal guarantes of Dr. 8. Vinaya Babu, Mr. Kiran Kumar & Smt. H.N Sowmya and collateral security of Jand & building

Outstanding balance of the term loan as at March 31, 2023 is USD 2,671,586 equivalent to Rs.219.65 million {March 31, 2022; USD 3,383 671 equivalent to Rs. 256 51 million). The
effective intersst rate for the borrowing post conversion to foreign currency term loan is 3 65%% (March 31, 2022: 3.65%). The forcign currency rerm loan is repayable in 60 monthly
instelments commencing from January 2022,




Veedn Clinical Research Limited {formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian rupces million, unless atherwise stated)

The term lean amounting to Rs. 56 million from Canara bank was taken for purchase of Scientific equipments & lab furninre. The eom loan was secured by hypothecation of]
proposed wtilities, lab famiture and scientific instruments at Deyarahosalli - Sompura hobli, Nelamangala and Peenya - Bangalore unit. The loan carried interest rate linked to one year
MCLE. plus spread of 1.15%. The effective interest rate was 8.50% till the conversion in foreign currency loan during the year ended March 31, 2022,

During the year ended March 31, 2022, owtstanding Indian Rupee tenm loan of Bs 8.15 million has been liquidated by obtaining the foreign currency term loan of USD 108,463 from
Canara Bank. The said loan carries interest rate linked to six months LIBOR + 350 bps, The same is secured against hypothecation of land, building, plant and machinery. The loan is
also sccured by personal guarantes of Dr. SN Vinaya Babu, Mr, Kiran Kumar & Smt, HN Sowmya and collateral security of land & building,

Ouistanding balance of the term loan as at March 31, 2023 is Nil (March 31, 2022: USD 72,310 equivalent to Rs. 5,48 Million). The effective interest rate for the borrowing post
conversion to foreign currency tenm loan is 3. 659 (March 31, 2023; 3.65%), The same is fully repaid by the subsidiary company during the year ended March 31, 2023,

The term loan amounting to Rs. 90 million from Canara bank was taken 1o finance the project for expansion of the subsidiary company's business in the Biopharmaceutical sector and
is secured by hypothecation of proposed utilities, lab furniture and scientific instruments at devarahosalli- sompura hobli, pelamangala and peenya- Bangalore unit. The loan carried
interest rate linked to ane year MCLR plus spread of 1.15%. The effective interest ratz waz 8.50%6 till the conversion in foreign currency loan during the year ended March 31, 2622,

During the year ended March 31, 2022, outstanding Indian Rupee term loan of Rs 5911 million has been liquidated by obtaining the foreign currency term loan of USD 786,581 from
Canara Bank, The suid loan carries inrerest rate linked to to six months LIBOR + 351 bps. The same is secured against hypothecation of plant & machinery, lab equipment, fumiture
4 |& computer. The loan is also secured by personal guarantee of Dr. 5.N Vinaya Babu, Mr. Kiran Kumar & Smt. HUN Sowmya and collateral security of land & building.

The outstanding balance of the term loan as at March 31, 2023 is USD 550,657 equivalent to Rs. 45.27 million (March 31, 2002 : USD 739,385 cquivalent to Rs. 56.05 million). The!
effective interest rate for the borrowing post conversion to foreign curreney tenm loan is 3.65% (March 31, 2022: 3,65%). The forelgn currency tenm loan s repavable in S0 monthly
instalments commencing from January 2022,

‘The term loan amounting to Rs. 110 million fram Canara bank was taken to meet working capital requirements of the subsidiary company and is secured by stock and book debs,
hypothecation of plant & machinery, lab equipment, furniture & computer, books, utilities, land & building. The loan was also secured by personal guarantee of Dr.8.N Vinava Babu |
Mr. Kiran Kumnar & Smt. H N Sowmya, The loan carried interest rate linked to one year MCLR plus spread of 1.00% and term Premia of 0.40%, The effective interest rate was 8 50%
till the conversion in foreign currency loan during the year ended March 31, 2022,

During the year ended March 31, 2022, outstanding Indian Rupee term loan of Rs 103 82 million has been liquidated by obtaining the foreign currency tern loan of USD 1,381 491
fiom Canara Bank. The said loan carries interest rate linked fo ta six menths LIBOR + 350 bps, The same is secured against hypothecation of plant & machinery, lab oquipment,
5 |fumiture & computer. The loan is also secured by personal gusrantee of Dr. 8.N Vinaya Baby, Mr. Kiran Kumar & Smt, N Sowmya and collateral secunity of land & building.

Qutstanding balance of the tenn loan as at March 31, 2023 is USD 983 086 equivalent to Rs. 8083 Million {(March 31, 2022: USD 1,301,790 equivalent to Rs. 98 68 million). The
effective interest rate for the borrowing post conversion 1o foreign curreney term loan is 3.65% (March 31, 2022: 3.65%), The foreign currency term lnan is repayable in 52 monthly|
instalments commencing from January 2022,

Cash Credit from Canara Bank amounting to Rs.125 million is secured by Hypothecation of stocks & Book Debis, Plant & Machinery, Lab Equipments, Furniture & Fixture, Lab
Equipments and 2 Eicher Buses. The outstanding balance of the facility as at March 31, 2023 is Rs.105.25 million {March 31, 2022; Nil). The cash credit facility carmies interest rate
6 |linked to one year RLLR of 9.40% Plus spread of 1.60% (March 31, 2022: one year MCLR of 7.35% Plus spread of 0.90%), The cffective interest rate is 11%, (March 31, 2022
8 50%),

16  Trade payables

i Asat As at
P g
s March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Outstanding dues of micro and small enrerprises 3533 42,68
Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 18637 203.10
Total 111.70 247.78

Terms and conditions of the above outstanding balances:

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled in 30-180 days.
For explanation an company's credit risk management process, refer note 37,
For werms and conditions with related party, refer moe 31

Ahmedabad
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Al amounts in [ndian rapess million, unless otherwise stated)

Trade Payahles ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023

Particilacs Outstanding for following perinds from the date of transaction# Total
Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years
(1) MSME - 3531 0.02 - - 3533
(11} Others 80.54 104.91 0.91 * - 186.37
() Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - =
(1v) Dhsputed dues = Others - - = = = =
Total 80.54 140.22 0.93 - - 221.70
* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million
Trade Payables ageing schedule as at March 31,2022
Quistanding for follewing periods from the date of transactioni#
Particulars . Taotal
Unhbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years
(i) MSME - 42.53 0.10 - - 42.68
(1) Others 9128 109.00 3.34 1.06 042 205.10
() Disputed duss - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Drisputed dues - Others - - - - E =
Total 91.28 15158 344 1.06 0.42 247.78

# Considering the availability of data, the above ageing is considered from the date of recording the transaction instead of dus date. Cansequently, there are no 'not due’ creditors

balance disclosed.

Other financial liabilities

Particulars

As at
March 31,2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Non-Current
Financial liabilities carrvied at amortized cost

Security deposits 0.50 056
Total non-current other finuncial liabilities 050 0.56
Current
Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost
Interest accrued but ot due on bomrowings 0.12 0.13
Creditors for capital goods (refer note below) 54.35 112.90
Emplayes benefits pavable 118.97 8445
Payable towards PO expense - 473
Payable towards share issue expenses for fresh issue of shares - 1302
Other puvahbles 0.72 "
Refund liability to customers 50.14 26.940
Financial linbilities carried at fair value through profit & loss
Forward contracts 936 -
Total current other financial liabilities 233,66 242,13
Total other financial linbilities 234.16 242,69
——
Other current liabilities
Particulars Asuy Asat
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Coniract habilities

= Due to customer (excess billing over revenue) (refer note 22.2) 941.2% 737.79

- Advance from customers 16,27 11.57
Btatutory duss payable 3939 31.96
Othears 0.25 0.42
Total other current liabilities 997.1% T81.74
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of contract liability:

Particulars Az nt AEML
Marech 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 74936 215.97
Additions on account of acquisition of subsidiary (refer note 41 (bY) - 35559
Less: Revenue recognized duning the year from balance at the beginning of the year (637.88) (468.54)
Add: Contract liabilities created during the year 846.07 642 34
Balance at the end of the year 957.55 749.36
Provisions
. As at Ag at
P
i March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Non-Current
Provision for employee benefit
Gratuity {refer note 30) 52.74 49.52
Compensated absence 14.09 373
Total non-current provisions 66,83 53.30
Current
Provision for employee benefit
Gratuity (refer note 30) 14.14 L1 86
Compensated absence 7.60 1394
Provision for indirect taxes 0,39 362
Total current provisions 2213 29.42
Total provisions 88.96 82.72
Income tax liabilivies (net)
= As at As at
Fersnidhes March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Income tax liability (net) 758 249
Total inceme tax liabilities (net) 7.58

245




Veeda Clinical Rescarch Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless othcrwise stated)

21 Tax expense

The major compenents of income tax ¢xpense for the vear ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are:

(A} Profit and loss section

Year ended Year ended
ERaigulics March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Current income tax charge:
Current income tax 192,79 9424
Adjustment of tax relating to carlier years (2.93)
Deferred tax
Relating to origimation and reversal of temporary differences (19.29} 60.53
Total tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 170.57 154.77
(B) Other comprehensive income (OCI) section
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31,2022

Dreferred tax related to items recognized in OCI during the year
Net loss on remeasurement of defined benefit plans

0.62

(0.07)

Deferred tax charged to OCI

0.62

(0.07)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the acenunting profit multiplied by India’s demestic tax rate for year ended March 31,2023 and

© March 31, 2022:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 Mareh 31,2022
Profit before tax 394 80 63933
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 25.1T% 25.17%
Expected income tax expense as per applicable taxes 149.71 165.94
Adjustments
Differential tax rate on fair valuation gain on Step acquisition of subsidiary - (7.81)
Mon-deductible expenses 20.01 537
Impact on account of change in tax rate = (10.30)
Others .85 1.57
Tax expense a5 pér consolidated statement of profit and loss 17057 154.77
(D) Balance Sheet seclion
As at As at

Euiftentary March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Income tax assets (net) 236,28 23046
Income tax liabilities (nef) 7.58 249
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22.1

Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited')
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Revenue from operations
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from operations
Sale of services 4,086.13 2,880.26
Other operating revenue
Export inventives revenue 9.65 -
Total revenue from operations 4,095.78 2‘880:3-'5:
Revenue from contract with customers
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from contract with customer’
(i) Geographical location of customer
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Tndia 1,111.06 1,020.04
us 86563 46527
Greece 404.44 132.17
Others 1,704.98 1,262.78
Total 4,086.13 2,880.26
(ii) Timing of revenue recognition
Particulars Year ended Year ended
Arties March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Services transferred over lime 2,961 53 233931
Services transferred at a poinl in time 1,124.60 640,53
Tuotal 4.086.13 2,880.26

22.2 Contract balances

The below table provides information about trade receivables, conlract assets and contract lisbilities from the contracts with customers:

Pavtiiliss Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Trade receivables {refer note 3) 1,051.24 98143
Contract Assets (refer note 9)

- Due from customer {accrued revenus) 240.76 18806
Contract Liabilities {refer note 18)

= Advanee from customer 16.27 11.57
- Due to customer {excess billing over revenue) 94128 737.79

Contract assels relates to revenue eamed from ongoing clinical serviees. As such, the balances of this account vary and depend on the

number of clinical services at the end of the year.

Trade receivables are recognized when the right to consideration becomes unconditional, These are non interest bearing generally on the
terms of 7-90 days. Group has receivable from its customers for the sale of services to its customers. Tn March 31, 2023: Rs, 22,92
Million (Mareh 31, 2032: Rs. 19.5] million) is recognized as provision (net of reversal) for significant increase in credit risk and credit

impaimment of trade receivables.

Contract liabilities includes short-tern advances received for providing clinical services and payment received from customer against
invaice raised for which elinical services are yet to be rendered. Conlract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Group satisfies

the performance obligation,
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Nuotes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(ANl amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss with the contracted price
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Revenue as per contracted price 425087 2,980.80
Adjustments

Eebate payable to customer (9.24) {312)
Credit notes issued due to change in performance obligation (155.50) (97.42)
Met revenue from contract with customers 4,086.13 v 2,880.26

Information about Group's performance obligation are summarized below:

The Group exercise judgement in determining the timing when the performance obligation is satisfied. The Group considers indicators
such as how customer consumes benefits as services are rendered or whoe controls the asset as it is being cicaled or existence of
enforceable right to payment for performance to dale and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of sigmificant nisks and
rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the cuslomer, ete. For the majority of contract performance obligations, the Company
has determined that an output method is appropriate measure of progress. Revenve recognition is determined by assessing the
performance completed or delivered to date under the terms of the armangement. The measures utilized to assess progress on the
satisfaction of performance are specific to the performance obligation identified in the contract.

Information about major customers:
Far information about major customers, refer note 34,

Other income
Particulars Yoar el Kt anied
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Interest income on

-Bank deposits 1541 338

-Loans to associate (refer note 31) - 10.16

-Loans to jornt venture (refer note 313 - 038

“Security deposits 2.99 2.11

-Loan to directors of subsidiary company (refer note 8) - 2.30

-Income tax refund 0sg -

~Oithers 0.02 1.86
Net gain on sale of investment in mutual funds 40.13 12.85
Liabilities no longer required written back 10.47 871
Net Gain on foreign currency transactions 26,41 4.11
Gain on lease termination 748 0.34
Government Grant income 017 s
Rent income 0.70 0.67
Gain on fair value of call option 141 3.90
Miscellaneous income 0.25 0.06

Total 10632 50.83
Cost of material consumed
A Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Opening stock of consumables B4.51 5663
Additions on account of acquisition of subsidiary {refer note 41 (b)) - 9.22
Purchases during the year 342.92 301.26
Less: closing stock of consumables {37.56) {84.51)

Total 329.87 281.60




Veeds Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Resesrch Private Limited')
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

25 Employee benefits expenses
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salary, bonus and allowances 1,003 .59 786.91
Emplayee stock aption expenses (refer note 39) 4.80 1822
Contributions ta provident and other funds (refer note 30) 4790 42.22
Staff wellare cxpenses 3553 2538
Total 1,001.82 872.73
26 Finance Costs
PGt Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Interest expense on
-Bomowings 253] 29.59
-Delayed payment of income tax and other statutory dues 8.29 |66
-Lease liabilities (refer note 35) 6632 49.72
~Others 0.02 0,07
Exchange differences on borowings 3350 11.83
Ohber charges (processing fees, bank commission) 538 342
Total 138.82 06.20
27 Clinical and Analytical research expenses
: Yeur ended Year ended
i March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Screening expenses of subjects 94 83 8285
Subject participation expense 326.04 22437
Food and refreshment expenses of subjects 32.62 24 86
Investigator Charges 245.48 112.88
Data Management outsource serviees 1835 16.95
Bio analytical research expenscs 39.07 17.94
Project approval charges 48.87 51.35
Phlehatomists, nurses and doctors fees 39.04 26.08
Others 94,95 A1.00
Tatal 939.25 608.28
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Weeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

Notes to Conselidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Indian nopees million, unless otherwise stated)

Other expenses
Particuliirs Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Testing charges 388 3.80
Markeling and business promotion expenses 52.73 37.17
Travelling and conveyance expense 12 66 7.17
Rent expenses (refer note 35) 097 L1l
Water, Power and Fuel Charges 101.64 8231
Legal and professional expenses 91 .86 5214
Contractor expenses 95 84 85.60
Insurance expenses 15.70 15.75
Commumication expenses 6.08 4.38
Repairs and maintenance
-Buildings 14,56 988
-Plant and machinery and lab equipments 62,45 70.71
-others 30.00 15.18
Renewal charges of software and licence 16.89 12.53
Rates and taxes 39.50 11.24
Payments to the auditor (refer note below) 340 6.92
Donations 0,14 Q.03
Expenditure towards CSR activities 931 10.47
Printing, stationery and courier expense 2574 2611
Bad debis and contract asset written off (net of provision) 1399 0.92
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.45 -
IPO expenses 10.03 14.87
Provision for doubtful debts 2292 19.51
Provision for doubtful advances - 0.40
Provision for non moving & slow moving inventory 2648 -
Property, plant and eguipment and capital work in progress written off 14.45 3.54
Cither receivables writlen off 0.79 0.23
MNeat loss on mark to market of outstanding forward contract 235 -
Miscellanzous expenses 18 80 10.40
Tatal T00.62 502,3%
Payments 1o the auditor
. Yearended Year ended
i March31,2023  March 31,2022
As auditor:
- Statutory Audit fees 336 685
= Tax audit fees & i
= Reimbursement of expenses 0.04 0.07
Tatal 3.{2 6,92

* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million,

Excludes amount towards IPO services included in receivable from selling shareholders and amount ineluded under [PO expenses,




Veeda Clinical Research Limiied (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Mates to Consolidated Financial Statemests for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Tndian rupees million, unless ptheraise stated)

2% Earnings per share
Basic EFS amounts are czlculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable 10 equity halders of the Helding Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares
oulstanding during the year,

Diluted EPS amounts are caloulated by dividing the profit attibulable to equity holders of the Holding Company by the weighied average number of Equity shares outsianding
during the year plus the weighted average mumber of Equity shares that would be isswed on conversion of all the dilutive patential Equity shares into Equity shares,

The fodlowing table reflects the income and eamings per share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computation;

Partieulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profit after tax atiributable to equity shaveholders for the year 40115 480,71
Neminal value of equity share (Amount in Rs.) z 2
Tival number of equity shares 52,893 8E5 52,893,086
Weighted average number of equity shares 52,893,086 46 862,176
Effect of dilution:
Dilutive effect of stock optians granted under ESGP 123 866 104 964
Weighied average nnmber of shares adjusted for the efect of dilution 53,016,882 46,967,140
Earning per equily share {(Amount in Rs.)
Basic eamings per share 7.58 19.26
Diluted eamings per share 7.57 10.24
MNoter
Ther above eaming per share as at March 31, 2022 has been computed based on revised number of shares considering split and banus {ssue during the year ended barch 31,
012
30 Disclosure for employee benefits
A. Defined eontribution plan
Amount fecopaized 25 expenses and included in note 25 "Employes benefit expenses”
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Caomribution o Provident Fund 2876 23.76
Contiibotion te Employee state insurance 246 2.12
Total 3222 1588

B. Defined benefit plan
The Group has following post employment benefil which is in the nature of defined benefit plan:

Gratuity

The Group provides for gratuity for employees in Indiz 25 per the Payment of Gratity Act, 1972, Employees who are in continuous senvice for a peried of § years are eligible for
pratuity. The amount of gratvity payable on retirement/terménation is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately For 15 days salary multiplied for
the number of years of service caleulated an actuarial basis. The gratuity plan is @ funded plan to the exient balance aveilable in Gratuity Account muintained with bank and Life
Tnsurance Carporation af India. Balance avaitable in such accounts a5 at March 31, 2023 is Rs. 20.37 million (March 31, 2022 Rs 12.92 miltian)

i, Recanciliation of defined benefit obligation

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Opening defined benefit obligation 74,30 3479
Additions an account of acquisition of subsidiary (refer suda 41 (b)) . 3661
Current servige cost 1186 9138
Past service cost ? 455
Interest eost 468 2.06
Components of actuarial gain{losses) on obligation

- Due to Change in financial assumptions {2.40) (0.08)

- Due to change in demographic ssumption - 0.5%

- Due to expedence adjustments {058) .50
Benefits paid 657 5.08

Closing defined benelit obligation 87.26 74.30
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Consolidated Finsncial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All ameunts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Disclosure for employee henelits

il. Reconciliation of the Fair value of Plan assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Opening value of plan assets 1292 007
Adsditions on sccount of acquisition of subsidiary (refer note 41 (b)) - 13,97
Imerest income 0481 0.61
Rewrn on plan 235215 excluding amounts included in interest income 0.50 (3.12)
Contributions by eniployer 8.16 1.00
Benefits paid (2.12} (2.70}
Closing value of plan assets 20.57 12.92
ili. Net lability / {Asset) recognized in the Balance Sheet
Pirticulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations E7.26 7430
Fair Value of Plan assets {2037 (12.92)
Net lisbility / {Asset) recoguized in the Balance Sheet (6.89 61.38
iv. Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars Year ended Year ended
Mlarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current service cost 1186 o3k
Past service cost - 4.55
Met intersst cost 3.77 235
Net Graiuity cost recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 15.63 16.2%
v. Other Comprehensive Income
e Year ended Yeur ended
Farticalars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2013
Actarial gains / (Josses)
= Dug to Change in financial assamptions (2.40) (008}
- Due o experience adjusiments 05 .50
- Due 10 change in demographic assumption i 059
Return an pian assets, excluding amount recognized in net inlerest expense .50 (0.12)
Components of defined benefit costs recognized in sther comprelensive income (2.48) .89
vi. The major categories of plan aisets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets
Pariiculars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Bank balance {escrow sccount) 0.34% 0.54%
Policy of insurance 93 66% 98 46%
Total L0000 e 100.00%,
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Conpany’s plan are shown below:
Farticulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Discount rate 735% pa E70% pa
Future salary increase 10.00% p.a. B.00% paato 10000 pa.

Emplogee turmover

Maortality rate

Sensilivity analysis for significant assumplion is as unders

20008 - 25 0% pa at
younger ages reducing to
0.00% - 5.00°% p.a. at
older ages

Indian Assured Lives
Mornality (2012-14)

0044 - 25,007 poa. &t
younger ages reducing to
0.00%: - 5.00% p.a. at
older sges

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)

Increase / (decrease) in defined benefit obligation
Particulars Sensitivity level Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Discount rale 0.5% incrense 2.72) (228)

0.5% decrease 29 243

Salary increase 0.5% increase 281 236
0.5% decrease (2 68) (2.24)
Employes turmover Chiige by 10%% upward (1.55) (1.19)

Change by 1024 downsward 1.78 1.35

The following are the expected future benelit payments for the defined benefit plan (Undiscounted):

Particulirs

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Within the next 12 monihs {next annual reporting panod) 10,12 B.58
Betwesn 2 and 5 years 42,72 3178
[Between & and £Q years 3313 26,48
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Related party transactions
As per the Indian Accounting Standard on "Related Party Disclosures” {Ind AS 24}, the related parties of the company are as follows:
Name of related parties and their relationship

Holding Company
Basil Private Limited

Subsidiary Company

Bioneeds India Pavate Limited (W.e £ July 16, 2021)

Activin Chemicals and Pharmaceuticals Private Limited (W.e £ July 16, 202 | upto July 20, 2021)

Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited (W.e L July 16, 2021) (Wholly owned subsidiary w.c.f Decomber 15, 2021)

Assoviate
Bioneeds Tndia Private Limited (w.e.f March 19, 2021 upto July 15, 2021)

Joint venture
Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited (W.e.f. March 29, 2021)

Entity with significant influence on the Group
Bondway Investment Inc,

Key managerial personnel of the Parent Company

Mr, Mitin Deslinukh {Independeat Director) (W.e.f. July 01, 2021)
Mr. Rakesh Bhartia (Independent Director) (W.e.£ July 01, 2021)
Mrs. Kavita Singh {Independent Director) (W.e.f. July 01, 2021)
Mrs. Jeanne Heeht {Independent Director) (W.e.f. July 01, 2021)

Mr. Jagannath Samavedam (Nominee Director - w,e.f January 28, 2022) (Nemince Dircctor - we £, June 22, 2021 upto July 16, 2021)

Mr. Apurva Shah (Director)

Mr. Binoy Gardi (Directar) (Till June 26, 2021)

Mr. Ajay Tandon (Managing Director)

Mr. Vivek Chhachhi (Nominee Director)

Mr, Manu Sahni (Nomines Director)

Ms. Aparajita Tethy Ahuja (Nominee Director)

Mr. Kiran Marthak (Director)

Mr. 8. M. Vinaya Babu (Director) (W.e.f July 16, 2021)

Mr. Nirmal Bhatia (Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer - w.e.f. June 22, 2021)

Relatives of key managerial personnel
Mr. Magarja M 8
Mrs. Soumya HN

Entity over which key managerial personnel or their relatives are able to exercise significant influence
Tumbkur Trade Center Private Limited

Adita Biosys Private Limited

Medvice Private Limited

Peenya Food and Drug Testing Lab Private Limited




Veeda Clinical Rescarch Limited (formerly known as " Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited”)

MNates to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

31 Related party transactions

q i s Year ended Year ended
a. Nature of transactions with related parties Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Holding g!mw_ml
Basil Private Limited
Reimbursement receivable from selling shareholder 068 998
Entity with significant influence on the Gro
Bondway Investment Ine,
Dividend paid on CCCPS class 'A' shares - 76.04
Reimbursement receivable from selling sharcholder 1.24 18.27
Joint venture in which the Parent Company is a venturer
Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
Reimbursement of expenses incurred 0.01 1.80
Reimbursement for emploves stock options granted 0.02 0.0%
Rent income 0.70 0.67
Bale of service 240 263
Purchase of service 4,02 -
Sale of property, plang and equipment - 4.52
Loan given 1200 23.00
Repayment of loan given - 1.0
Irsterest income on loan given - 038
Interest income on delsyed payment towards MSME dues 0.02 162
Loan writien off 34.00 “
Associate £ 19, 2021 upto July 15,2021
Bioneeds Indin Private Limited
Interest Income on unsecured loan given Gil July 15, 2021 - 10.16
Repayment of loan given - 23330
Entity ov pich hev managerial onnel or their relatives are able io exerci
|significunt influence
Adita Biosys Private Limited
Purchase of consumables 24.28 17.02
(Tumbur Trade Center Private Limited
Rent paid 18.18 11.70
Kev managerial Personnel
Remuneration (including perguisites)
Mr. Ajay Tandon 15.00 150
Loan repaid
Mr. 8. M. Vinaya Babu - 3289
Rent Paid
Mr. 8.N. Vinaya Babu 10.19 2.09
Security deposit given (rent)
M, 5.N. Vinaya Babu 7.84 &
Acquisition of additional stake in Subsidiary Company (Associate Company till
July 15, 2021)
Mr. 8.N. Vinaya Babu 350.00 50981
Professional fees paid to non-executive director
Mr. Kiran Marthak 360 288
M. Nitin Deshmukh 2.10 J1E
Mr. Rakesh Bhartia 230 146

e gy 1
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "'Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")

MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Al amounts in Indian rupees million, unfess otherwise stated)

Related purty transactions

3 % b Year ended Yeur ended
Nature of transactions with related parties March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Mrs, Kavita Singh 1.50 1.13
Mrs. Jeanne Hechr 322 228
Salary (including perquisites)
Mr, Nirmal Bhatia 13.49 14.19
Mr. 8.N. Vinaya Babu 2593 18,08
Rent - Expense
Mr. Apurva Shah 060 050
Reimbursement of expenses
Mr. Ajay Tandon 0.34 0.09
Mr. Kiran Marthak 0.12 011
Mr. Nirmal Bhatia 0.24 0.24
Mr. S.N. Vinaya Babu 0.27 0.87
ESQP Expenses
Mr. Ajay Tandon 279 59
Mr. Kiran Marthak 0.24 022
Mr. Nirmal Bhatia 048 043
Issue of shares on exercise of ESOP
Mr. Ninmal Bhatia - 17.50
IRzlng' ves of key managerial personnel
Remuneration (including perquisites)
Mr. Magaraja M S - 0.16
Mrs. Soumya HN = 0,22
Rent Paid
Mrs, Soumya HN 9.26 6.00
2 Az at As at
Crutstanding balances at the end of the year March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Haolding company
Basil Private Limited
Reimbursement receivable from selling sharcholder 1088 998
Entity with significant influence on the Group
Bondway Investment Ine,
Beimbursement receivable from selling sharsholder 19.51 18.27
Juint venture in which the Parent Company is a venturer
Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited
(Trade payable) / Reimbursement receivable (1.75) 0,12
Loan given (including interest accrued) - 15.11
managerial persvnnel
Remuneration payable (including perquisites)
Mr. Ajay Tandon 1.04 109
Professional fees payable to non-executive director
Mir, Kiran Marthak - 027
Mr. Nitin Deshmukh 0.07 0.14
bdr. Rakesh Bhartia 0.14 0.1%
Mrs. Kavita Singh - 011
Salary payable (including perquisites)
Mr. Ninnal Bhatia 091 0.76
Mr. .M. Vinaya Baba 1.32 127
Security deposit given (rent)
Mr. 8.N. Vinaya Babu 7.84 -
Reimbursement of expenses payable / (receivable)
Mr. Ajay Tandon (0.02) (010}
Mr. Kiran Marthak 0.08 003
Trade payables (rent payable)
Mr, 8.N. Vinava Babu L13 028
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Naotes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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Related party transactions

Outstanding balances at the end of the year

Asat
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Relutives of key managerial personnel
Trade payables (rent payahle)

Mr. Nagaraja M §

Mrs. Boumya H N

Security deposit (rent)

Mrs. Soumva HN

Entity ov ich kev managerial personnel eir relatives are able to exerci
significant influence

Security deposit received (rent)

Medvice Pvi. Lid,

Peenya Food and Drug Testing Lab Private Limited

Security deposit (rent)

Twmkur Trade Center Private Limited

Rent payable

Tumkur Trade Center Private Limited

Trade payables

Adite Biosys Private Limited

0.84

4,00

17,50

1 66

1.82

0.81

4.00

0.0z
0.02

17.50

1.58

* Figure nullified in conversion of Rupees in million

The following are the details of the transactions eliminated during year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31,

2022;

MNature of transactions with related parties

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Bioneeds India Private Limited

Investment in equity shares

Investment in Opticnally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (OCRPS)
Sale of consumables

MSME interest income

Loan written off

Amthera Life Sciences Private Limited
Secunty deposits writen off

Investmient in equity shares

Loan written back

Loan given by Bioneeds India Private Limited

1ooan

0328
0.02
834

002

834
0.20

23330

The following are the details of the balances eliminated during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31,

2021:

Outstanding balances at the end of the year

Asat
March 31,2023

Asat
March 31, 2022

Bioneeds India Private Limited
Investment in equity shares
Investment in Optionally Convertible Redeemahle Preference Shares (OCRPS)

Amihera Life Seiences Private Limited
Loan given by Bioneeds India Private Limited

Security deposit received

2,13
a3

1.50
330

1,647 82
23330

B.14
0.02

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

(1} The group's transaciions with related parties are at ann’s length. Management believes tiat the Parent Company's domestic and intemational
transactions with related partics post March 31, 2022 continue to be at arm's length and that the transfer pricing legislation will not have any
impact on the financial statements particularly on the smount of the tax expense for the year and the amount of the provision for texation at the

year end.

(2) The future Fability for gratuity and compensated absence is provided on aggregsted basis for all the emplayees of the group taken as a whole,
the amount pertaining te key managerial persannel is not ascertainable separately and therefore ot included above.

(3] Loan to Joint venture in which the company is a venturer

The loan granted to Ingenuity Bivsciences Private Limited is intended to fund its werking capital requirements. The loan is unsecured and is
repayable within 2 years from the dare of ageeement. However, the loan may be repaid at any fime by the borrower. Loan carries interest mate of
6.00% compounded annually. The loan has been utilized for the purpose for which it wes granted.
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited')

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise siated)

Related party transactions

Non-cash transaction with key managerial personnel:

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Holding Company had acquired additional 25.00% of total share capital of Bioneeds equivalent to
1,785,721 equity shares from Mr. 8. N. Vinaya Babu (Director of the Holding Company) for which the consideration has been paid by allotment

of 2,839,864 own equity shares of the Holding Company.

Commitment with related party

The Group has not provided any comimitment 1o related party as at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: Nil),

Contingent liabilities not provided for

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Claims against the company nat acknowledged as debis:

(i) Income tax * 109.47 109,68
(11) Service tax and Goods and Services Tax ** 237.71 219.60
(1} Customs # 4.75 4,75

* Income tax demand comprise demand from the Indian tax authorities for payinent of sdditionzt tex of Rs 10947 million (March 31, 2022: Rs.
109 68 million) upon completion of their tax review for the assessment year 2007-08 10 2019-20. The tax demands are mainly on acceunt of
disallowances relating to transfer pricing matters, expenditure to eam exempl income, deprecistion on software, interest charged on loan
advanced, cupital expenditure churged to revenue, ete. claimed by the Holding Company under the Income tax Act The matter is pending before
various authorities. The said demand amounts have been already adjusted against refund of various years by Income Tax department and hence
net demand is Nil in respect of such period.

** Service tax and Goods and Service Tax demands comprise demand from the Semvice tax authoritics for payment of additional tax of Rs.
237.71 million (March 31, 2022: Rs, 219.60 million), upon completion of their tax review for the financial year 2008-09 to 2017-18. The tax
demands are on account denial of export of service under Rule 4 of place of provision of Services Rules, 2012, reversal of CENVAT eredit
under Rula 6(3) and 6(3), disallowance of input tax credit, ete. The matter is pending before various authorities,

Above amount excludes Rs. 145 87 million (March 31, 2002; Rs, 145.87 million) for the period April 2016 to June 2017 in respect of matiers
where the Helding Company has received favourable orders from the first appeliate authoritics and has received refund. However, the
depariment is pursuing appeal with higher appellate authority, The seneal outflow would depend on the final outcome of the matter,

# Custom duty demand comprise demand from CBEC for payment of additicnal tax of Rs 4.75 million (March 31, 2022; Rs. 4.75 million}, upon
completion of thair tax review for the financial year 2011-12 to 2016-17. The demand is on account denial of custom duty examption benefit
claimed under the Notification 12/2012 dared March 17, 2012, The matter is pending before various authoritics.

The Group 15 contesting the demands and the management, including its tax advisors, helieve that its position will likely be upheld in the
appellate process. No tax expense has been accrued in the financial staremisnis for the tax demand raised. The management believes that the
ultimate outcome of this procecding will not have a matenial adverse efect on the Group's financial position and results of operations,

Other claims not acknowledged as debt

Claim by a party arising out of a commercial contract: Rs. 1,018.84 million (March 31, 2022: Rs. 1,018 84 million). The Holding Company has
not acknowledged this claim. As advised by the external legal counsel, the claim is nor legally renable. Moreover, the Holding Company is
adequately insured and the matter is intimated to insurance company as well. The Holding Company has filed detailed response to the claim
lodged. The matter is pending at commercial court, Ahmedabad. Tn view of these, the Holding Company does not foresce any losses on this
count and accordingly no provision is made in books of accounts,

Capital commitment

As at
March 31, 2023

Asat

Particulars Mareh 31, 2022

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not

provided for {net of advances) 26239 nns
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as " Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Segment reporting

The Group is mainly engaged in the business of Clinical Research and pre-clinical research for various Pharmaceuticals Companics, The
Group's business falls within business segment of 'Clinical Research' and 'Pre-clinical Research' and all the activities of the Group revolve
around this main business. The Chief Operating decision maker (CODM) monitors the operating results of the business as a whole for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment, Therefore, management views Group's business activity
as a single scgment and there are no separate reportable segments in terms of the requirements of Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments” as
notified under section 133 of the companies Act 2013,

Geographical segment

For management purposes, the Group is organized into two major operating geographies India and outside India. More than 25% of the
Group's business is from India. The segment revenue is disclosed based on geographical location of customers in the financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

Revenus foomedthenial cistoimers Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,

2023 2022
India LI111.06 1,020.04
Us B65.63 46527
Greece 404 44 132.17
Oithers 1,704.98 1,262.78

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-current assets, which do not include deferred tax assets, income tax assets and

financial assets analyzed by the geographical arca in which the assels are located:

Carrying amount of non-current operating assets

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

India

3,745.62

3,189.59

Outside India

Information about major customers:

The Group has assessed thet there are no external customers from which the revenue from transactions is 10% or more of the Company's

total revenue for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,
Leases

Group as a Lessee:

The Group has operating lease for various premises which are renewable on a periodic basis and cancellable at fts option. The lease terms of
premises are between 3 1o 10 years, The Group has availed the exemption of low value of assets. Lease payments evaluated by the Group
are fixed payments in nature with Group not exercising any termination or renewal options to terminate or extend the original lease term.
Useful life of right of use asset for computation of amortization expense on right of use assets is assumed to be the term of the lease and
method used is Straight-line method.

The Group has taken certain premises on lease wheicin lease rent is of low value amounting to Bs. 0.97 million for the year ended March
31,2023 (Yeur ended March 31, 2021: Rs. 111 miltion). The campany applies low value lease rent exemption for thess leases.

The carrying value of right of use and depreciation charged during the year

: Asat As at
FRFRITY March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Land and Office Premises

Cpening balance 408 49 363.08
Additions on account of acquisition of subsidiary {refer note 41 (b)) - 123.43
Additions during the year 279.50 3.05
Termination during the year (net of accumulated depreciation on termination) (55.92) (1.51)
Depreciation charged during the year (refer note 3) (11125) (79.57)
Closing balance 520.82 408.49
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Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as ""Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™}

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Leases

The movement in lease liabilities during the year

Particulars aat ARt
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance 515.86 434,02
Additions on account of acquisition of subsidiary (refer note 41 (b)) - 142 87
Additions during the year 270.32 3.06
Tenmination during the year {62.83) {1.83)
Payment of lease liabilities (including interest on lease Liabilities) (144.04) (117.98)
Interest expenses (refer nole 26) 66.32 49.72
Closing balance 645,63 515.86
Balances of lease liabilities
? As at As at
KIRARRE March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current lease liabilities 101.06 01.43
Mon-current lease liabilities 544.57 424,43
Total 645.63 515.86
Amount recognized in the Statement of profit and loss during the year
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particula
T March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation expensé on right of use asset (refer note 3) 111.25 79.57
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 26) 66.32 49,72
Expenses relating to low value leases (included in other expense) (refer note 28) 0.97 1.11
Gain on lease termination (refer note 23) (7.48) (0.34)
Total 171.06 130.06
Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
P As at As at
Fantiewlaps March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Maturity analysis of contractual undiscounted cash flaws
Less than one year 101.06 91,43
One to five years 315.02 276.88
More than five years 229.55 147.55
Total 645.63 515.86
Amount recognized in cash flow Statement
Particalars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Payment of principal pertion of lease liahilities 77.72 68.26
Payment of interest on lease liabilities 66.32 49.72
Total 144.04 117.98

WAL
o




Veeds Clinical Research Limited (formerdy known as " Veeda Clinics] Research Private Limited")
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in Indian rapecs millian, unless othe rvise sated)

Financial instrument - Fair value hierarehy

The significant accounting policies, including the eriteria o recoguition, 1he basis of mwasurement sid the basis e which income and expenscs are recognized, in respect of cach cliss
of finuscisl asset, financinl lisbility and cquity metmimens are disciosed in note 2 to the consolidaiod financinl stawments,

Fair values
A, Category-wise classification of financial instrument
The camying value of financial mstnements by catcgorics 2s ar March 31, 2035 and March 31, 2022:

. As at As at
Particulars Notes March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financinl assets;
At amortized cost
Loans {non-curment) ] - 15.11
Trade receivilles i 103124 45143
Cash and cash equivalents a 36371 LR L)
Onher bank Balance ¥ 2ad 00 1956
Oiher firancal assets {ourron) e 41215 318 56
(Ohbver finkaneial 955615 {non-trnem) 9 423 85 21594
Eub-total 2.499.95 2,166.49
Fair value through profit and Joss
Call aption en vor-controlling interest af subsidiary company 9 A0 28 7345
Investimems 4 546 87 33193
Sub-total S87.75 957.13
Tatal 3048770 312162
Financial liahilities
At amortized cost
Bomowings 15 48574 47202
Trade payables & 21171 2778
Lease lHabalities 33 64562 51586
Oither financial habilitizs {eument) 17 22430 24213
Ohiher finaneial liahilitics {non=current) 17 A0 056
Suhb-toial 1,577.88 1478.35
At fair walue through profit & loss
Fonward contracls 17 o368 =
Sub-toial 938 -
Total 1.587.24 147835

The management assessed that carmyving valaes of fnancial asscte Lo, cadh and cash equivalents, trade payables, trade reccivables, curont inestments snd other Brancial assers ad
liabilitics as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 arc reazsonable approsimations of their fir values lasgely due 1o the short-lemm matnritics of hese mstniments, The ir value of
the firancial assets and liablities is included a1 the amount a8 which the tnstrument could be exchanged in 2 current transaction botween willing partics other than in a foreed ar
liquidation gale,

Fair value hierarchy

The Company wses the following hierarchy for determining asdfor disclosing the fair value of Financial [nstruments by vatuation techniques:

(1) Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markers for identical Assets or Liabilitics.

(i} Laval 2: mputs other than queded prices included within Level | that are observable for the Assets or Lishilities. either directly (ie., a3 prices) or indircetly (i 2, derived fram
prices}

(i) Lavel 32 inputs for the Assote or Liabdities that arc not based on abservable markei data (unobeervible mputs).

Quantitative dischsures fnir value measrement hierarchy :

Fair Value Significant
Particilars Asat Ad at Fair Value hierarchy ubsu-zwblrin "
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 i
NAY Statermni
Invesiment m muataal Rinds at Fair vabes through profit and loss (refer note 4.2) $GET B53.08 cvell provided by G
managar
Third Fpary
[Call aipiion on noa-controlling isierest of subsidiin, company {refer note 9) A0 &% 3.5 Level3 independant  valuation
report
|Mark to miarket lishality o forwand contracts {refer noie 17) 6.3 - Level2 E\km WasEN | By

Financial instroment measured af amorized cost

The carrying amount of Gnancial assets and iascial liabilities measurcd at amortized cost in the finwscial statements are 2 roasonable approsdmation of their fir yalues sinee the Grousp
does ot amicipte thal the currving amounts would be sigaificantly different from the vales that would eventually be recawed or soitled.

Reconciliation of level 1 fair values

The following table shows a reconciliation from the o pening batance to the glosing batunces for leval | i values representing fnvesiment in short tenm liquid mutual funds,

Particulars As at Agat
Warch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening halance 88398 298 53
Mt gadin an Svestment i il Rads 40.13 1285
Purchases 3800 78948
Sales 41524 22157
. AClosing balamee S46.87 B83.98
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risk tolsjictives and policis

The Grap's priteeipal fnorsial tiskiliies comprize leans and horuings, ol sod other pyates, The smuin porpos of these Francial Babilities is % Gians By Grnp's sperstsme. Th Group's
primigil fimars a! sases beluds trads amd sihir raocrvebles and sash and cash ¢ quivabents thsl derive dinccity (bom its eperation.

The Group 2 exposed so mesket risk, eredit risk and liyuidity risk. The Choug's semior mamigemant o4 arsoss the fisnbgerment of thest risks and msures that financial risk sfiviiics e govered by
upprogrinne peliches and procedures and Rat fnanclnl risks are Jdetifed, nssured and mecagsd in wocordine: with the Growey's policier nd ridk objoctives

{a) Murket ik

Market ek be e ciek: that tha fir valee of Btore cacls Aows of a Gnansial instnmmn will Mischats becuss of disiges i ket prices. Marlet sk comprises iwe ypes o ks kworest e ik and
ormy itk Fasncial imstramenis afiected by market sk incdude boveonigs, receivahbes, payables and deposits,

Thie senuitivity smshais i the falbowing seetions relate ta the poosihon as 3t Mach 3, 2023 and March 31, 2020, The sossiiivity aalysis has beer prepared on the bests that the amout of bt debt and
the propartisn of finsncial kistnonents in farign girnescies e ol consumt. The smfves socludes the impect of miovwemerds in rviet sariabies on the camying values of gty and alhes posi
setinement shligations md peotisions.

Thie senastivity of the seleviit prodit o foss e i the effect of e ssiumed changes i wespeciive madoet riske. This is bused 'on the Findpeinl pssets nd Enancinl nbilities bobd ar Marsh 31, 2023 2nd
Mlarch 31, M2

Exposure fo inferest rate risk
Elroup’s inkrest mAg sk arises o bomovings obligstions. Rurowings fssuod expose o fnir value interest rmis gk, ‘The intera mas profile of the Group's intevest-benrisg Financiul Instruments or
repovied o e miera g of i Troup B o follows.

Varislikerute insruments M”:;,”""‘ 4 "x;“""‘
oot Tocroniags FENE] EE
Jiera ioreow g 662 18 52

Tntorest pute sensitvin:
A tessotably possible change of W0 bosis poinis m imenes mies at the seponing dite voubd have inereised Kilecrotsed) ety and profit of foss b e awun(s shown belo, This analisls sseens
Ugat 23] ckher varishles. in puriiidar fcesgn-currency exchange rtes, renmin sl

Partivul Prufit or (s} Boultwaetirtis |
=i 100 by iervase | 300 by decrease | 0 bp Benase 160 bp docrease

Waich 31, 2023
Farcaimrend borrgs -5 159 {1,594y 1.54
Cuarent barmom jngs 22N 137 1 30 170
Tutal [N 446 13.63) 3.63

March 31, 2021
Bicin-evimet by ingd 1 44y 354 [245) 163
Current barmwings €015 118 o B 0 A5
Tolal (4.73), 473 (584 3.5

Furvign currency risk

Fomeign surency ek is the risk tsat the fiir vabue or fuiure cashi flaws of an expasure will At bosause of durges @ Gragn exchangs riles, The Groip's svposire o he sk of cheriges i vl
ncehiarge sales relubes 1o the Citougls operaing Setivites dwominaiod in Uniied Stales ThaBar (LS00, Faro (EURY, Britials Poand Sterling (65 2l Cansdian Dalb (0 AT,

This Eslloing Loble sets Rth informution reluting w wnbodgod Forclgn currengy sxposurs a5 3t March 1, 3075 and March 31, 3022

ik Furefign currency receivables:

Asat Mareh 31, 2623 s ar Mareh 31, 2e22
Pk In fureign curroncy Amount In furelgn curroney Amuani
Tsidls focelvibibei;
-usn SR15.547 AT £ 113,268 26185
-ElR 0,057 PE R L] 131 19587
-LiHP 386 0,06 08
-CAD Ian L0 - 2
(Calyxnd cosh sqgivalostis
Balances with Banks:
= O cunenl ucomamls
UED 16274 36,490 0I5
a0 AT 08 EEL)
0ig - -
Cash on hand
Ls0 S5 Q.08 470, .04
FLiR aar O30 821 L)
LFE i L] 5 ool
A 289 oo 2R3 02
Tatal 5153 736.T1
1il) Fursign curnncy pasables:
Az at March 31, 2023 As ut March 31, 2022
Eart T foruign curmney Amouni In faredpn currency Amuun|
Trmdc pavaliles:
«US0 45370 38 17823 bA ]
-EliR At 35y %2 T
lggmlwhu:
-Usp 4103028 34395 A2 .
| O bl oo diturs:
HIEEn LEL 4363 L1t ang 86.52
(Eicfury} Babific fo cus pemers:
-LED 280211 104 145 754 1ids
-EtRm 300,745 1693 187 34 1584
Tatal 44678 53377
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AR wmwwnits i Iakan ropecs milliem, inless otherise stalal

Fanunclal risk manugensent objotives and pelicie
Foreign curreney semilivity

The fislliing: tobles dernonsarare the semiivity o e reamably possitsle change in USD), Fure, 6P and CAD svchang: 105, with 81 ober sarables beld constant, The impact on the Cinog's prolil
butfione tat B due 1o shanges in e Bir value of menelary sass sad Babisiies

Partleulars Prufit or fkas Enuity, met of tax
Effect i winw-uni Etrengihening Weakening Strengthn ing Weakening
March 31,2023
S Movemai
sn .34 [CED) 6l (1)
ELR [RE-1] (i385 1044 (ALELH
hHE o [ aanl iy
CAD (e [l 05 143 )
March 31, 2032
#54 Movemanl
] 9% (078} i @
FIR a1 519 a3 3
GHE 0.0 o) 002
CAD . . 0

* Figus ¢ ninified i consermion of Rupess nnmlhon.

Derivalives
The (ivaap 5 exposadlfo cerain risks reluiieg 10 155 emguing baniness nperatims. The priery izks ssiaged ususg darvutive fnsruments are Toreign sumers
The dectiatives re laken 02 gover feeeign exchange risk of highly proluble Reecasted sl tumsactions owaring i feviga semmeies and foerign careng

ables

Derivatives mot designated as heging ot naments

The fermp wies orsign eéctangs Bxiand contrixts 1o manage same of i mrseetion exposres, The o evchange Erward comrocis o7 pot desygued s cogh Aow hodges it e aerod inln e
periods carist ot with foregn cueney exposw e of the wdarlying treections, genermily sithn 12 montkz,

Ovstsias livgs dervistives nsirnsmeots ais a5 Bllnws

Maturity
Bettlculary Loas than 1 menih 1103 months 3§ monihs & tn % months 5 s 12 i then Tatul

At March 31, 2023
Furcign exchange fmand Thighly probabi
Serviauat salis)
hirtiona! aous 557 P I47.66 - 38978
A bovnaid guts (s A1sih &3 41 B350 8331 =

otinral smount 3114 GREL 9764 * 26311
s g Forveard ke (e (1 BHCH 2361 B4 % 2631 -
As at Murch 31, 3623
Furcign evchunge forvand ooniracis (highly prebuble
Errecast sules)
[l armount - - - = " =
Avemage Torwurd mte (R s TI50 - - = e -
Mationn! nmount = & < - . =
Fverage Torwand rale (R /EUROH = = = > 2

Thzimspact of'the boddng menmmeas on the bulanse shoet s, 23 follons;

Parficulurs [ Musiunal wosnt | Careying wnseunt | Line ftvm in the bulance shost

As ui Muich 31, 2023
Foreign sxchenge Brwasd contracts {lghly probablie formsas sales) I G451 89
Asul March 31, 0z

oMk o micked Babiliy on farwaid commots ueder cumerd
" flineninl Lishiliog

Foreg: exohange fewand comrcts highly probulfe ot sales) | - | - . e il oo’ orwied sookivcll bder ek
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CAIT arminiiis i il fuipees mallion, unles olherwise salody

Fimancial risk meanagement olgjoetives and policies

{b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk il wunierpanty will rot meet its obligstiins wnder @ funanaial insanument oF cistomies il Jeading 10 2 fnavoial loss, The Group it eposed to credit risk from s apeesting
=ivities (pinsanily Wads faccdvablies) iiid Gom ity Granciog acivities. including deposits wigh busks oo naindial maringives, forcign oxchange muastians sad sther fisscial imsinanenis

Trade Resvivaliles

Trede Rucevabiles of the Geuup e mooured, Credit risk is nuitiaged teoigh petiodia moniioning of the croditwonhingss of customcrs in e vl couse of business, The allowance R imgainness
of Trade receivahles is ool 1o the et ol a6 G when roupired, bused upon the expecied eolbeinbility of acaounis roctivibles. The S etalunies the eoncentration of ik with fespe 1 tade
meesivablos s Jow, a3 s Costosmens o oo of repite,

The i expusure 1 sredil sk = al yesr ewd o trade recavahle by grogrunhic cogion s a3 fallows

i Avml March 38, | Asat March 31,
Pantivalars 013 w12
Dot 37304 ITLES
Cthes mepions 754,18 65166
Tslal 1,127.24 1,034,851
Age al trale recel ubles (Gross)
Al March 31, Ax ot March 31,
Parllculurs 223 2031
Meadue £18.15 577 40
Less than G months 400.5] 33 16
6 onhs - | year SLdi a4, 12
12 yeurs .73 17.31
23 yeary 511 188
Mo than 3 deora 1412 13.55
Todal LI 1,054 51

Fimansial instruments and cash deposis

Creifit rke from balunoes wilh baedey erd frsarciat usimtions & auraged by the Group's sy deparrent im accosdance with the Silns iy, Tvesimns of Surplis Raads aoe casde cely with
ujiproved covenerpentics ard within et imits aasigned oot wounterparty, Commerparty crofit Simils are seviewed by the Grog's. Busrd of Directors on an sl basls, sad sy be updated
Uhrenghiout the vear subyjes o opproval of the semor mansgermenl. The limite o st o menimize te coesmration of da oo theclife Rutigate financiol s Brough counierparty s puiertial Ailue io
nsakis pay i

{e) Liguidity risk

Lisguhbity figk & the risk thal the Creup may nat be able 1o meet its presei and finuee cash and sofl
nisieain opiwan Jevels of luidity 1o meet jie czsh 2d collaterad reguirerenis, Tha Grup dlessly
souroes of finswing o varvas o oo and fong wem loans ot =n oplimiced cos,

1 chfigaices withou Ewuring unsaepiable Teses. The Gresp’s aboctvs i 4oy at all tinss
s M lipuhlite pesision md depleys @ robust cah punagenent svacn, I oeimsing sleju

Thetable beloa: sunwmarices the manurivy proffle of the Group's fraecla] hebiide d¢ a hdanch 31, 2008 oo 2z a0 March 31 2002 ©

Particulirs On ilemandd Lesa than 1 year I vear to 5 years | More than 3 years Total

As al March 31, 2013

Frmons iigs § 10525 134,32 17132 - 51005
Trade payables B 200 - . 2.7
Lebs lshilities - 1600 s nso2 Falhid ) #4503
Other fwmnciul Esbilities - DI GE - O 234,16
Tutal | [E%.L] 690.94 SH6.30 210,05 1.612.84
As ud March 31, 7022

Barro ligs # - 13354 37703 - 1157
Tradk: puvabiles . M = - 24178
Lease Nakilhles - o143 T4 ER 147,55

[Hher fmreial liohifities - - 0 34

| Total - 5351 14811

B Tictuder. commalied fnivrest payrnent on horroadngs

Capibtul msnmpemmen

The: Growp s 1o ounsges e copival eftaily 5o 05 o s fgrand e ablit o comine as @ going sooeerm aud 4 opinuy ferims K e sbarahalies.

Tha apine! sracure of the Group & basd o maiigeneil's judpamen of the apgropriaie hehue of key dleienis in 00der 15 mock §5 sienlepic ind day1o-<day roedt. Wee sl dor the anay of caplial
in propostion io sk and namage the capital dascnein light of changes in aoonomic. conditions md the risk tharsetesiaies of the undoriving nssvis, I ceder Lo muainin or sdjiest the sagie] s,
the e acay adjust the amcunt af dividends paid to shaschelders. reraie copite] (o shrvholdery or o new shases.

The Groap"s policy’ 18 16 dtnlituin & stoble and stong capital st iore with o fisor on totel equity s 01 0 nuinisin invesor. grolitors and & st faure densdopencnt and gowth of s busipes, The
Ciniip will ikt xpprogriate seps in order lo imaiviain, of if Decessory adjust, its copitl s,

T changes wess s in the objuetives, policies o proccsscs oy mamging capial-during the yarended March 31, 2023 and Mareh 31, 2633,

Asut Marck 31, | A=z at Manch 31,
T 2013 w2z

Dlelat {rfer bedaw e L1337 QETRE
Léss: Cash mnd cash oguivalenss | 35580
| Mt ddzhe TEE A0 35199
Exuly <z cupital 16878 0E78
Ontber exuity 445542 45542
([ Wardas| dﬂ!l‘ 4,571.60 430160
[ Ml alelot [ Lijuity mitio 16,6875 5.11%

Notei
Dt i defined 20 bongterm homowings, shori-term borrowiungs doveliding fnarcind guasnines cootrcts mad conkingem cnstdention) asd T se liabilities




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (Tormerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Tndian rupees million, unless otherwise stared)

Employee stock option plans

Under ESOP 2019, the board of directors is aulhorized (o grant oplions exercisable inte subscription of shares of the Holding Company. Each option shall be
convertible into one equity share and the aggregete number of options subscribed into shares shall not exceed 5% of the paid-up capital of the Holding
Company. The options granied under ESOP 2019 will be exercisable at an exercise price of Rs. 10,644 per share for round 1 to 3 and Rs. 12,822 per share for
round 4 (Rs. 177.40 for round 1 to 3 and Rs. 213.70 for round 4 after considering effect of split and bonus issue), If the options expire or became
unexercisable withoul having been exercised in full, the unexercised options, which were subject thereto, shall become available for future grant.

The fair value of the share options is estimated at the grant date using Black-Scholes model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
share options were granted. However, the above performance condition is only considered in determining the number of instruments that will ultimately vest.

The contractual term of each option granted is varying fom 83 months to 101 menths, There are no cash settlement alternatives, The Holding Company docs
not have a past practice of cash seitlement for thess share options, The Holding Company accounts for the Veeda Employee Stock Option Plan 2019 (VESF)

25 an equity-settled plan.

The expense recognized for emplovee services received during the year is shown in the following table:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Expense arising from equity-setiled sharc-based payment transactions 4.80 15.22
Total expense arising from share-based payment transactions 4.80 1822

There were no cancellations or modifications to the awards during the vear ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2002,

Movements during the year

The following table illusirates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share options during the year,

Year ended March 31, 2023% Year ended March 31, 2022*
Particulars
WAEP (Rs.) 17740  WAEP (Rs) 213.70  WAEP (Rs.) 177.40  WAEP (Rs.) 213.70
Number of ESOP Number of ESOP Number of ESOP Number of ESOP
Ouistanding at the beginning of the year 811,680 680,160 1,174,800 5
Granted during the year - - - 753,600
Forfiited during the year 55,620 146,250 47,520 115,440
Exercised during the year - - 315,600 -
Expired diring the vear . - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 756,060 533,910 811,680 680,160
Exercisable at the end of the year 599,040 266,100 423,960 170,040
*Number of ESOP and WAEP are considered afler the impact of Bonus and split, (Refer note 13)
The following tables list the inputs to the models used for the year ended March 31, 2022:
Particulars WAEP (Rs.) 177.40 WAEP (Rs.) 213.70
VESP VESP
Dividend yield (%o) i &
Expected volatility { %) 228 2114
Risk-fres interest rate (35) 5.83 6.32
Expected life of share options (years) 575 6.50
Weighted average fair values at the measwement date# 3007 3803
Weighted average share price {Rs.J¥ 184.47 211.32
Medel used Black-Scholes Black-Scholes

# Weighted average fair values at the measurement date and weighted average share prics are considered afler the bonus and split impact,

The expected volatility reflects the asswmplion that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the oplions is indicative of fiture trends, which

may not necessarily be the actual outcome,
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Yeeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Interestin joint venture

The Group has a 50% shareholding in Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limiled, a joint venture involved in the business of clinical research for various
pharmaceuticals companies. The Group's interest in Ingenuity Biosciences Private Limited is accounted for using the equity method in this
Consolidated Financial Statement. Summarized financial information of the joint venture, based on its Ind AS financial statements, and reconciliation

with the carrying amount of the investment in consolidated financial statement is set out below :

Summarized balance sheet as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022;

Particulars Adut A
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Non current assets (A) 16.77 15.30
Current assets (B) 45.83 14.96
Total Assets (A+B) 62,60 30.26
Non-current liabilities (C) 0.40 22.10
Current liabilities (D) 50.91 2262
Total liahilities (C+D) 51.31 44,72
Total Equity 11.29 (14.46)
Conlingent liabilities - ¥
Capital Commitment 0.36 -
Company's share in total equity: 50% 5.64 (7.23)
Goodwill = -
Company's Gross carrying amount of the investment 5.64 -
Less: impairment provision for carrying amount of investment (5.64) -
Company's net carrying amount of the investment# - -
# Considering the above exceeds value of investment, it is disclosed as Nil,
Summarized statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

T Year ended March | Year ended March

31, 2023 31, 2022

Revenue from contracts with customers 30,60 13.42
Other income 40.24 -
Total income 70.84 13.42
Cost of raw material consumed 5.34 0.26
Employee benefit expense 11.48 13.17
Finance cost 1.47 201
Depreciation & amaortization 264 2.76
Other expense 14.67 18.87
Total Expense 35.61 37.07
Profit/(Loss) before tax 35.24 (23.65)
Tax expense 9.2% {7.98)
Profit/(Loss) for the year [ period 25.94 {15.67)
Otner comprehensive income for the year - 0.03
Tolal comprehensive Profiv{Loss) for the year 25.94 (15.64)
Company's share of Profit/(Loss) for the year (50%) 12.97 (7.82)
Less: carrying amount of the loan given to joint venture written off / impairment provision for carrying
amount of investment 3964 o
Company's share of Profit/(Loss) for the year (50%) after elimination (26.67) (7.82)

Notes:

L. Since the Holding Company's interest in joint venture is reduced to zero, additional losses are recognized only to the extent that Holding Company

has incurred legal or constructive obligation.




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Indian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

41 (a) Investment in an associate (W.e.f. March 19, 2021 to July 15, 2021)

The Group acquired 30% shareholding in Bioneeds India Private Limited ("Bioneeds”) on March 19, 2021, which is involved
in the business of providing Integrated Discovery, Development and Regulatory Services to Pharmaceutical,
Biopharmaceutical, Agrochemical, Industrial Chemical, Herbal, Nutraceutical & Medical Device companies. Bioneeds is a
private entity that is not listed on any public exchange.

During the period, on July 16, 2021, the holding company pursuant to investment agreement dated July 07, 2021, acquired
additional 20.10% stake in the Bioneeds, thereby making it, Subsidiary Company. The Holding Company's interest in Bioneeds
India Private Limited is accounted for using equity method till July 13, 2021, The results of Bioneeds included in consalidated
financial statements are as under:

. As at As at

ki March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Man current assets (A) - -
Current assets (B) - -
Total assets (A+B) - -
Mem-gcurrent liabilities (C) - -
Current liabilities (D) - - -
Tutal liabilities (C+D) - -
Total equity
Contingent liahilities - -
Capital Commitment - -
Company's share in total equity : Nil (March 31, 2022: 30%) - -
Goodwill - -
Company's carrying amount of the investment - -

¢ Year ended Year ended

Enrtionion March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from operations - 291.10
Other income - 299
Total income - 294,09
Cost of material conswmed . . 39.53
Emplovee benefit expenses - 9856
Finance costs - 3132
Diepreciation and amorti zation expenses - 27.10
Other expenses - 43 94
Total expenses - 240.45
Profit / (Loss) befure tax - 53.64
Tax expense - 16.17
Profit / (Loss) for the year - 37.47
Attributable to:
-Equity holders of the parent - 37461
-MNon-controlling interests - (0.14)
Other comprehensive loss for the year - (0.60)
Attributable to:
-Equity holders of the parent - (0.60)
-Mon-controlling interests v y
Total comprehensive income for the year - 36.87
Attributable to:
-Equity holders of the parent - 37.01
-Non-controlling interesis - (0.14)
Company's share (30%) of total comprehensive income for the . 1110
year/period from April 01, 2021 to July 15, 2021 )

Note:




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited")
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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41 (b) Acquisition of Bioneeds India Private Limited

The members of the Holding Company at its meeting held on May 25, 2021 has approved acquisition of additional 20,10% stake in
Bioneeds India Private Limited ("Bionesds”) for total cash consideration of Rs. 620.00 million which has been paid on July 16,
202]. This consideration also includes fair value of call options pursuant to the transaction as mentioned in note 6 below. The
Helding Company has entered into investment agreement with Bioneeds and its shareholders en July 07, 2021 for effecting the
same, On July 16, 2021, the Holding Company compieted this acquisition and appointed majority of its nominee directors on the
board, thereby making Bioneeds its subsidiary. Accordingly, the additional acquisition of shares has been accounted under Ind AS
103 Businecss Combination,

The purchase price as on the dale of acquisition has been allocated to the agquired assets and liabilities as follows:

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair value of the identifiable asscts and liabilities of Bionceds as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

Particulars Amount
Assels
Nom current assefs
Property, plant and equipment 643.17
Capital work-in-progress 162.73
Right of use assets 12343
Other imangible assets 4.49
Customer relationship 23150
Other non-current financial assets 5286
Deferred tax assets (net) 17.33
Income tax assets (net) 15.07
Orther non-cument assets 67.52
Current assets
Inventories 922
Trade receivables 12825
Cash and cash equivalents 0.68
Loans 41.92
Other current financial assers 151.14
Other current assets 47.81
Liabilities
Borewings (738,20)
Lease liabilities (148.87)
Provisions (18.10)
Trade Payable (46.98)
Other financial liabilities (55.13)
Other liabilities (359.96)
Deferred tax liabilities on fair value adjustiments (75.88)
Ingome tax liabilities (18.35)
Net assets acquired 235.65




Veeda Clinical Research Limited (formerly known as "Veeda Clinical Research Private Limited™)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Tndian rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

41 {b) Acquisition of Bioneeds India Private Limited

Caleulation of Goodwill

Particulars A t
Purchase consideration for acquisition of 20.1% stake (A) 481.50
Fair valuation of existing 30% stake (B) (refer note 3 below) T18.66
Total consideration (C= A + B) 1,200.16
Less: Fair value of net assels acquired (235.65)
Add: Share of non controlling interest (refer note 2 below) 116.07
Goodwill (refer note 1 below) 1,080.58
Purchase consideration:

Particulars Amount
Consideration paid in cash (Including for fair value of call nprions) (62000
Contingent consideration liability -

Total (620.00)

Analysis of eash flows on acquisition:

Particulars Amount
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary 0.68
Transaction costs of the acquisition -
Met cash flow on acquisition 0,68

Notes:

I Goodwill is attributable to fiture growth of business out of synergies from this acquisition and assembled workforce. The goodwill
is not deductible for income tax purposes. The Group has tested goodwill penerated for impainnent as per the requirements of Ind
AS based on the assessment of recoverable value and value in use estimate. As per the said sssezssment, no such jmpairment is
required,

2 The non-controlling interest recognized at the acquisition date was measured at proportionate share of Bioneeds’s fair value of net
assets acquired.

3 The Company fair valued its acquisition date stake of 30% as on July 16, 2021 as per the requirement of Ind AS and consequently,
gain on fair valualion on step up acquisition of Rs. 341.17 million was recognized as exceptional itemn.

4 From the date of acquisition, Bioneeds has contributed Rs. 640 95 million and Rs. 62.97 million towards revenue and profit before
tax of the Group, respectively. Had the entity was acquired from Apeil 01, 2021, it would have contributed Rs, 932.05 million and
Rs, 104.90 million towards revenue and profit before tax of the group, respectively.

The Holding Company entered into investment agresmeant with Bioneeds India Private Limited (“Bioneeds™) and its sharehiolders on
July 07, 2021 for acquisitien of additional 20.10% equity shareholding at Rs. 62000 million from the promoter and exisling
sharcholders of Bioneeds and also as per the said agreement the Holding Company has various call options to acquire remaining
49.90% equity sharcholding from the promoter of Bionesds. Subsequent to this, the Holding Campany entered into addendum to
said investment agreement on January 30, 2022 pursuant to which, the Holding Company has exercised share swap call aption and
has acquired additional 25.00% af lotal share capital of Bioneeds equivalent to 1,785,721 equity shares for which the consideration
hias been paid by allotment of 2,839,864 equity shares of the Holding Company. Additional investment of 25.00% acquisition in
Bionzeds has been accounted at Rs 73036 million based on the fair valuation report of the independent valuer. As at March 31,
2023, the Holding Company has cash acquisition call option available on the remaining 24.90% share capital of Bioneeds which has
been fair valued at Rs 73.15 million based on the fair valuation repoert from the independent valuer and the resultant fair value gain
of Rs. 3.90 million has been recognized in other income (refer note 23).

Subszquent to year end, the Holding Company has entered into agreement dated May 23, 2022 to amend the terms of Investment
Agreement and Addendum to Tnvestment Agresment as per which (a) the Company may acquire additional 3.23% of tota) share
capital of Bioneeds by way of primary investment for aggregated purchase consideration of Rs. 100.00 millien. (b) the Holding
Company may acquire 8.07% of total share capital of Bioneads from the promater by way of secondary investinent for ageregated
purchase consideration of Rs. 250,00 million. Further, as per the foresaid agreement dated May 23, 2022, the Holding Company
has an oplion to further acquire balance 16,0396 shares on fully diluted basis for consideration at 11 tmes of the enterprise value or
the EBITDA multiple of the Bioneeds reporied under its last reported audited results for the relevant financial year, The said call
oplion is available tll 2 years from the date of execution of this amendment and accordingly the said shareholding will remain
locked in for a period of 2 years,
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42 Material partly-owned subsidiaries

Financial information of subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests i provided below:

Propurtion of equity interest held by non-controlling interests:

Name Country of incorporation As at As at
and operation March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Bionceds Indiz Private Limited Indis 13 009y 245000
Information regarding non-conirolling interest
Asat Asat
f material lling i
Accumulated balances of material non-cantrolling interest March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Bioneeds India Private Limited 58.15 7177
As ut Asat
ted i %
Frofit / (Loss) allocated to material non-controlling interesi: March 31,2073 March 31, 2022
Bioneads India Private Limited 2337 24 40
The summarized financial information of this subsidiary (before elimination) is provided below;
Summarized statement of profit and loss:
e Bioneeds India Private Bioneeds India Private
MName of the subsidiary Limited Linited
. Year ended July 16, 2021 to March 31,
o March 31, 2023 2022
Revenue From Operations 1,134.52 640,95
Other Income 14.72 072
Total Incoine 1,148.23 650,67
Cost of material consumed 151.61 84,12
Employee benefit expenses 38121 23687
Finance cost 8533 50.54
Depreciation and amortization expenses 16862 oB.77
(Other expenses 178.T1 10740
Total Expenses 93599 587.70
Profit before tax 213.25 62.97
Tax Expense 3601 10T
Profit for the period 157,14 5227
Tutal other comprehensive income for the period 131 0.87
Total com prehensive income for the period 158.45 53,14
Attributable to non-controlling interest 2337 24.40

Summarized balance sheets

Mame of the subsidiary

Bioneeds India Private

Bioneeds India Private

Limited Limited
Particulars As at Mareh 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022

Non-curreni assets 1,563.22 1,381 50
Current assets 54638 305,28
(Total Assels 2,100.60 1,686,78
Non-current liabilities 454,98 53808
Current liahilities 1,078,587 830.57
Total linbilities 1,563.95 1,398.55
Total equity 545,65 188.23
Attributable to:

Equity holders of parent 487,50 216.46
Noa-conirolling interest SR.15 7177
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Government of India’s Code for Social Security 2020 (the 'Code’) received assent from the President in September 2020, However, the date from when the Code
will become applicable and rules have not vet been notified. The Group will assess the impact of the Code and account for the same once the effective date and

There are no malerial subsequent events, which have any significant impact on financial statements of the group.

Other Statutory information:

a. The Group does not have any Benami proparty, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Frohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder

b. The Group do not have any transactions with Companies Struck off.

c. The Group do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory perind.

d. The Group have not traded or invested in Cryptocurrency or Virlual Cutrency during the financial year,

. The Group have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shall:

(1) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Iltimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

f. The Group have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoaver by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or

(i1) provide any puaranieg, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

£ The Group have not any such transaction which 15 not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the
tax asszssments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Aet, 1961).

h, The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013,

i There is no immovable property whose title deed 15 not held in the name of the Group.

J. The Group has not been declared a wilful Defaulters by any bank or financial instilution or consortium thereof in accordance with the guidelines on wilful
defaulters issued by the RBL

k. The Group has complied with the number of layers preseribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of
Layers) Rules, 2017

1. The Group has availed loans from banks on the basis of security of current assets, The Group files statement of current assets with the bank on periodical basis.
There are no material discrepancies between the statements filed by the Group and the books of accounts of the Group.

Previous year figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to make them comparable with those of the current year.

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC& Co. LLP For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Veeda Clinical Research Limited
ICATFRN: 324982E/E300003 {CIN : U73100GJ2004PLC044023)
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per Sukrut Mehta Nitin Deshmukh Ajay Tandon Nirmal Bhatia
Partner Chairman Managing Director Company Secretary & CFO
Membership No. 101974 DIN: 00060743 DIN: 02210072 [CSI Membership No.12551

Dte: September 05, 2023
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